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111 5th Avenue SW, Suite 3100
Calgary, Alberta

Canada T2P SL3

Telephone +1 (403) 509 7500
Facsimile +] (403) 781 1825

February 10, 2006

Auditors’ Report

To the Share Owners of
ATCO Ltd.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of ATCO Ltd. as at December 31, 2005 and 2004
and the consolidated statements of earnings and retained eamnings and cash flows for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Corporation as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the results of its operations

and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

TB,,@LMMMW LlP

Chartered Accountants

Calgary, Alberta

PricewaterhouseCoopers refers to the Canadian firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and the other member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.



ATCO LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
{(Millions of Canadian Dollars except per share data)

Three Months Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Unaudited)
Revenues 3 $ 788.5 $ 7163 $2,859.6  $3,271.0
Costs and expenses
Natural gas supply 3 17.6 39.3 159.7 846.0
Purchased power 3 12.2 15.4 45.4 95.8
Operation and maintenance 340.2 292.0 . 1,250.2 1,055.6
Selling and administrative 63.5 S2.1 2233 184.7
Depreciation and amortization 92.9 86.2 337.9 311.1
Interest 12 54.2 56.4 223.2 215.5
Dividends on preferred shares 1 2.1 2.1 8.6 8.6
Franchise fees 49.5 37.5 152.3 133.4
632.2 581.0 2,400.6 2,850.7
156.3 135.3 459.0 420.3
Gain on transfer of retail energy supply businesses 3 - - - 63.3
Interest and other income 6 12.1 10.9 41.9 32.9
Earnings before income taxes and
non-controlling interests 168.4 146.2 500.9 516.5
Income taxes 7 64.2 52.0 187.7 172.4
104.2 94.2 313.2 344.1
Non-controlling interests 8 52.0 52.5 164.2 184.7
Earnings attributable to Class I and
Class II shares 3 52.2 41.7 149.0 159.4
Retained earnings at beginning of period 1,158.5 1,071.2 1,101.0 990.4
1,210.7 1,1129 1,250.0 1,149.8
Dividends on Class I and Class IT shares 11.3 10.4 45.5 41.7
Purchase of Class I shares 2.8 1.5 7.9 7.1
Retained earnings at end of period $1,196.6 $1,101.0 $1,196.6 $1,101.0
Earnings per Class I and Class II share 15 3 087 $ 0.70 $ 249 3 268
Diluted earnings per Class I and Class II share 15 $§ 08 3 0.70 $§ 246 $§ 265
Dividends paid per Class I and Class IT share 15 $ 019 $ 0.175 $ 076 $ 0.70




ATCO LTD.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
{Millions of Canadian Dollars)

December 31
Note 2005 2004
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and short term investments ’ 18 $ 8944 § 7609
Accounrs receivable 432.7 430.8
Inventories 109.8 185.4
Future income taxes 7 - 03
Regulatory assets 2 19.1 5.4
Prepaid expenses 24.7 21.4
1,480.7 1,408.2
Property, plant and equipment 9 5,601.4 5,404.9
Goodwill 71.2 71.2
Regulatory assets 2 35.0 304
Other assets 10 273.1 279.2
$7,461.4  $7,193.9
LIABILITIES AND SHARE OWNERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Bank indebtedness 11 $ 233 § 112
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 422.6 3393
Income taxes payable 29.6 42.6
Future income taxes 7 4.1 -
Regulatory liabilities 2 6.4 13.6
Long term debt due within one year 12 0.6 5.9
Non-recourse long term debt due within one year 12 64.1 55.8
550.7 468.4
Future income taxes 7 217.0 237.6
Regulatory liabilities 2 161.9 165.6
Deferred credits 13 260.3 151.8
Long term debt 12 2,273.5 2,21583
Non-recourse long term debt 12 804.3 899.7
Preferred shares 1, 14 150.0 150.0
Non-controlling interests 8 1,712.6 1,660.9
Class I and Class II share owners’' equity
Class I and Class 11 shares 15 148.3 1442
Contributed surplus 16 1.1 0.7
Retained earnings 1,196.6 1,101.0
Foreign currency translation adjustment (14.9) (1.3)
1,331.1 1,244.6
$7,4614  $7,193.9
A Sae’ AV L, |
N.C. SOUTHERN B.P. BRUMMOND
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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ATCOLTD. ,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Millions of Canadian Dollars)

Three Months Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
Note 2005 2004 2005 2004
(Unaudited)
Operating activities
Earnings attributable to Class I and Class 11 shares $ 522 3 417 $149.0 $1594
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 92.9 86.2 337.9 311.1
Future income taxes 0.6 (7.2) 9.1 9.5
Non-controlling interests 52.0 52.5 164.2 158.1
Gain on transfer of retail energy supply businesses
- net of income taxes and non-controlling interests 3 - - - (28.5)
Deferred availability incentives 14.5 8.1 13.7 2.8
TXU Europe settlement - net of income taxes . 5 3.7 - 45.8 -
Other 0.4 0.8 15.7 10.9
Cash flow from operations 208.9 182.1 735.4 604.3
Changes in non-cash working capital 17 0.3) (32.3) 87.7 92.0
208.6 149.8 823.1 696.3
Investing activities i
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (200.3) (176.8) (592.8) (610.9)
Proceeds on transfer of retail energy supply businesses
- net of income taxes and non-controlling interests 3 - - 434 225
Proceeds (costs) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.6) 3.2 2.6 10.0
Contributions by utility customers for extensions to plant 6.7 10.3 44.1 50.9
Non-current deferred electricity costs (5.7) 4.0 (15.7) (5.9)
Changes in non-cash working capital 17 245 13.3 (6.0) 7.8
Other (0.2) 1.8 (7.0) (2.5)
(175.6) (144.2) (531.4) (528.1)
Financing activities
Change in notes payable - (96.0) - -
[ssue of long term debt 188.7 300.0 2355 549.0
Issue of non-recourse long term debt - - - 12.5
Repayment of long term debt (36.8) (37.0) (181.2) (170.9)
Repayment of non-recourse long term debt (11.6) (11.2) (60.7) (54.5)
Issue (purchase) of Class A shares by subsidiary Q@7 0.2 2.7 3.0)
Issue (purchase) of Class | shares 2.1) 1.6 3.8) (1.8)
Dividends paid to Class [ and Class II share owners (11.3) (10.4) (45.5) 41.7
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (25.8) 25.1) (103.1) (100.5)
Income tax reassessments 7 - 12.9 2.0 129
Changes in non-cash working capital 17 24 2.9) 3.6 .n
Other (1.8) (4.1 (2.3) (4.8)
99,0 128.5 (158.2) 195.5
Foreign currency translation 0.2 0.1 (12.1) 0.3)
Cash position ®
Increase 132.2 134.2 121.4 363.4
Beginning of period 738.9 615.5 749.7 386.3
End of period $871.1 $749.7 $871.1 $ 749.7

M Cash position includes cash and short term investments less current bank indebtedness.
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ATCO LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005

(tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars)
1. Summary of significant accounting policies
Financial Statement Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of ATCO Ltd. and its subsidiaries, including a
proportionate share of joint venture investments (the “Corporation”). Principal subsidiaries are ATCO Structures
(100% owned) and its subsidiaries, ATCO Noise Management (100% owned), ATCO Resources (100% owned) and
Canadian Utilities Limited (51.8% owned) and its subsidiaries (“Canadian Utilities”). Principal operations are
Industrials (ATCO Structures, ATCO Noise Management), Utilities (ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas, ATCO Pipelines),
Power Generation (ATCO Power, Alberta Power (2000), ATCO Resources) and Global Enterprises (ATCO
Midstream, ATCO Frontec, ATCO I-Tek). Significant joint venture investments consist principally of power
generation plants; a substantial portion of Power Generation’s operations are conducted through joint ventures.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation prospectively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA”) guideline pertaining to the consolidation of variable interest entities, The guideline requires the
Corporation to identify variable interest entities in which it has an interest, determine whether it is the primary
beneficiary of such entities, and, if so, to consolidate them. This change in accounting had no effect on the
consolidated financial statements for the three months and year ended December 31, 2005.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation prospectively adopted the CICA guideline pertaining to lease
arrangements. The guideline requires the Corporation to identify arrangements that do not take the legal form of a
lease but convey a right to use a tangible asset in return for a payment or series of payments, and, if so, to account
for them as leases. This change in accounting had no effect on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

Effective January 1, 2005, the Corporation retroactively adopted the CICA recommendations pertaining to the
classification of retractable or mandatorily redeemable shares. The recommendations require the Corporation to
classify a contractual obligation as a liability when the number of the Corporation’s own shares required to settle the
obligation varies with changes in their fair value so that the Corporation may have to deliver more or fewer of its
shares than would have been the case at the date of entering into the obligation. The Series 3 preferred shares
represent such an obligation in that each Series 3 preferred share will on and after December 1, 2011 be convertible
at the option of the owner into that number of the Corporation’s Class I Non-Voting shares determined by dividing
$25.00 together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by the greater of $2.00 and 95% of the then current market
price of the Class I Non-Voting shares. Consequently, the equity preferred shares have been reclassified to preferred
shares in the balance sheet and the dividends on equity preferred shares have been reclassified to dividends on
preferred shares in the statement of earnings.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

Rate Regulation

ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, Northland Utilities (NWT), Northland Ultilities (Yellowknife) and Yukon
Electrical, the ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines divisions of ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd. and the generating plants
of Alberta Power (2000), all of which are wholly owned subsidiaries of Canadian Utilities Limited’s wholly owned

subsidiary, CU Inc., are collectively referred to in these consolidated financial statements as the “regulated
operations”.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Effective December 31, 2005, the Corporation retroactively adopted the CICA guideline pertaining to the disclosure
and presentation of information by entities subject to rate regulation. This guideline no longer permitted the netting
of accrued and regulatory pension and other post employment benefits assets and liabilities, with the result that the
Corporation’s total assets and liabilities reported in 2004 increased by $154.4 million. This change in presentation
had no effect on the Corporation’s earnings and earnings per share or cash flows. Accounting for rate regulated
operations is described in Note 2. .

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the year. On an on-going basis, management reviews its estimates, particularly those
related to depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and impairment of long-lived assets, amortization of
deferred availability incentives, asset retirement obligations and employee future benefits, using currently available
information. Changes in facts and circumstances may result in revised estimates, and actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

For regulated operations, revenues are recognized in a manner that is consistent with the underlying rate design as
mandated by the regulator.

Prior to the transfer of retail energy supply businesses (see Note 3), revenues from regulated sales of natural gas and
electricity by ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric were recognized upon delivery, primarily on the basis of meter
readings, and included an estimate of usage not yet billed.

Revenues from ATCO Gas’ regulated distribution of natural gas include variable charges, which are recognized on
the basis of meter readings upon delivery of natural gas to customers and include an estimate of usage not yet billed,
and fixed charges, based on the provision of the distribution service during the period. Revenues from the sale of
natural gas by ATCO Gas from storage, which ended on March 31, 2005, were recognized upon delivery.

Revenues from ATCO Electric’s regulated distribution of electricity include variable charges, which are recognized
on the basis of meter readings upon delivery of electricity to customers and include an estimate of usage not yet
billed, and fixed charges, based on the provision of the distribution service during the period. Revenues for the use
of ATCO Electric’s regulated transmission facilities are based on an annual tariff and are recognized evenly
throughout the year.

Revenues from ATCO Pipelines’ regulated transportation of natural gas are recognized on the basis of contractual
arrangements. For certain services, revenues are recognized on the basis of meter readings upon delivery of natural
gas to customers and include an estimate of usage not yet billed.

Revenues from regulated sales and distribution of natural gas and electricity by other regulated operations,
excluding Alberta Power (2000), are recognized upon delivery, primarily on the basis of meter readings, and include
an estimate of usage not yet billed.

Revenues from generating plants are recognized upon delivery of output or upon availability of delivery as
prescribed by contractual arrangements. Incentives and penalties associated with Power Purchase Arrangements
{(“PPA”™) are recognized as described under the accounting policy for deferred availability incentives.

Revenues from ATCO Midstream’s natural gas storage and processing capacity are recognized on the basis of
contractual arrangements, and revenues from the sale of natural gas liquids are recognized upon delivery.

Revenues from the supply of contracted services are recorded by the percentage of completion method; full

provision is made for any anticipated loss. Other revenues are recognized when products are delivered or services
are provided.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Natural Gas Supply

Natural gas supply expense includes purchases of natural gas for regulated operations (see Note 3 regarding the
transfer of retail energy supply businesses) and other subsidiaries. Natural gas supply expense for other subsidiaries
consists of natural gas volumes purchased for natural gas liquids extraction and sales to third parties.

Prior to the transfer of retail energy supply businesses (see Note 3), natural gas supply expense for the regulated
operations was based on the forecast cost of natural gas included in customer rates. Variances from forecast costs
were deferred until such time as approval from the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board (“AEUB”) was obtained for
refund to or collection from customers and revenues and natural gas supply expense were adjusted accordingly.

Subsequent to the transfer of retail energy supply businesses, natural gas supply expense for the regulated operations
is based on actual costs incurred.

Purchased Power

Prior to the transfer of retail energy supply businesses (see Note 3), purchased power expense in ATCO Electric was
based on the actual cost of electricity purchased, whereas the amount included in customer rates was based on
forecast cost. Revenues were adjusted for variances from forecast cost, and the variances were deferred until such
time as approval from the AEUB was obtained for refund to or collection from customers.

Purchased power expense in the Yukon Territory and the Northwest Territories is based on the actual cost of
electricity purchased. The amount included in customer rates in the Yukon Territory is based on actual costs and in
the Northwest Territories is based on forecast cost. Revenues are adjusted for variances from forecast cost, and the
variances are deferred until such time as approval from the regulator is obtained for refund to or collection from
customers.

Income Taxes

The regulated operations follow the method of accounting for income taxes that is consistent with the method of
determining the income tax component of their rates. When future income taxes are not provided in the income tax
component of current rates, such future income taxes are not recognized to the extent that it is expected that they
will be recovered from customers through inclusion in future rates.

Other subsidiaries follow the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, future tax
liabilities and assets are recognized for the estimated tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Future tax liabilities and
assets are measured using enacted and substantively enacted tax rates. The effect on future tax liabilities and assets
of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that the change occurs.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or net realizable value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and unamortized contributions by
utility customers for extensions to plant.

Regulated operations include in property, plant and equipment an allowance for funds used during construction at

rates approved by the AEUB for debt and equity capital. Property, plant and equipment in the other subsidiaries
include capitalized interest incurred during construction.

7 ATCO



1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Certain regulated additions are made with the assistance of non-refundable cash contributions from customers when
the estimated revenue is less than the cost of providing service or where special equipment is needed to supply the
customers’ specific requirements. These contributions are amortized on the same basis as, and offset the
depreciation charge of, the assets to which they relate.

Depreciation is provided on assets on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation rates for
regulated assets, excluding Alberta Power (2000)’s generating plants, are approved by the AEUB and include a
provision for future removal costs and site restoration costs (see the accounting policy for asset retirement
obligations below). On retirement of depreciable regulated assets, the accumulated depreciation is charged with the
cost of the retired unit, net disposal costs and site restoration costs.

An impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets with finite lives, deferred operating costs and
long term prepaid expenses is recognized in earnings when the asset’s carrying value exceeds the total cash flows
expected from its use and eventual disposition. The impairment loss is then calculated as the difference between the
asset’s carrying value and its fair value, which is determined using present value techniques.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized. The carrying value of goodwill is subject to an impairment test annually, or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicate impairment. If the carrying value of the reporting unit to which
goodwill has been assigned exceeds its fair value, then, with respect to the reporting unit’s goodwill, any excess of
its carrying value over its fair value is expensed.

Deferred Financing Charges

Issue costs of long term debt are amortized over the life of the debt, issue costs of preferred shares relating to
regulated operations are amortized over the expected life of the issue and issue costs of preferred shares relating to
other subsidiaries are charged to retained earnings. Unamortized premiums and issue costs of redeemed long term
debt and preferred shares relating to regulated operations are amortized over the life of the issue funding the
redemption.

Deferred Availability Incentives

Under the terms of the PPA’s, the Corporation is subject to an incentive/penalty regime related to generating unit
availability. Incentives are paid to the Corporation by the PPA counterparties for availability in excess of
predetermined targets, whereas penalties are paid by the Corporation to the PPA counterparties when the availability
targets are not achieved.

Accumulated incentives in excess of accumulated penalties are deferred. For any of the individual PPA’s, should
accumulated incentives plus estimated future incentives exceed accumulated penalties plus estimated future
penalties, the excess will be amortized to revenues on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the PPA’s.
Should accumulated penalties plus estimated future penalties exceed accumulated incentives plus estimated future
incentives, the shortfall will be expensed in the year the shortfall occurs.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Asset retirement obligations are legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long lived assets. To the
extent that they can be quantified, these obligations are measured and recognized at fair value, which is determined
using present value techniques.

An asset retirement obligation is recorded as a liability in deferred credits, with a corresponding increase to property,
plant and equipment. The liability is accreted over the estimated time period until settlement of the obligation, with
the accretion expense included in depreciation and amortization. The asset is depreciated over its estimated useful
life.

g ATCO



1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Asset retirement obligations for regulated natural gas and electric transmission and distribution assets were not
recognized as the Corporation expects to use the assets in service for an indefinite period. As such, no final removal
date can be determined and, consequently, a reasonable estimate of the related retirement obligations cannot be
made at this time. Asset retirement obligations have been recorded for the regulated generating plants of Alberta
Power (2000) and other generating plants and natural gas liquids extraction and processing plants.

Long Term Debt Due Within One Year

When the Corporation intends to refinance long term debt due within one year on a long term basis and there is a
written undertaking from an underwriter to act on the Corporation’s behalf with respect thereto, or sufficient
capacity exists under long term bank loan agreements to issue commercial paper or assume bank loans, then long
term debt due within one year is classified as long term.

Hedging

In conducting its business, the Corporation uses various instruments, including forward contracts, swaps and
options, to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. All
such instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purposes.

The Corporation designates each derivative instrument as a hedge of specific assets or liabilities on the balance sheet
or specific firm commitments or anticipated transactions. The Corporation also assesses, both at the hedge’s
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivative instruments that are used in hedging transactions are
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged items.

Payments or receipts on derivative instruments that are designated and effective as hedges are recognized
concurrently with, and in the same financial category as, the hedged item.

If a derivative instrument is terminated or ceases to be effective as a hedge prior to maturity, the gain or loss at that
date is deferred and recognized in income concurrently with the hedged item. Subsequent changes in the value of the
derivative instrument are reflected in income. If the designated hedged item is sold, extinguished or matures prior to
the termination of the related derivative instrument, the gain or loss at that date on such derivative instrument is
recognized in income.

Employee Future Benefits

The Corporation accrues for its obligations under defined benefit pension and other post employment benefit plans.
Costs of these benefits are determined using the projected benefits method prorated on service and reflects
management’s best estimates of investment returns, wage and salary increases, age at retirement and expected health
care costs.

Pension plan assets at the end of the year are reported at market value. The expected long term rate of return on plan
assets is determined at the beginning of the year on the basis of the long bond yield rate at the beginning of the year
plus an equity and management premium that reflects the plan asset mix. Expected return on plan assets for the year
is calculated by applying the expected long term rate of return to the market related value of plan assets, which is the
average of the market value of plan assets at the end of the preceding three years.

Accrued benefit obligations at the end of the year are determined using a discount rate that reflects market interest
rates on high quality corporate bonds that match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments.

Experience gains and losses and the effect of changes in assumptions in excess of 10% of the greater of the accrued
benefit obligations or the market value of plan assets, adjustments resulting from plan amendments and the net
transitional liability or asset, which arose upon the adoption in 2000 of the current accounting standard, are
amortized over the estimated average remaining service life of employees.

9 ATCO



1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Pursuant to an AEUB decision effective January 1, 2000, the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000),
are required to expense contributions for other post employment benefit and certain other defined benefit pension
plans as paid. The differences between the amounts accrued and paid are deferred in other assets.

Employer contributions to the defined contribution pension plans are expensed as paid.
Stock Based Compensation Plans

The Corporation expenses stock options granted by ATCO Ltd. and its subsidiary, Canadian Utilities Limited, on
and after January 1, 2002; no compensation expense is recorded for stock options granted prior to January 1, 2002 as
permitted by GAAP. The Corporation determines the fair value of the options on the date of grant using an option
pricing model and recognizes the fair value over the vesting period of the options granted. The fair value of the
ATCO Ltd. options is recorded as compensation expense and contributed surplus. Contributed surplus is reduced as
the ATCO Ltd. options are exercised and the amount initially recorded in contributed surplus is credited to Class I
and Class II share capital.  The fair value of the Canadian Utilities Limited options is recorded as compensation
expense and non-controlling interests. Non-controlling interests remain unchanged when Canadian Utilities Limited
stock options are exercised as Canadian Ultilities Limited’s share capital and contributed surplus are both included in
non-controlling interests.

No compensation expense is recognized when share appreciation rights are granted. Prior to vesting, compensation
expense arising from an increase or decrease in the market price of the shares over the base value of the rights is
accrued equally over the remaining months to the date of vesting. After that date, compensation expense arising
from an increase or decrease in the market price of the shares is recognized monthly in earnings.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of self-sustaining foreign operations are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange
in effect at the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses are translated at the average monthly rates of exchange
during the year. Gains or losses on translation of self-sustaining foreign operations are included in the foreign
currency translation adjustment in share owners’ equity.

Monetary assets and liabilities of integrated foreign operations are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of
exchange in effect at the balance sheet date, non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at rates of exchange in
effect when the assets were acquired or liabilities incurred, and revenues and expenses are translated at the average
monthly rates of exchange for the year. Gains or losses on translation of integrated foreign operations are
recognized in earnings.

Transactions undertaken by Canadian operations that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at the transaction date.

2. Accounting for rate regulated operations
Nature and economic effects of rate regulation

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines (the “utilities”) are regulated primarily by the AEUB, which
administers acts and regulations covering such matters as rates, financing, accounting, construction, operation and
service area.

The generating plants of Alberta Power (2000) were regulated by the AEUB until December 31, 2000 but are now
governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that were approved by the AEUB. These plants are included in regulated
operations primarily because the PPA’s are designed to allow the owners of generating plants constructed before
January 1, 1996 to recover their forecast fixed and variable costs and to earn a return at the rate specified in the
PPA’s. The plants will become deregulated upon the expiry of the PPA’s. Each PPA is to remain in effect until the
earlier of the last day of the estimated life of the related generating plant and December 31, 2020.

10 ATCO



2. Accounting for rate regulated operations (continued)

The utilities are subject to a cost of service regulatory mechanism under which the AEUB establishes the revenues
required (i) to recover the forecast operating costs, including depreciation and amortization and income taxes, of
providing the regulated service, and (ii) to provide a fair and reasonable return on utility investment, or rate base.
Whereas actual operating conditions may vary from forecast, actual returns achieved can differ from approved
returns,

Rate base for each utility is the aggregate of the AEUB approved investment in property, plant and equipment, less
accumulated depreciation, plus an allowance for working capital. Rate base also excludes no-cost capital, which
consists of unamortized contributions by utility customers for extensions to plant. The utilities earn a return on rate
base intended to meet the cost of the debt and preferred share components of rate base and to provide share owners
with a fair return on the common equity component of rate base.

The AEUB approves rates of return for the debt and preferred share components of rate base based on the actual or
forecast weighted average cost of each utility’s debt and preferred shares. On July 2, 2004, the AEUB established a
standardized approach for determining the rate of return on common equity for each utility regulated by the AEUB.
This rate of return will be adjusted annually by 75% of the change in long term Government of Canada bond yield as
forecast in the November Consensus Forecast, adjusted for the average difference between the 10 year and 30 year
Government of Canada bond yields for the month of October as reported in the National Post. In January 2006, the
AEUB clarified that the generic return on equity determined on an annual basis in accordance with the generic cost
of capital decision should apply to each year of the test period in the utilities’ applications. If no rate applications
are filed for a particular year, then there will be no adjustment to the common equity rate of return for that year.

The AEUB also established the appropriate capital structure for each utility and determined that any proposed
changes to the approved capital structure which result from a material change in the investment risk of a utility will
be addressed at utility specific rate applications.

Under the cost of service methodology, the utilities seek approval for their revenue requirement either through
submission of general rate applications to the AEUB or a negotiated settlement process with interested parties. In
the latter case, the AEUB monitors the negotiated settlement process and approves any agreement that is reached.
The AEUB may approve interim rates, subject to final determination.

Financial statement effects of rate regulation

Certain items in these consolidated financial statements are accounted for differently than they would be in the
absence of rate regulation. CICA recommendations do not require that assets and liabilities arising from rate
regulation be recognized and measured in accordance with the primary sources of GAAP.

Where regulatory decisions dictate, the utilities defer certain costs or revenues as assets or liabilities on the balance
sheet and record them as expenses or revenues in the earnings statement as they collect or refund amounts through
future customer rates. Any adjustments to these deferred amounts are recognized in earnings in the period that the
AEUB renders a subsequent decision.

Circumstances in which rate regulation affects the accounting for a transaction or event are described below. For
these regulatory items, the expected recovery or settlement period, or likelihood of recovery or settlement, is
affected by risks and uncertainties relating to the ultimate authority of the regulator in determining the item’s
treatment for rate setting purposes, and, unless specifically indicated, is indeterminate.
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2. Accounting for rate regulated operations (continued)

The regulatory assets and liabilities comprise the following:

2005 2004
Regulatory assets — current:
Deferred hearing costs $ 88 b -
Other regulatory assets 10.3 5.4
19.1 5.4
Regulatory assets — non-current:
Regulatory other post employment benefits asset (Note 20) 22.0 16.8
Deferred electricity costs 5.4 -
Deferred hearing costs 1.6 4.9
Reserves for injuries and damages 54 7.6
Other regulatory assets 0.6 1.1
35.0 304
$ 54.1 $ 358
Regulatory liabilities — current:
Deferred electricity cost recoveries $ 4.0 $11.7
Deferred natural gas cost recoveries - 09
Reserves for injuries and damages 0.8 -
Other regulatory liabilities 1.6 1.0
6.4 13.6
Regulatory liabilities — non-current:
Regulatory pension liability (Note 20) 1394 137.6
Deferred royalty credits 18.1 14.1
Deferred electricity cost recoveries - 10.3
Deferred hearing costs 2.6 1.9
Reserves for injuries and damages 0.8 1.7
Other regulatory liabilities 1.0 -
161.9 165.6
$168.3 $179.2

Employee future benefits

The Corporation accrues for its obligations under defined benefit pension and other post employment benefit plans.
The regulatory asset (liability) reflects an AEUB decision, effective January 1, 2000, to record costs of employee
future benefits in the utilities when paid rather than accrued. The variances between the amounts paid and accrued
for each of the defined benefit pension plans and the other post employment benefit plans will vary depending on the
performance of plan assets and the actuarial valuations of plan obligations. These variances will be deferred until
the plans are paid, settled or terminated.

GAAP requires that the variances between the amounts accrued and paid be recognized as an expense or reduction
in expense in the period in which they are accrued. Consequently, defined benefit pension plan cost in 2005 would
have been $1.6 million lower (2004 — $10.2 million lower), and other post employment benefit plan cost in 2005
would have been $3.3 million higher (2004 — $2.5 million higher), in the absence of rate regulation.

Deferred electricity costs (recoveries)

Variances between ATCO Electric’s actual and forecast transmission access payments may arise due to changes in
tanffs charged by the Alberta Power Pool. The amount included in customer rates is based on forecast cost.
Revenues are adjusted for changes in tariffs, and the variances are deferred until approval from the AEUB is
obtained for refund to or collection from customers, which is expected to occur in the following year. GAAP
requires that revenues be based on the rates approved by the AEUB and not adjusted for variances between forecast
and actual costs.
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2. Accounting for rate regulated operations (continued)

In Alberta, major transmission capital projects are planned by the Alberta Power Pool and directly assigned to one of
the transmission facility owners in the province. Revenue requirement includes a return on forecast rate base.
Whereas actual capital costs may vary from forecast capital costs, variances may arise between the return on
forecast rate base and the return on actual rate base. Revenues are adjusted for these variances, and the variances are
deferred until approval from the AEUB is obtained for refund to or collection from the Alberta Power Pool, which is
expected to ocecur in the following year. GAAP requires that revenues be based on the rates approved by the AEUB
and not adjusted for variances between the returns on forecast and actual rate base.

Consequently, revenues in 2005 would have been $23.4 million lower (2004 — $4.8 million higher) in the absence of
rate regulation.

Deferred hearing costs

The utilities incur hearing costs on an ongoing basis associated with various AEUB regulatory proceedings. These
costs are comprised primarily of legal and consulting expenses incurred by the utilities in addition to costs incurred
by intervenor groups that have been reimbursed by the utilities as directed by the AEUB. Hearing costs are deferred
to the balance sheet and are expensed using AEUB approved annual amounts that are collected through customer
rates. Variances between the approved annual amounts and actual costs incurred are deferred until the next general
rate application or until a specific application is made to the AEUB requesting recovery from or refund to customers.
GAAP requires that hearing costs be expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Consequently, expenses in
2005 would have been $4.0 million higher (2004 — $5.8 million lower) in the absence of rate regulation.

Reserves for injuries and damages

The AEUB has approved the use of reserves for injuries and damages by the utilities as a means of self-insurance.
The reserves for injuries and damages are established based on annual amounts approved by the AEUB to be
expensed by each utility and collected through customer rates. Variances between the approved annual amounts and
actual costs incurred are deferred until the following general rate application or until a specific application is made
to the AEUB requesting recovery from or refund to customers. GAAP requires that claims be expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Consequently, expenses in 2005 would have been $1.1 million lower (2004 —
$2.5 million higher) in the absence of rate regulation.

For Alberta Power (2000), reserves for injuries and damages are recoverable under the terms of the PPA’s on a
straight line basis through 2008. GAAP requires that claims be expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Consequently, expenses in 2005 would have been $1.0 million lower (2004 — $1.0 million lower) in the absence of
rate regufation.

Deferred royalty credits

Under the terms of PPA’s, the compensation for certain royalties incurred by Alberta Power (2000) for coal supply
are averaged over the term of each PPA. As such, royalty costs incurred are deferred and expensed on the same
average cost basis as reflected in the underlying PPA revenues, GAAP requires that royalty costs be expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Consequently, expenses in 2005 would have been $4.0 million lower (2004 —
$3.8 million lower) in the absence of rate regulation.

Other regulatory assets and liabilities
Other regulatory assets and liabilities include the following:

a) ATCO Gas has received AEUB approval to defer:

i) Bad debt and collection agency fees incurred after June 1, 2004 related to billings prior to that date (see
transfer of retail energy supply businesses in Note 3) and associated late payment charges net of bad debt
recoveries of $1.4 million (2004 — $2.6 million);

if) Charges from the Government of Alberta for funding of the office of the Utilities Consumer Advocate and
the Consumer Protection and Consumer Choice Campaign of $1.0 million (2004 — $1.1 million); and,

13 ATCO



2. Accounting for rate regulated operations (continued)

1ii) Removal and abandonment costs related to previously disposed of production properties of $5.0 million
(2004 — $1.6 million).

GAAP requires that these costs be expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Consequently, expenses
in 2005 would have been $2.1 million higher (2004 — $4.5 million higher) in the absence of rate regulation.
With the exception of $0.5 million of deferred Utilities Consumer Advocate costs which are deferred in non-
current regulatory assets in the balance sheet, these assets are included in current regulatory assets and are
recoverable from customers in 2006.

b) In October 2005, ATCO Gas filed an application with the AEUB to approve the sale of its Red Deer Operating
Centre. In December 2005, the AEUB approved the sale and deferred its decision on the distribution of net
proceeds of $1.0 million until the Supreme Court of Canada renders a judgment in the appeal regarding the
Calgary Stores Block disposition and allocation of proceeds thereon. The Supreme Court of Canada rendered
its decision on the Calgary Stores Block matter on February 9, 2006. ATCO Gas is now required to submit a
filing to the AEUB to approve the allocation of the net proceeds. The net proceeds of the sale remain in trust
pending AEUB approval. GAAP requires that gains and losses related to asset dispositions be recognized in the
period the disposition was made. Consequently, revenues in 2005 would have been $1.0 million higher in the
absence of rate regulation. This liability is included in non-current regulatory liabilities in the balance sheet.

¢) ATCO Pipelines has received AEUB approval to defer the variances between actual and AEUB approved
forecast revenues and costs associated with the movement (receipt or delivery) of natural gas between ATCO
Pipelines’ system and other connected pipeline systems. ATCO Pipelines expects that the recovery of these
deferral accounts will occur in the next general rate application. GAAP requires that actual revenues and costs
be recognized in the period in which they are earned or incurred. Consequently, revenues in 2005 would have
been $0.1 million lower (2004 — $12.6 million lower) and expenses would have been $1.6 million lower (2004 ~
$6.8 million lower) in the absence of rate regulation. On the balance sheet, assets of $2.2 million (2004 —
$0.1 million) are included in current regulatory assets, and liabilities of $1.6 million (2004 — $1.0 million) are
included in current regulatory liabilities.

d) ATCO Pipelines has received AEUB approval to establish a deferral account for the Salt Cavern Storage facility
to collect (i) the revenue requirements for return on rate base and associated income taxes related to the
necessary working capital for the natural gas in storage, and (i) the gains or losses associated with the sale of
natural gas in the market upon withdrawal from storage.. ATCO Pipelines is required to submit an application
to the AEUB, either separately or in conjunction with a general rate application for that particular year,
requesting recovery from or refund to customers of the deferral amount should the deferral account exceed
$2.0 million at the end of the annual injection/withdrawal cycle on March 31 of a particular year. GAAP
requires that actual revenues and costs be recognized in the period in which they are eamed or incurred.
Consequently, revenues in 2005 would have been $1.2 million lower (2004 — nil) in the absence of rate
regulation. Assets of $1.2 million (2004 — nil) are included in current regulatory assets in the balance sheet.

Other items affected by rate regulation

The AEUB permits an allowance for funds used (“AFU”), based on each utility’s weighted average cost of capital,
to be included in rate base. AFU is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment for financial reporting
purposes, and is depreciated as part of the total cost of the related asset, based on the expectation that depreciation
expense, including the AFU component, will be approved for inclusion in future customer rates. Since AFU
includes preferred share and common equity components, it exceeds the amount allowed to be capitalized in similar
circumstances in the absence of rate regulation.

The utilities and the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000) follow the method of accounting for income taxes
that is consistent with the method of determining the income tax component of its rates. When future income taxes
are not included in the income tax component of current rates, such future income taxes are not recognized to the
extent that they will be recovered from customers through inclusion in future rates. GAAP requires the recognition
of all future income tax liabilities and future tax assets in the absence of rate regulation (see Note 7).
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3. Transfer of retail energy supply businesses

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Energy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML"™), a subsidiary of Centrica plc. Proceeds of the
transfer were $90 million, of which $45 million was paid at closing, and the remainder was paid on May 4, 2005.
Net proceeds, after adjustments related to legal, transition and other deferred costs pertaining to the transfer of the
retail energy supply businesses, resulted in a gain of $63.3 million before income taxes of $8.2 million and non-
controlling interests of $26.6 million. This transfer increased 2004 earnings by $28.5 million.

The Corporation’s revenues and natural gas supply and purchased power costs after May 4, 2004 were reduced
accordingly for 2004 and thereafter. Subsequent to May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas continued to purchase natural gas on
behalf of DEML until the transfer of the relevant ATCO Gas natural gas purchase contracts to DEML was
completed in September 2004. There will be no ongoing impact on earnings resulting from the transfer of these
businesses as natural gas and electricity have historically been sold to customers on a “no-margin” basis. ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric continue to own and operate the natural gas and electricity distribution systems used to
deliver energy.

ATCO Pipelines, Northland Utilities (NWT), Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) and Yukon Electrical did not
participate in this transfer and continue to purchase natural gas and electricity for sale to customers. In addition, the
AEUB issued a decision that directed ATCO Gas to continue to reserve for the benefit of utility customers
16.7 petajoules of storage capacity at its Carbon storage facility for the 2004/2005 storage year, which ended on
March 31, 2005, and issued a decision that terminates ATCO Pipelines' obligation to purchase natural gas for sale to
customers effective October 31, 2005.

Under the various transaction agreements, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric have transferred to DEML certain retail
functions, including the supply of natural gas and electricity to customers and billing and customer care functions
(“the transferred functions™).

If DEML fails to perform all or part of the transferred functions, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric will be required
under existing legislation to perform such functions in the interim until DEML is able to perform such functions. In
certain events (including where DEML fails to supply natural gas and/or electricity and ATCO Gas and/or ATCO
Electric are ordered by the AEUB to do so), the agreements will terminate and the functions will revert to ATCO
Gas and/or ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer proceeds to DEML by ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric.

Centrica plc, DEML’s parent, has provided a $300 million guarantee supported by a $235 million letter of credit in
respect of DEML’s obligations to ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric and ATCO I-Tek Business Services in respect of the
ongoing relationships contemplated under the transaction agreements. The Centrica guarantee and letter of credit
include limits for certain categories of claims, which limits cease to apply if the agreements are terminated. If the
amount available to be drawn under the letter of credit at any time falls below $200 million, the agreements with
DEML will terminate and the functions will revert to ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer
proceeds to DEML by ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric.

Canadian Utilities Limited has provided a guarantee of ATCO Gas’, ATCO Electric’s and ATCO I-Tek Business
Services’ payment and indemnity obligations in respect of the ongoing relationships contemplated under the
transaction agreements.

4. Regulatory matters

In May 2005, ATCO Electric filed a general tariff application with the AEUB for the 2005 and 2006 test years
requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and operating costs
associated with increased rate base in Alberta. A decision from the AEUB on the general tariff application is not
expected until March 2006. In May and June 2005, ATCO Electric filed applications requesting interim refundable
rates for distribution and transmission operations, pending the AEUB’s decision on the general tariff application.
On July 14, 2005, ATCO Electric received a decision from the AEUB approving its requested interim refundable
rates for distribution operations. On September 7, 2005, ATCO Electric received a decision from the AEUB
approving an interim refundable rate increase of $5.0 million for transmission operations. Revenues associated with
these interim refundable rates were recorded in 2005.
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4. Regulatory matters (continued)

On January 27, 2006, ATCO Gas received a decision on its general rate application which was filed with the AEUB
in May 2005 for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test years. The decision establishes the amount of revenue ATCO Gas can
recover through distribution rates for natural gas distribution service to its customers over the period of 2005 to
2007. In May 2005, ATCO Gas submitted a general rate application with the AEUB for the 2005, 2006 and 2007
test years. In August 2005, the AEUB approved interim refundable rates which recognized only 28% of the
increased operating costs and rate base additions requested in the original application. On January 27, 2006, ATCO
Gas received an AEUB decision which did not materially change the earnings based on the 2005 interim rates. The
final impact of the decision will not be known until two subsequent regulatory processes are finalized.

The Corporation has a number of other regulatory filings and regulatory hearing submissions before the AEUB for
which decisions have not been received. The outcome of these matters cannot be determined at this time.

5. TXU Europe settlement

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited (“TXU Europe™) which had a long term “off take” agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by
the 1,000 megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking
Power, has a 25.5% equity interest. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of contract related to
TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating plant. Following
negotiations with the administrators, an agreement has now been reached with respect to Barking Power’s claim.

On March 30, 2005, the Corporation announced that Barking Power will receive £179.3 million (approximately
$410 million) in settlement of its claim, of which the Corporation’s share is approximately $104 million. Barking
Power received a first distribution of £112.3 million (approximately $257 million) on March 30, 2005, of which the
Corporation’s share was $65.4 million. Income taxes of approximately $17.7 million relating to this distribution
have been paid. A second distribution of £32.2 million (approximately $69.6 million) was received on August 2,
2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $17.7 million, and a third distribution of £31.8 million (approximately
$65.2 million) was received on January 19, 2006, of which the Corporation’s share was $16.6 million. Income taxes
of approximately $10.3 million relating to the second and third distributions will be paid as part of the Corporation’s
normal tax installments. A final distribution is expected in the second quarter of 2006.

Based on the foreign currency exchange rate in effect on March 30, 2005, the Corporation’s share of this settlement
is expected to generate earnings after income taxes and non-controlling interests of approximately $35 million,
which will be recognized over the remaining term of the TXU Europe contract to September 30, 2010, at
approximately $5.5 million per year. These earnings will be dependent upon foreign currency exchange rates in
effect at the time that the earnings are recognized.

6. Interest and other income

2005 2004
Interest $32.1 $23.6
Allowance for funds used by regulated operations 7.0 6.2
Other 2.8 3.1

$41.9 £32.9
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7. Income taxes

The income tax provision differs from that computed using the statutory tax rates for the following reasons:

2005 2004

Earnings before income taxes and non-controlling interests $500.9 % $516.5 %
Income taxes, at statutory rates $203.5 40.6 $211.1 40.9
Dividends on preferred shares 35 0.7 35 0.7
Federal general tax reduction (18.9) 3.8) (18.3) (3.5)
Manufacturing and processing tax credit 7.5) (1.5) .7) (1.5)
Resource allowance 2.8) (0.5) (3.3) (0.6)
Crown royalties and other non-deductible Crown payments 1.1 0.2 0.7 0.1
Large Corporations Tax 8.5 1.7 8.6 1.7
Foreign tax rate variance (8.0) (1.6) (6.0) (1.2)
Non-deductible interest on foreign financing 1.4 0.3 1.8 0.3
Unrecorded future income taxes relating to regulated operations 1.0 0.2 4.4 09
Transfer of retail energy supply businesses - - (12.1) (2.3)
Change in future income taxes resulting from reduction in

tax rates - - 2.4 (0.5)
Change in method of accounting for future income taxes in

certain regulated operations - - (15.8) 3.0
Income tax reassessment - - 6.7 1.3
Other 59 1.2 1.2 0.2

187.7 37.5 172.4 33.4

Current income taxes - 196.4 192.9
Future income taxes (recoveries) $ 8.7 $(20.5)

M The federal general tax reduction of 7% (2004 — 7%) is applicable to earnings that have not otherwise benefited
from the manufacturing and processing tax credit and/or the resource allowance. An additional federal tax
reduction of 3% (2004 — 2%) is applicable to earnings that have benefited from the resource allowance.

The future income tax liabilities (assets) comprise the following:

2005 2004
Property, plant and equipment $243.7 $2337
Deferred assets and liabilities (23.8) 1.5
Tax loss carryforwards ©0.3) (1.0)
Other 1.5 3.1

221.1 2373

Less: Arnounts included in current future income taxes 4.1 (0.3)

$217.0 $237.6

Unrecorded future income tax liabilities of the regulated operations amounted to $171.3 million at
December 31, 2005. This balance includes $28.2 million in respect of Alberta Power (2000)’s generating plants,
which will be recovered through future payments received in respect of the PPA’s.

Expected future recoveries relating to tax loss carryforwards have been recorded in the amount of $0.3 million, of
which $0.1 million begins to expire in 2009 and $0.2 million does not expire. In addition, there are tax loss
carryforwards of $0.7 million for Canadian subsidiary corporations and tax loss carryforwards of $10.3 million for
foreign subsidiary corporations for which no tax benefit has been recorded. These losses begin to expire in 2010.

Income taxes paid amounted to $184.6 million (2004 — $135.6 million).
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7. Income taxes (continued)

On March 3, 2005, the Supreme Court of Canada dismissed the Corporation’s application for leave to appeal and
decided not to hear the Corporation’s appeal of a $6.7 million income tax reassessment relating to its 1996 disposal
of ATCOR Resources Ltd. (“ATCOR”).

In 2001, the Corporation received and paid an income tax reassessment of $8.4 million relating to the 1996 disposal
of ATCOR. The Corporation did not agree with this reassessment and appealed the matter to the courts.

In August 2003, the Corporation was successful in its appeal to the Tax Court of Canada. The Federal Government
appealed the Tax Court’s decision to the Federal Court of Appeal, which issued a decision on June 18, 2004 in favor
of the Corporation for $1.7 million of the $8.4 million reassessment. The Federal Government did not appeal the
Federal Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada. The Corporation completed its application for
leave to appeal the Federal Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada in October 2004,

Due to the uncertainty as to whether the Supreme Court of Canada would hear the Corporation’s appeal, the
Corporation charged $6.7 million to earnings in its 2004 consolidated financial statements. Therefore, there was no
material effect to the Corporation’s 2005 consolidated financial statements as a result of the Supreme Court of
Canada’s decision to not hear the Corporation’s appeal.

8. Non-controlling interests

2005 2004
Non-controlling interests in Canadian Ultilities:
Equity preferred shares
Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares, at 5.3% to 6.6% $ 426.5 § 4265
Perpetual Cumulative Second Preferred Shares, at 5.05% to 5.25% 210.0 210.0
Class A non-voting and Class B common shares 1,076.1 1,024.4
$1,712.6 $1,660.9
Non-controlling interests in the earnings of Canadian Ultilities:
Equity preferred share dividends $ 358 $§ 358
Farningg attributable to Class A non-voting and Class B common shares 128.4 148.9
$ 164.2 $ 184.7
9. Property, plant and equipment
2005 2004
Composite
Depreciation Accumulated Accumulated
Rates Cost Depreciation Cost Depreciation
Utilities 3.6% $6,022.0 $2,240.8 $5,593.1 $2,082.1
Power Generation 3.3% 2,981.7 943.5 2,996.7 864.5
Global Enterprises 8.8% 269.2 126.1 2525 1183
Industrials 8.5% 217.8 59.2 176.3 52.2
Other 4.2% 63.4 13.3 61.2 11.9
$9,554.1 3,382.9 $9,079.8 3,129.0

Property, plant and equipment,
less accumulated depreciation 6,171.2 5,950.8
Unamortized contributions
by utility customers for
extensions to plant 569.8 5459
$5,601.4 $5,404.9
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9. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Accumulated depreciation includes amounts provided for future removal and site restoration costs, net of salvage

value, of $323.6 million (2004 — $297.9 million).

Composite depreciation rates reflect total depreciation in the year as a percentage of mid-year cost, excluding
construction work-in-progress of $91.1 million (2004 — $75.7 million) and non-depreciable assets of $61.7 million

(2004 — $58.6 million).

10. Other assets

2005 2004
Accrued pension asset (Note 20) $192.6 $194.6
Security deposits for debt 20.0 231
Deferred financing charges @ 27.8 30.2
Other 327 313

$273.1 $279.2

M

$8.1 million (2004 — $12.4 million).
(2)
(2004 — $3.4 million).

11. Bank indebtedness and credit lines

Amortization of certain other assets, which was recorded in depreciation and amortization, amounted to

Amortization of deferred financing charges, which was recorded in interest expense, amounted to $3.0 million

At December 31, 2005, bank indebtedness consists of $23.3 million (2004 — $11.2 million), at interest rates from
3.07% to 8.0%, secured by a general assignment of accounts receivable, inventories and property, plant and

equipment of subsidiary corporations.

At December 31, 2005, the Corporation has the following credit lines that enable it to obtain financing for general

business purposes:

2005 2004
Total Used Available Total Used Available
Long term committed $ 585.8 $58.6 $ 5272 $ 588.2 $ 59.8 $ 5284
Short term committed 600.0 - 600.0 614.1 223 591.8
Uncomrnitted 125.4 36.7 88.7 115.3 31.1 84.2
$1,311.2 $95.3 $1,215.9 $1,317.6 $113.2 $1,204.4

Of the $95.3 million used at December 31, 2005, $48.5 million is included in long term debt, $23.3 million is
included in bank indebtedness and $23.5 million represents outstanding letters of credit.
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12. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt

Long term debt

2005 2004
Canadian Utilities
CU Inc. debentures — unsecured
1995 Series 8.43% due June 2005 S - $ 125.0
2001 4.84% due November 2006 175.0 175.0
2002 4.801% due November 2007 50.0 50.0
2000 6.97% due June 2008 100.0 100.0
1989 Series 10.20% due November 2009 125.0 125.0
1990 Series 11.40% due August 2010 125.0 125.0
2000 7.05% due June 2011 100.0 100.0
2004 5.096% due November 2014 100.0 100.0
2002 6.145% due November 2017 150.0 150.0
2004 5.432% due January 2019 180.0 180.0
1999 Series 6.8% due August 2019 300.0 300.0
1990 Second Series 11.77% due November 2020 100.0 100.0
1991 Series 9.92% due April 2022 125.0 125.0
1992 Series 9.40% due May 2023 100.0 100.0
2004 5.896% due November 2034 200.0 200.0
2005 5.183% due November 2035 185.0 -
Canadian Ultilities Limited debentures — unsecured
2002 6.14% due November 2012 100.0 100.0
2,215.0 2,155.0
ATCO Power Australia Pty Ltd. credit facility, at Bank Bill rates,
payable in Australian dollars, unsecured - 53
ATCO Power Canada Ltd. credit facility, at BA rates, due March 2007,
secured by a pledge of cash " 11.5 11.5
Other long term obligation, at 5.0%, due June 2007, unsecured 4.5 4.5
ATCO Investments Lid.
Term loan on ATCO Centre I1, at BA rates, due March 2010, secured by
the building 6.0 6.4
ATCO Structures Inc.
Revolving loan, at BA rates, due May 2007, secured by property, plant
and equipment 22.5 20.0
Other long term obligations, at rates of 4.8% to 8.0% 0.1 0.2
ATCO Structures Pty Ltd.
Revolving loan, at Bank Bill rates, due August 2007, payable in Australian
dollars, secured by property, plant and equipment 14.5 18.3
2,274.1 22212
Less: Amounts due within one year 0.6 59
$2,273.5 $2,215.3
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12. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)

Non-recourse long term debt

2005 2004
Canadian Utilities
Barking Power Limited project financing, payable in British pounds:
At fixed rates averaging 7.95%, due to 2010 $ 547 $ 722
At LIBOR, due to 2010 @ 89.6 118.4
Osborne Cogeneration Pty Ltd. proziect financing, payable in Australian dollars:
At Bank Bill rates, due to 2013 ¢ 1.8 2.3
At7.3325%, due to 2013 (V 344 42.6
ATCO Resources (20%) and Canadian Utilities (80%)
ATCO Power Alberta Limited Partnership (“APALP”) project financing:
At 7.54% to 2008, at LIBOR thereafter, due to 2016 " 4.8 6.4
At 7.317% to 2008, at LIBOR thereafter, due to 2016 6.7 10.1
At7.50% to 2011, at LIBOR thereafter, due to 2016 " 109.4 112.1
Joffre project financing:
At7.286%, dueto 2012 334 39.9
At 8.59%, due to 2020 40.0 40.0
Scotford project financing:
At 5.202%, due to 2008, at BA rates thereafter, due to 2014 V 57.8 63.0
At 5.202%, due to 2008, at LIBOR thereafter, due to 2014 14.5 15.8
At 7.93%, due to 2022 33.6 345
Muskeg River project financing:
At 5.247%, due 2007, at BA rates thereafter, due to 2014 55.5 59.7
At BA rates, due to 2014 0.3 0.5
At 7.56%, due to 2022 39.0 414
Brighton Beach project financing:
At 5.8367%, due 2009, at BA or Canadian Eurodollar rates thereafter,
due to 2019 11.8 12.2
At BA or Canadian Eurodollar rates, due to 2019 (V 3.1 1.7
At 6.575%, due to 2019 ) 473 49.4
At 6.924%, due to 2024 138.1 138.2
Cory project financing:
At BA rates, due to 2011 0.4 0.4
At 6.336%, due to 2011 4.1 49
At 7.586%, due to 2025 46.7 477
At 7.601%, due to 2026 41.4 42.1
868.4 955.5
Less: Amounts due within one year 64.1 55.8
$804.3 $899.7

BA — Bankers’ Acceptance
LIBOR — London Interbank Offered Rate

() The above interest rates have additional margin fees at a weighted average rate of 1.2% (2004 — 1.1%)

(Note 21).

The Corporation has fixed interest rates, either directly or through interest rate swap agreements, on 95%

(2004 — 94%) of total long term debt and non-recourse long term debt.
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12. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)

The non-recourse long term debt is secured by charges on the projects’ assets and by an assignment of the projects’
bank accounts, outstanding contracts and agreements. The book value of the pledged assets and bank accounts at
December 31, 2005 was $1,579.6 million (2004 — $1,579.1 million).

Guarantees

Canadian Utilities Limited has provided a number of guarantees related to ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’
obligations under their respective non-recourse loans associated with certain of their projects. ATCO Power (80%)
and ATCO Resources (20%) have a joint venture in these projects subject to guarantees, excluding Barking Power.
ATCO Ltd. has indemnified and agreed to reimburse Canadian Utilities Limited for any amounts it may be required
to pay under these guarantees in respect of ATCO Resources’ 20% interest. These guarantees cover the following
items:

a) Equity contributions — Represents equity funding requirements needed to complete construction of the project
being built. At December 31, 2005, there are no further obligations under this guarantee for the Brighton Beach
project financing.

b) Construction liens — Represents liens currently registered against project assets. Effective September 30,
2005, ATCO Power and ATCO Resources entered into an indemnity agreement with Brighton Beach Power
Ltd. obligating them to cover any cash shortfalls associated with clearing the construction liens registered
against the project. This agreement allowed the project to achieve financial completion under the terms of the
project financing agreement. The maximum amount of the indemnity is $25 million. Canadian Utilities
Limited issued a guarantee to Brighton Beach Power Ltd. guaranteeing the payments under the indemnity
agreement. The indemnity and the guarantee are reduced as the liens are settled.

¢) Project cash flows — Represents annual payments related to maintaining base case margins for electricity
prices on the merchant power component of the project, being 30 megawatts (“MW?”) for the Scotford project
and 60 MW for the Muskeg River project. These guarantees became effective upon the commercial operation
of the plants and exist until 2022, when the project debt is to be fully repaid. The amounts payable under these
guarantees will vary each year depending on the pool price received for the merchant power generated. Any
payments made to maintain the project base case margins will either be available for distribution to the owners
or be applied to mandatory prepayment of the project debt in accordance with the terms of the project financing
agreement depending upon the specific operating results of the plant. At December 31, 2005, no amounts were
outstanding under the guarantee.

d) Reserve amounts — Represents amounts to be set aside for major maintenance and debt service reserves as
stipulated in the project’s financing agreement. These reserves are intended to be funded with project cash
flows. To the extent that project cash flows are insufficient to meet reserve requirements, Canadian Utilities
Limited may choose to provide guarantees in lieu of ATCO Power providing security. At December 31, 2005,
the amount of the obligations under these guarantees is:

Project Major Maintenance Debt Service
APALP project financing Nil $17.0
Brighton Beach project financing Nil @ Nil
Cory project financing Nil © Nil
Joffre project financing Nil @ $53
Muskeg River project financing Nil © $6.3
Scotford project financing Nil $7.0

)
()
3

No major maintenance reserve required for this financing.
Reserve requirements of $4.3 million met with project cash flows.
Reserve requirements of $0.9 million met with project cash flows.
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12. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)

e) Prepaid operating and maintenance fee — Should ATCO Power cease to be operator of the APALP
generating plants as a result of a termination of the operating agreement, Canadian Utilities Limited has
guaranteed the payment of the unamortized portion of the prepaid operating and maintenance fee to APALP, the
proceeds of which are to be used to repay project debt in accordance with the project financing agreements.
This guarantee, which declines by $1.5 million per year, remains in effect until 2016, when the project debt is to
be fully repaid. At December 31, 2005, the maximum value of the guarantee is $39.0 million.

f) Purchase project assets — Represents an obligation to purchase the Scotford and Muskeg River projects at a
price sufficient to repay any outstanding project debt upon the occurrence of any one of the following very
limited events:

(1) where all of the following events have occurred:
o the insolvency of ATCO Power;
¢ the failure of the project debt lenders to complete a sale of the project pursuant to their security
within a fixed period of time; and
e the project purchaser of electricity and steam elects to terminate its purchase contracts due to the
insolvency of ATCO Power;
(if) where the project purchaser of electricity and steam does not remove ATCO Power as operator of the
project after an event of default under the project financing agreements in circumstances where such
default is either:

o adeliberate or willful breach of a project financing agreement; or
» where ATCO Power has failed to co-operate with the lenders in a sale of the projects; and
(iii) where the project purchaser of electricity and steam terminates its purchase contracts for the project as
a result of a default by ATCO Power’s project minority joint venturers. ATCO Power has the right to
cure any such default by acquiring the minority interest which is in default.

These guarantees remain in effect until the project debt is fully repaid. At December 31, 2005, no such events
have occurred.

Canadian Utilities Limited has also guaranteed ATCO Power’s duties to operate the Barking Power, Scotford and
Muskeg River generating plants in accordance with acceptable industry operating standards under the relevant
project contracts.

To date, Canadian Utilities Limited has not been required to pay any of its guaranteed obligations.

Minimum debt repayments

The minimum annual debt repayments for each of the next five years are as follows:

Non-Recourse

Long Term Debt Long Term Debt Total
2006 $175.6 $ 64.1 $ 2397
2007 81.0 57.3 138.3
2008 100.5 87.0 187.5
2009 125.5 79.2 204.7
2010 150.9 86.6 237.5
$633.5 $374.2 $1,007.7

Of the $239.7 million due in 2006, $175.0 million is to be refinanced and is, therefore, excluded from long term debt
due within one year in the balance sheet.
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12. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)
Interest expense

Interest on debt is as follows:

2005 2004
Long term debt $156.1 $150.1
Non-recourse long term debt 61.2 65.8
Notes payable - 0.7
Bank indebtedness 29 2.7
Amortization of deferred financing charges 3.0 34
Less: Capitalized on non-regulated projects - (1.2

$223.2 $215.5

Interest paid amounted to $219.8 million (2004 — $214.2 million).
Fair values
Fair values for the above debt, determined using quoted market prices for the same or similar issues, are shown

below. Where market prices are not available, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on
the Corporation’s current borrowing rate for similar borrowing arrangements.

2005 2004
Long term debt
Fixed rate $2,656.2 $2,536.7
Floating rate 54.6 615

$2,710.8 $2,598.2
Non-recourse long term debt
Fixed rate $ 831.6 $ 889.1
Floating rate 95.3 123.3

$ 926.9 $1,012.4
13. Deferred credits

2005 2004
Accrued other post employment benefits liability (Note 20) $ 36.5 § 285
Deferred revenues (Note 5) 59.6 6.4
Deferred availability incentives 59.7 46.1
Asset retirement obligations 63.0 354
Accrued equipment repairs and maintenance 10.8 11.4
Other 30.7 24.0

$260.3 $151.8

Deferred availability incentives

Amortization of deferred availability incentives, which was recorded in revenues, amounted to $8.9 million (2004 —
$7.6 million).

The amount to be amortized is dependent upon estimates of future generating unit availability and future electricity
prices over the term of the PPA’s. Each quarter, the Corporation uses these estimates to forecast the incentives to be
received from, less penalties to be paid to, the PPA counterparties. These forecasts are added to the accumulated
unamortized deferred availability incentives outstanding at the end of the quarter; the resulting total is divided by the
remaining term of the PPA to arrive at the amortization for the quarter.
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13. Deferred credits (continued)
Asset retirement obligations

Changes in asset retirement obligations are summarized below:

2005 2004
Obligations at beginning of year $35.4 $32.9
Obligations incurred 25.4 0.6
Accretion expense 2.2 1.9
Obligations at end of year $63.0 $354

The Corporation estimates the undiscounted amount of cash flow required to settle the asset retirement obligations is
approximately $130 million, which will be incurred between 2006 and 2052. The discount rates used to calculate
the fair value of the asset retirement obligations have a weighted average rate of 5.6%.

14. Preferred shares

Authorized and issued

Authorized: 8,000,000 Preferred shares, issuable in series.

Issued:
Stated Redemption 2005 2004
Value Dates Shares Amount Shares Amount
(dollars)

Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares
5.75% Series 3 $25.00 See below 6,000,000 $150.0 6,000,000 $150.0

Conversion by ATCO Lud.

On and after December 1, 2008, ATCO Ltd. may convert all or any of the Series 3 preferred shares into Class I Non-
Voting shares. The number of Class I Non-Voting shares into which each Series 3 preferred share may be converted
will be determined by dividing the applicable redemption price together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by
the greater of $2.00 and 95% of the weighted average trading price of Class I Non-Voting shares on the Toronto
Stock Exchange for a period of 20 consecutive trading days ending on the fourth day prior to the date specified for
conversion.

Conversion by the owner

On and after December 1, 2011, each Series 3 preferred share will be convertible at the option of the owner, on the
first day of March, June, September and December of each year, into that number of Class I Non-Voting shares
determined by dividing $25.00 together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by the greater of $2.00 and 95% of
the then current market price of the Class I Non-Voting shares. If an owner of Series 3 preferred shares elects to
convert any of the shares into Class I Non-Voting shares, ATCO Ltd. may elect to redeem the Series 3 preferred
shares for cash or arrange for the sale of such shares to substitute purchasers. Atany time, ATCO Ltd. may offer the
owners of the Series 3 preferred shares the right to convert into a further series of preferred shares.

Fair values

Fair values for preferred shares, determined using quoted market prices for the same or similar issues, are
$152.2 million (2004 — $173.9 million).
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14. Preferred shares (continued)
Redemption privileges

The Series 3 preferred shares are redeemable at the option of ATCO Ltd. commencing on December 1, 2008 at the
stated value plus a 4% premium for the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The redemption
premiurn declines by 2% in each succeeding 12 month period until December 1, 2010.

15. Class I and Class II shares

In July 2005, the Corporation’s board of directors approved a two-for-one share split of the outstanding Class I Non-
Voting and Class I Voting shares. The share split took the form of a stock dividend whereby share owners received
one additional Class I Non-Voting share for each Class I Non-Voting share held as of the record date and one
additional Class II Voting share for each Class II Voting share held as of the record date. The stock dividend was
paid on September 15, 2005 to share owners of record at the close of business on August 29, 2005, All share, stock
option and per share amounts have been retroactively restated to reflect this share split.

Authorized and issued

Class I Non-Voting Class IT Voting Total

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
Authorized: 100,000,000 50,000,000 150,000,000
Issued and outstanding:
December 31, 2003 52,574,562 $137.1 7,017,602 $1.8 59,592,164 $138.9
Purchased (322,000) (0.9) - - (322,000) (0.9)
Stock options exercised 522,400 6.2 - - 522,400 6.2
Converted: Class IT to Class I 32,198 - - (32,198) - - -
December 31, 2004 52,807,160 142.4 6,985,404 1.8 59,792,564 144.2
Purchased (226,000) 0.6) - - (226,000) 0.6)
Stock options exercised 354,200 4.7 - - 354,200 4.7
Converted: Class Il to Class I 25,386 - (25,386) - - -
December 31, 2005 52,960,746 $146.5 6,960,018 $1.8 59,920,764 $148.3

From January 1, 2006 to February 10, 2006, 78,600 Class I Non-Voting shares were issued with respect to the
exercises of stock options.

Earnings per share

Earnings per Class [ Non-Voting and Class II Voting share is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to
Class I and Class II shares by the weighted average shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is calculated
using the treasury stock method, which reflects the potential exercise of stock options on the weighted average
Class I Non-Voting and Class II Voting shares outstanding. The average number of shares used to calculate
earnings per share are as follows:

Three Months Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2005 2004 2005 2004
(Unaudited)
Weighted average shares outstanding 59,929,953 59,713,492 59,927,240 59,598,990
Effect of dilutive stock options 864,350 731,846 772,988 627,762
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 60,794,303 60,445,338 60,700,228 60,226,752

The Series 3 preferred shares are not included in the calculation of diluted eamings per Class I and Class II share
because ATCO Ltd. at this time intends to redeem the preferred shares wholly in cash.
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15. Class I and Class II shares (continued)
Share owner rights

Each Class II Voting share may be converted to one Class I Non-Voting share at the share owner’s option. In the
event an offer to purchase Class II Voting shares is made to all owners of Class II Voting shares, and is accepted and
taken up by the owners of a majority of such shares pursuant to such offer, then provided an offer is not made to the
owners of Class 1 Non-Voting shares on the same terms and conditions, the Class I Non-Voting shares shall be
entitled to the same voting rights as the Class II Voting shares. The two classes of shares rank equally in all other
respects.

Normal course issuer bid

On May 27, 2004, ATCO Ltd. commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the
outstanding Class I Non-Voting shares. The bid expired on May 26, 2005. Over the life of the bid, 304,000 shares
were purchased, of which 262,000 were purchased in 2004 and 42,000 were purchased in 2005. On May 27, 2005,
ATCO Ltd. commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the outstanding Class I Non-
Voting shares. The bid will expire on May 26, 2006. From May 27, 2005, to February 10, 2006, 184,000 shares
have been purchased, all of which were purchased in 2005.

16. Stock based compensation plans
Stock option plan

Of the 5,100,000 Class I Non-Voting shares reserved for issuance in respect of options under ATCO Ltd.’s stock
option plan, 1,145,600 Class I Non-Voting shares are available for issuance at December 31, 2005. Options may be
granted to directors, officers and key employees of ATCO Ltd. and its subsidiaries at an exercise price equal to the
weighted average of the trading price of the shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The vesting provisions and exercise period (which cannot exceed 10 years)
are determined at the time of grant.

Changes in shares under option are summarized below:

2005 2004

Class 1 Weighted Average Class 1 Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Options at beginning of year 1,824,900 $16.73 2,404,400 $15.67
Granted 200,000 29.08 6,000 23.72
Exercised (354,200) 13.12 (522,400) 11.68
Cancelled (4,500) 20.92 (63,100) 19.06
Options at end of year 1,666,200 $18.96 1,824,900 $16.73

Information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2005 is summarized below:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average
Range of Class 1 Remaining Weighted Average Class I Weighted Average
Exercise Prices Shares Contractual Life Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
$9.29 - $11.85 337,000 0.8 $11.26 337,000 $11.26
$17.27-819.32 921,600 37 18.81 921,600 18.81
$20.06 - §29.08 407,600 7.5 25.67 119,600 21.90
$9.29 - §29.08 1,666,200 4.0 $18.96 1,378,200 $17.23
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16. Stock based compensation plans (continued)

In 2005, ATCO Ltd. granted 200,000 options to purchase Class I Non-Voting shares to officers and certain key
employees at an exercise price of $29.08 per share. The options have a term of ten years and vest over the first five
years.

On January 2, 2006, ATCO Ltd. granted 107,000 options to purchase Class I Non-Voting shares to officers and
certain key employees at a weighted average exercise price of $40.34 per share. The options have a term of ten

years and vest over the first five years.

Changes in contributed surplus are summarized below:

2005 2004
Contributed surplus at beginning of year $0.7 06
Stock option expense 0.5 0.2
Transferred to Class [ share capital (0.1) (0.1
Contributed surplus at end of year $1.1 $0.7

The Corporation uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which estimated the weighted average fair value of
the options granted during 2005 at $4.33 per option (2004 — $3.73 per option) using the following assumptions:

2005 2004
Risk free interest rate 4.1% 4.2%
Expected holding period prior to exercise 6.7 years 7.1 years
Share price volatility 11.3% 14.2%
Estimated annual Class I share dividend 24% 2.9%

Share appreciation rights

Directors, officers and key employees of the Corporation may be granted share appreciation rights that are based on
Class I Non-Voting shares of ATCO Ltd. or Class A non-voting shares of Canadian Utilities Limited. The vesting
provisions and exercise period (which cannot exceed 10 years) are determined at the time of grant. The base value
of the share appreciation rights is equal to the weighted average of the trading price of the Class I Non-Voting shares
and the Class A non-voting shares, respectively, on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The holder is entitled on exercise to receive a cash payment equal to any
increase in the market price of the Class I Non-Voting shares and the Class A non-voting shares, respectively, over
the base value of the share appreciation rights exercised.

Share appreciation rights expense amounted to $17.3 million (2004 — $5.1 million).

17.  Changes in non-cash working capital

2005 2004

Operating activities, changes related to:
Accounts receivable $(35.0) $200.1
Inventories 80.8 (5.3)
Regulatory assets (1.4) 233
Prepaid expenses 1.3) 5.1
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 57.9 (180.2)
Income taxes (10.7) 45.5
Future income taxes 53 (9.0
Regulatory liabilities (7.9 12.5

$87.7 $ 92.0
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17. Changes in non-cash working capital (continued)

2005 2004
Investing activities, changes related to:
Inventories $ (1.5 $§ (0.2)
Prepaid expenses 0.1 ©.1)
Accounts payable and accrued liabitities 6.4 0N
Income taxes (11.0) 11.0
Future income taxes - 2.8)

$ (6.0) $ 78
Financing activities, changes related to:
Accounts receivable $ 3.6 $§ A7)
18. Joint ventures
The Corporation’s interest in joint ventures is summarized below:

2005 2004
Statement of earnings
Revenues $ 5939 $ 506.5
Operating expenses 402.8 351.8
Depreciation and amortization 49.6 44.5
Interest 48.6 45.0

929 65.2

Interest and other income 7.8 6.7
Earnings from joint ventures before income taxes $ 100.7 $ 719
Balance sheet
Current assets $ 2713 $ 167.2
Current liabilities (182.8) (137.7)
Property, plant and equipment 1,077.9 1,146.0
Deferred items — net (102.5) (68.3)
Long term debt (0.1) 0.1)
Non-recourse long term debt (592.3) _(673.0)
Investment in joint ventures $ 471.5 $ 434.1
Statement of cash flows
Operating activities $ 185.1 § 89.1
Investing activities (21.3) (57.1)
Financing activities (84.5) (36.9)
Foreign currency translation 9.5) 04)
Increase (decrease) in cash position $ 69.8 $ (53)

Current assets include cash of $125.7 million (2004 — $52.9 million) which is only available for use within the joint

ventures (see Note 5).

19. Related party transactions

In transactions with entities related through common control, the Corporation sold and rented manufactured product
and recovered administrative expenses totaling $0.9 million (2004 — $0.6 million) and incurred advertising and
promotion expenses and administrative expenses totaling $1.9 million (2004 — $1.5 million).

At December 31, 2005, there were no accounts receivable due from, or accounts payable due to, related parties

(2004 ~ $0.2 million accounts receivable and no accounts payable).

These transactions are in the normal course of business and under normal commercial terms.
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20. Employee future benefits

The Corporation maintains defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans for most of its employees and
provides other post employment benefits, principally health, dental and life insurance, for retirees and their

dependants. The defined benefit pension plans provide for pensions based on employees’ length of service and final
average earnings.

As of 1997, new employees of Canadian Ultilities, and, as of 2005, new employees of ATCO Structures and ATCO
Noise Management, automatically participate in the defined contribution pension plans and employees participating
in the defined benefit pension plans may transfer to the defined contribution pension plans at any time. Upon
transfer, further accumulation of benefits under the defined benefit pension plans ceases.

Information about the Corporation’s benefit plans, in aggregate, is as follows:

2005 2004
Other Post Other Post
Pension Employment  Pension Employment
Benefit Benefit Benefit Benefit
Plans Plans Plans Plans
Benefit plan assets, obligations and funded status
Market value of plan assels:
Beginning of year $1,453.9 $ - $1,370.4 $ -
Actual return on plan assets 203.3 - 121.3 -
Employee contributions 4.3 - 5.5 -
Benefit payments (38.9) - (38.2) -
Payments to defined contribution plans 5.7 - _(5.D -
End of vear $1,616.9 $ - $1,453.9 $ -
Accrued benefit obligations:
Beginning of year $1,295.6 $ 69.1 $1,1444 $ 638
Current service cost 34.1 2.7 247 2.1
Interest cost 77.2 43 72.9 39
Employee contributions 4.3 - 55 -
Benefit payments from plan assets ¢V (38.9) - (38.2) -
Benefit payments by employer (5.6) 2.0) (4.9) (2.0)
Experience losses @ 191.1 8.8 91.2 1.3
End of year $1,557.8 $ 82.9 $1,295.6 $ 69.1
Funded status:
Excess (deficiency) of assets over obligations $ 59.1 $(82.9) $ 1583 $(69.1)
Amounts not yet recognized in financial statements:
Unrecognized net cumulative experience losses on
plan assets and accrued benefit obligations 3924 23.0 3285 14.9
Unrecognized net transitional liability (asset) (258.9) 234 (292.2) 25.7
Accrued asset (liability) (Notes 10, 13) $ 192.6 $(36.5) $ 1946 $(28.5)
Regulatory asset (liability) ® (Note 2) $ (139.4) $ 22.0 $(137.6) $ 16.8

" pension plan benefit payments are indexed to increases in the Canadian Consumer Price Index to a maximum

increase of 3% per annum,

@ A change in the liability discount rate assumption resulted in experience losses in 2005 of approximately

$184 million for the pension benefit plans.

®  The regulatory asset (liability) reflects an AEUB decision to record costs of employee future benefits in the

regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000), when paid rather than accrued.
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20. Employee future benefits (continued)

2005 2004
Other Post Other Post
Pension Employment  Pension Employment
Benefit Benefit Benefit Benefit
Plans Plans Plans Plans
Benefit plan cost (income)
Components of benefit plan cost (income):
Current service cost $ 341 $2.7 $ 247 $21
Interest cost 77.2 43 72.9 39
Actual return on plan assets (203.3) - (121.3) -
Experience losses on accrued benefit obligations 191.1 8.8 91.2 1.3
99.1 15.8 67.5 7.3
Adjustments to recognize long term nature of employee
future benefits:
Unrecognized portion of actual return on plan assets 111.2 - 314 -
Unrecognized portion of experience losses on
accrued benefit obligations (191.1) (8.8) (91.2) (1.3)
Amortization of net cumulative experience losses on
plan assets and accrued benefit obligations 16.1 0.7 132 03
Amortization of net transitional liability (asset) ~(33.3) 2.3 (33.3) 2.3
97.1) (5.8) (79.9) 1.3
Defined benefit plans cost (income) 2.0 10.0 (12.4) 8.6
Defined contribution plans cost 7.1 - 6.4 -
Total cost (income) 9.1 10.0 6.0) 8.6
Less: Capitalized 14 23 1.2 20
Less: Unrecognized defined benefit plans cost
(income) " (1.6) 3.3 (10.2) 2.5
Net cost recognized $ 93 $4.4 § 30 $4.1

) The unrecognized defined benefit plans cost (income) reflects an AEUB decision to record costs of employee
future benefits in the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000), when paid rather than accrued.

In the unaudited three months ended December 31, 2005, net cost of $2.2 million (2004 — $0.6 million) was
recognized for pension benefit plans and net cost of $0.7 million (2004 — $1.0 million) was recognized for other post

employment benefit plans.
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20. Employee future benefits (continued)

Weighted average assumptions

2005 2004
Other Post Other Post
Pension  Employment  Pension Employment
Benefit Benefit Benefit Benefit
Plans Plans Plans Plans
Assumptions regarding benefit plan cost (income):
Expected long term rate of return on plan assets
for the year 6.9% - 7.25% -
Liability discount rate for the year 5.9% 5.9% 6.25% 6.25%
Average compensation increase for the year 3.25% - 3.0% -
Assumptions regarding accrued benefit obligations:
Liability discount rate at December 31 5.1% 51% 5.9% 5.9%
Long term inflation rate 2.5% W) 2.5% ()

) The assumed annual health care cost trend rate increases used in measuring the accumulated post employment

benefit obligation are as follows: for drug costs, 9.3% for 2005 grading down over § years to 4.5%
(2004 — 9.9% for 2004 grading down over 9 years to 4.5%), and, for other medical and dental costs, 4.0% for
2005 and thereafter (2004 — 4.0% for 2004 and thereafter).

The sensitivities of key assumptions used in measuring accrued benefit obligations and benefit plan cost (income)
for 2005 are outlined in the following table. The sensitivities of each key assumption have been calculated
independently of changes in other key assumptions. Actual experience may result in changes in a number of
assumptions simultaneously.

2005 Pension 2005 Other Post
Benefit Plans Employment Benefit Plans
Accrued Accrued

Benefit Benefit Plan Benefit Benefit Plan
Obligation Cost (Income) Obligation Cost (Income)

Expected long term rate of return on plan assets

1% increase - $33.7) - -

1% decrease - $3.7 - -
Liability discount rate

1% increase $(66.0) $(5.7) $(3.7) $(0.4)

1% decrease $83.5 $7.3 $4.6 $0.5
Future compensation rate

1% increase $20.3 $3.0 - -

1% decrease $(17.5) $(2.6) - -
Long term inflation rate

1% increase W @O $27.8 $3.6 $4.1 $0.7

1% decrease $(45.3) $(5.6) $(3.3) $(0.6)

) Sensitivities are net of the associated regulatory asset (liability) and unrecognized defined benefit plans cost

(income), which reflect an AEUB decision to record costs of employee future benefits in the regulated
operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000), when paid rather than accrued.

@ The long term inflation rate for pension plans reflect the fact that pension plan benefit payments are indexed to
increases in the Canadian Consumer Price Index to a maximum increase of 3.0% per annum.

® The long term inflation rate for other post employment benefit plans is the assumed annual health care cost trend
rate described in the weighted average assumptions.
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20. Employee future benefits (continued)

Pension benefit plan assets

2005 2004
Amount % Amount %

Plan asset mix:
Equity securities $ 9585  59.3 $ 8408  57.8
Fixed income securities ¥ 585.6 362 525.1  36.1
Real estate ¥ 33.0 2.0 36.2 2.5
Cash and other assets @ 39.8 2.5 51.8 3.6

$1,616.9 100.0 $1,453.9 100.0

M) Equity securities consist of investments in domestic and foreign preferred and common shares. At

December 31, 2005, the market values of investments in United States’ securities and international equities,
denominated in a number of different currencies, are $147.8 million and $178.0 million, respectively (2004 -
$137.6 million and $154.9 million, respectively).

@ Fixed income securities consist of investments in federal and provincial government and corporate bonds and

debentures.

®  Real estate consists of investments in closed-end real estate funds.

@ Cash and other assets consist of cash, short term notes and money market funds.

At December 31, 2005, plan assets include Class I Non-Voting shares of ATCO Ltd. having a market value of
$16.5 million (2004 — $11.8 million), Class A non-voting and Class B common shares of Canadian Utilities Limited
having a market value of $18.9 million (2004 — $13.3 million) and long term debt of CU Inc. having a market value
of $6.0 million (2004 — $5.3 million).

Funding

Employees are required to contribute a percentage of their salary to the defined benefit pension plans. The
Corporation is required to provide the balance of the funding, based on triennial actuarial valuations, necessary to
ensure that benefits will be fully provided for at retirement. Based on the most recent actuarial valuation for funding
purposes as of December 31, 2004, the Corporation is continuing a contribution holiday that began on April 1, 1996.
The next actuarial valuation for funding purposes is required as of December 31, 2007.

Included in the accrued benefit obligations are certain supplementary defined benefit pension plans that are paid by
the Corporation out of general revenues. These supplementary plans had accrued benefit obligations of
$94.8 million at December 31, 2005 (2004 — $86.2 million). ,

21, Risk management and financial instruments

The Corporation is exposed to changes in interest rates, commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates. The
Power Generation segment is affected by the cost of natural gas and the price of electricity in the Province of
Alberta and the United Kingdom and the Global Enterprises segment is affected by the cost of natural gas and the
price of natural gas liquids. In conducting its business, the Corporation uses various instruments, including forward
contracts, swaps and options, to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and
commodity prices. All such instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purposes.
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21. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)
Interest rate risk

Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt have variable interest rates that have been hedged through the
following interest rate swap agreements:

Swap Fixed Variable Debt Completion Principal/Face Value

Interest Rate " Interest Rate Date 2008 2004
5.247% 90 day BA December 2007 $ 55.5 $ 597
5.202% 90 day BA September 2008 74.0 79.6
7.54% 90 day BA November 2008 4.8 6.4
7.317% 90 day BA December 2008 6.7 10.0
5.8367% 90 day BA June 2009 11.8 122
6.336% 90 day BA June 2011 4.1 4.9
7.50% 6 month LIBOR December 2011 109.4 1134
7.286% 90 day BA September 2012 35.2 40.5
7.3325% Bank Bill Rate in Australia December 2013 34.4 42.6
6.575% 90 day BA ' March 2019 47.3 49.4
$383.2 $418.7

BA - Bankers’ Acceptance
LIBOR - London Interbank Offered Rate

" The above swap fixed interest rates include any long term debt margin fees (Note 12).

Foreign exchange rate risk

The Corporation has exposure to changes in the carrying values of its foreign operations, including assets and
liabilities, as a result of changes in exchange rates.

The Corporation has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts in order to fix the exchange rate on certain
planned equipment expenditures and operational cash flows denominated in U.S. dollars and Euros. At
December 31, 2005, the contracts consist of purchases of $3.2 million U.S. (2004 - nil), sales of $2.0 million Euros
(2004 — nil) and sales of $2.9 million U.S. (2004 — the sale of $5.0 million U.S. in return for 927.2 million
Hungarian forints).

Energy commodity price risk

In March 2004, the AEUB issued a decision respecting the operation of ATCO Gas’ Carbon storage facility for the
2004/2005 storage year, which ended on March 31, 2005. The decision directed ATCO Gas to continue to reserve
16.7 petajoules of storage capacity for the benefit of utility customers. As a result of an AEUB approved storage
plan, ATCO Gas entered into certain energy contracts for the forward purchase and sale of natural gas for storage
purposes. All associated costs and benefits of these contracts were passed to customers through regulated rates and,
accordingly, ATCO Gas did not bear any risk for price fluctuations provided that the contracts were in accordance
with the storage plan.

ATCO Gas has leased the entire storage capacity of the Carbon facility to ATCO Midstream for the period April 1,

2005 to March 31, 2006. At December 31, 2005, there were no contracts outstanding for natural gas sales (2004 —
12,802 terajoules (“TI”) for $76.3 million) or natural gas purchases (2004 — 107 TJ for $0.6 million).
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21. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)
Fair values

The fair values of derivatives have been estimated using year-end market rates. These fair values approximate the
amount that the Corporation would either pay or receive to settle the contract at December 31.

2005 2004
Fair Value Fair Value

Notional (Payable) Notional (Payable)

Principal  Receivable Maturity Principal Receivable Maturity
Interest rate swaps $383.2 $(12.9) 2007-2019 $418.7 $(19.7)  2007-2019
Foreign exchange

forward contracts $ 99 $ (0.2) 2006 $ 60 $ (0.1) 2005

Credit risk

Derivative credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty to a contract fails to perform according to the
terms and conditions of that contract. Derivative credit risk is minimized by dealing with large, credit-worthy
counterparties in accordance with established credit approval policies. Accounts receivable credit risk is reduced by
a large and diversified customer base, requirement of letters of credit and, for regulated operations other than
Alberta Power (2000), the ability to recover an estimate for doubtful accounts through approved customer rates.

22. Commitments and contingencies
Commitments

The Corporation has contractual obligations in the normal course of business, including long term operating leases
for manufacturing facilities, office premises and equipment. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Total of All
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Subsequent Years
$17.0 $15.0 $13.7 $7.2 $6.4 §7.3

Contingencies

Measurement inaccuracies occur from time to time with respect to ATCO Electric’s, ATCO Gas’ and ATCO
Pipelines’ metering facilities. Measurement adjustments are settled between the parties based on the requirements
of the Electricity and Gas Inspections Act (Canada) and applicable regulations issued pursuant thereto. There is a
risk of disallowance of the recovery of a measurement adjustment if controls and timely follow-up are found to be
inadequate by the AEUB.

The Government of Canada has filed a'claim in the amount of $70 million which alleges that the Corporation is
liable for the destruction of property owned by the Governments of Canada and the United States. The Corporation
believes that the claim is without merit and, in any event, has sufficient insurance coverage in place to cover any
material amounts that might become payable as a result of the claim. Accordingly, the claim is not expected to have
any material impact on the financial position of the Corporation.

The Corporation is party to a number of other disputes and lawsuits in the normal course of business. The
Corporation believes that the ultimate liability arising from these matters will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

As a result of decisions of the Supreme Court of Canada in Garland vs. Consumers’ Gas Co., the imposition of late

payment penalties on utility bills has been called into question. The Corporation is unable to determine at this time
the impact, if any, that these decisions will have on the Corporation.
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23. Segmented information
Description of segments
The Corporation operates in the following business segments:

The Utilities Business Group includes the regulated distribution of natural gas by ATCO Gas, the regulated
distribution and transmission of electric energy by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, Northland Utilities (NWT),
Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) and Yukon Electrical, the regulated transportation of natural gas by ATCO
Pipelines, the regulated transmission and distribution of water by CU Water, and the provision of non-regulated
complementary projects by ATCO Utility Services.

The Power Generation Business Group includes the non-regulated supply of electricity and cogeneration steam by
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources and the regulated supply of electricity by Alberta Power (2000).

The Global Enterprises Business Group includes the non-regulated gathering, processing, storage, purchase and

sale of natural gas by ATCO Midstream, the provision of project management and technical services for customers

in the industrial, defence and transportation sectors by ATCO Frontec, the development, operation and support of

information systems and technologies by ATCO I-Tek, the provision of billing services, payment processing, credit,

collection and call centre services by ATCO I-Tek’s subsidiary, ATCO I-Tek Business Services, the sale of fly ash

and other combustion byproducts produced in coal fired electrical generating plants by ASHCOR Technologies, the

manufacture of wood preservation products by Genics, the sale of travel services to both business and consumer

sectors by ATCO Travel, the manufacture, sale and lease of transportable workforce shelter and space rentals

products by ATCO Structures (Industrials) and the design, supply and construction of industrial noise abatement by
ATCO Noise Management (Industrials).

The Corporate and Other segment includes commercial real estate owned by ATCO Ltd. and ATCO Investments in
Calgary, Alberta and by Canadian Utilities in Fort McMurray, Alberta.

Segmented results — Three months ended December 31

2005 Power Global Corporate  Intersegment
2004 Utilities  Generation  Enterprises  Industrials  and Other  Eliminations  Consolidated
(Unaudited)

Revenues — $299.1 $226.1 $169.3 $93.3 $ 0.7 S - $788.5
external $293.8 $194.7 $158.2 £68.6 $ 10 3 - $716.3
Revenues — 6.4 - 334 - 3.7 (43.5) -
intersegment 4.1 - 30.0 - 4.0 (38.1) -
Revenues $305.5 $226.1 $202.7 $93.3 $ 44 $(43.5) $788.5
$297.9 $194.7 $188.2 $68.6 $ 5.0 $(38.1) $716.3

Earnings attributable
to Class I and $ 16.9 $ 219 $ 14.6 $35 $ 4.3) $ (0.9 $ 522
Class II shares $ 20.0 $ 122 $ 167 $4.5 $(11.4) $ (0.3) $ 41.7

()" Intersegment revenues are recognized on the basis of prevailing market or regulated prices.
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23, Segmented information (continued)

Segmented results — Year ended December 31

2008 Power Global Corporate  Intersegment
2004 Utilities  Generation  Enterprises  Industrials  and Other  Eliminations _ Consolidated
Revenues - $1,173.5 $ 815.8 $571.4 $295.1 $ 38 $ - $2,859.6
external $1,771.6 $ 6923 $583.0 $220.0 $ 4.1 $ - $3,271.0
Revenues — 22.4 - 116.6 - 13.1 (152.1) -
intersegment 18.2 - 337.1 0.1 11.7 (367.1) -
Revenues 1,195.9 8158 688.0 2951 16.9 (152.1) 2,850.6
1,789.8 692.3 920.1 220.1 15.8 (367.1) 3,271.0
Operating expenses 716.9 446.5 538.8 249.2 30.1 (150.6) 1,830.9
1,328.6 372.2 789.1 185.6 12.0 372.0) 2,315.5
Depreciation and 189.3 103.0 24.8 18.7 2.1 - 337.9
amortization 178.9 95.8 215 13.3 1.6 - 3111
Interest expense 124.9 94.7 24 34 155.3 (157.5) 223.2
118.8 93.5 2.4 23 148.6 (150.1) 215.5
Dividends on - - - - 8.6 - 8.6
preferred shares - - - - 8.6 - 8.6
Gain on transfer of
retail energy supply - - - - - - -
businesses (63.3) - - - - - (63.3)
Interest and other (11.8) 9.3) (2.0) 2.3) (174.0) 157.5 (41.9)
income (8.6) (7.9) (2.4) (0.7) (163.4) 150.1 (32.9)
Earnings before
income taxes and
non-controlling 176.6 180.9 124.0 26.1 (5.2) (1.5) 500.9
interests 2354 138.7 109.5 19.6 8.4 49 516.5
Income taxes 60.2 70.8 43.0 10.2 4.0 0.5) 187.7
56.3 56.9 37.1 5.5 14.7 1.9 172.4
116.4 110.1 81.0 15.9 9.2) (1.0) 313.2
179.1 81.8 72.4 14.1 6.3) 3.0 344.1
Non-controlling 61.5 53.2 39.1 - 10.9 0.5) 164.2
interests 91.7 42.1 34.3 - 14.7 1.9 184.7
Earnings attributable
to Class I and $ 549 $ 569 $ 419 $ 159 $(20.1) $ (0.5 $ 149.0
Class Il shares $ 874 $ 397 $ 38.1 $ 14.1 $(21.0) $ 11 $ 1594
Total assets $3,524.7 $2,443.8 $306.4 $265.3 $721.6 $ 199.6 $7,461.4
$3,422.4 $2,435.5 $307.8 $204.1 $601.1 $ 223.0 $7,193.9
Allocation of $ 465 $ 231 $ 1.6 $ - S - $ - $ 712
goodwill $ 465 $ 231 $ 1.6 $ - $ - $ - § 712
Purchase of property, $ 4729 $ 427 $ 11.9 $ 64.9 S 04 $ - $ 5928
plant and equipment  § 426.3 $ 874 § 14.5 $ 574 § 253 $ - $ 6109
w Intersegment revenues are recognized on the basis of prevailing market or regulated prices.
Geographic segments
Domestic Foreign Consolidated
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Revenues $2,406.8 $2,897.2 $452.8 $373.8 $2,859.6 $3,271.0
Property, plant and equipment
and goodwill $5,300.2 $5,062.8 $372.4 $413.3 $5,672.6  $5,476.1
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Re: ATCO Ltd.

Quebéc Securities Act - Section 52
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This is ATCO Ltd.'s report pursuant to S,114 of the Québec Securities Regulation on
securities distributed in Québec under the exemptions provided by Section 52 of the
Securities Act (Québec) (the "Act").

Please be advised that during the financial year ended December 31, 2005:
1. ATCO Ltd. did not distribute any securities in Québec under the exemptions
: provided by the Act; and

13,400 options to purchase Class I Non-Voting Shares were exercised by Québec
residents at an aggregate value of $439,536.00.

Yours truly,

ATCO Ltd.

[original signed by P. Spruin]

P. Spruin
Corporate Secretary

ATCO LTD. & CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED

1400, 909 - 11th Averue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R ING Tel (403) 292-7500 Fax (403) 292-7623
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FORM 13-502F1
ANNUAL PARTICIPATION FEE FOR REPORTING ISSUERS

Reporting Issuer Name: ATCO Ltd.
Participation Fee for the Financial Year Ending : December 31, 2005
1. Class 1 Reporting Issuers

Market value of equity securities:

Class | Non-Voting Shares:
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most

recent financial year: 52,960,746
Simple average of the closing price as of the last trading day
of each of the months of the most recent financial year (1) X $36.13
Market Value of Class $1,913,472,000 $1,913,472,000
(A)
Class Il Voting Shares:
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most
recent financial year: 6,960,018
Simple average of the closing price as of the last trading day
of each of the months of the most recent financial year (1) X $36.11
Market Value of Class $251,326,000 $251,326,000
(A)
Market value of corporate debt or preferred shares of Reporting Issuer
Series 3 Preferred Shares
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most
recent financial year: 6,000,000
Simple average of the closing price as of the last trading day
of each of the months of the most recent financial year (1) X $28.67
Market Value of Class $172,020,000 $172,020,000
(B)
Total Capitalization (A+B) $2,336,818,000
Total Fee payable pursuant to Appendix A of the Rule $50,000
Notes:

(1) See Schedule A

O\ImiMSupportiPDF Files\Q4 2005\ParticipationFee2005-ATCO-R. x!s - 22-02-2006 2



Schedule A

Simple Average of Closing Price On
Last Trading Day of Each Month of 2005

ATCO Ltd.

Class | Class Il Series 3
Non-Voting Voting Preferred

Shares Shares Shares
January $29.35 $29.16 $28.94
February $30.21 $30.14 $28.95
March $32.13 $31.90 $28.50
April $31.20 $31.43 $27.82
May $33.55 $32.38 $28.55
June $35.01 $35.00 $28.65
July $38.63 $38.54 $29.00
August $42.00 $43.00 $28.60
September $42.20 $41.50 $28.90
October $37.80 $38.00 $28.99
November $40.51 $42.00 $28.50
December $40.95 $40.34 $28.61
Average $36.13 $36.11 $28.67

Note:
(1) Prices of Class | Non-Voting and Class 1l Voting Shares
adjusted to reflect two for one share split.
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ATCO Ltd.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A”)

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations of ATCO Ltd. (the
“Corporation”) should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s unaudited consolidated interim financial
statements for the three months ended December 31, 2005, and the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2005. Additional information refating to the Corporation, including the Corporation’s
Annual Information Form, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

All quarterly information in this docurﬁent is uhaudited and is shaded to differentiate it from the annual information.

The equity securities of the Corporation consist of Class I Non-Voting Shares (“Class I shares”) and Class II Voting
Shares (“Class II shares™).

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of ATCO Ltd. and all of its subsidiaries. The principal
subsidiaries are Canadian Utilities Limited (“Canadian Utilities™), of which ATCO Ltd. owns 39.9% of the Class A
non-voting shares and 74.2% of the Class B common shares, for an aggregate ownership of 51.8%, and ATCO
Structures Inc. (“ATCO Structures”), ATCO Noise Management Ltd. (“ATCO Noise Management”) and ATCO
Resources Ltd. (“ATCO Resources™), of which ATCO Ltd. owns 100% of the Class A non-voting and Class B
common shares. Canadian Utilities has published its audited consolidated financial statements and its MD&A for
the year ended December 31, 2005. Copies of these documents may be obtained upon request from the Corporate
Secretary of Canadian Utilities at 1400 ATCO Centre, 909-11" Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R IN6 (telephone
(403) 292-7500 or fax (403) 292-7623).
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements contained in this MD&A constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are
often, but not always, identified by the use of words such as “anticipate”, “plan”, “estimate”, “expect”, “may”,
“will”, “intend”, “should”, and similar expressions. These statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in
such forward-looking statements. The Corporation believes that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking
statements are reasonable, but no assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct and such

forward-looking statements should not be unduly relied upon.

In particular, this MD&A contains forward-looking statements pertaining to purchase obligations, planned capital
expenditures, the impact of changes in government regulation, non-regulated generating capacity subject to long
term contracts and Industrials segment market developments. The Corporation’s actual results could differ
materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of regulatory decisions, competitive
factors in the industries in which the Corporation operates, prevailing economic conditions, and other factors, many
of which are beyond the control of the Corporation.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of December 31, 2003, the Corporation’s management evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of
its disclosure controls and procedures (“Disclosure Controls”) as defined under rules adopted by the Canadian
Securities Administrators. This evaluation was performed under the supervision of, and with the participation of,
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”) and the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”).

Disclosure Controls are procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in documents filed
with securities regulatory authorities is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a timely basis, and is
accumulated and communicated to the Corporation’s management, including the CEO and the CFO, as appropriate,
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Corporation’s management, including the CEO and the CFO, does not expect that the Corporation’s Disclosure
Controls will prevent or detect all error and all fraud. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, an
evaluation of controls can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that all control issues and instances of
fraud or error, if any, within the Corporation have been detected.

Based on the evaluation of Disclosure Controls, the CEQ and the CFO have concluded that, subject to the inherent
limitations noted above, the Corporation’s Disclosure Controls are effective in providing reasonable assurance that
material information relating to the Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to the
Corporation’s management.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation’s financial statements are consolidated from three Business Groups: Utilities, Power Generation
and Global Enterprises. For the purposes of financial disclosure, industrial transactions (ATCO Structures and
ATCO Noise Management) are accounted for as Industrials, corporate transactions are accounted for as Corporate
and Other, and transactions between Business Groups are eliminated in all reporting of the Corporation’s
consolidated financial information. For additional information on the Corporation’s Business Groups, refer to Note
23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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TWO FOR ONE SHARE SPLIT

In July 2005, the Corporation’s board of directors approved a two-for-one share split of the outstanding Class I and
Class 1I shares. The share split took the form of a stock dividend whereby share owners received one additional
Class I share for each Class I share held as of the record date and one additional Class II share for each Class II
share held as of the record date. The stock dividend was paid on September 15, 2005 to share owners of record at
the close of business on August 29, 2005. All share, stock option and per share amounts have been retroactively
restated to reflect this share split.

TRANSFER OF THE RETAIL ENERGY SUPPLY BUSINESSES

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Energy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML"), a subsidiary of Centrica plc (“Transfer of the
Retail Energy Supply Businesses™). Proceeds of the transfer were $90 million, of which $45 million was paid at
closing, and the remainder was paid on May 4, 2005. Net proceeds, after adjustments related to legal, transition and
other deferred costs pertaining to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, resulted in a gain of $63.3
million before income taxes of $8.2 million and non-controlling interests of $26.6 million. This transfer increased
2004 earnings by $28.5 million.

The Corporation’s revenues and natural gas supply and purchased power costs after May 4, 2004 were reduced
accordingly for 2004 and thereafter. Subsequent to May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas continued to purchase natural gas on
behalf of DEML until the transfer of the relevant ATCO Gas natural gas purchase contracts to DEML was
completed in September 2004. There is no ongoing impact on earnings resulting from the transfer of these
businesses as natural gas and electricity have historically been sold to customers on a “no-margin” basis. ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric continue to own and operate the natural gas and electricity distribution systems used to
deliver energy.

Under the various transaction agreements, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred to DEML certain retail
functions, including the supply of natural gas and electricity to customers and billing and customer care functions
(the “transferred functions”).

On May 4, 2004, DEML commenced supplying natural gas and electricity at regulated rates to residential, farm,
commercial and small industrial customers in the ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric service areas and billing customers
for their natural gas and electricity service.

If DEML fails to perform all or part of the transferred functions, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric will be required
under existing legislation to perform such functions in the interim until DEML is able to perform such functions. In
certain events (including where DEML fails to supply natural gas and/or electricity and ATCO Gas and/or ATCO
Electric are ordered by the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board (“AEUB”) to do so), the agreements will terminate
and the functions will revert to ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer proceeds to DEML
by ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric.

Centrica plc, DEML’s parent, has provided a $300 million guarantee supported by a $235 million letter of credit in
respect of DEML’s obligations to ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric and ATCO 1-Tek Business Services in respect of the
ongoing relationships contemplated under the transaction agreements. The Centrica guarantee and letter of credit
include limits for certain categories of claims, which limits cease to apply if the agreements are terminated. If the
amount available to be drawn under the letter of credit at any time falls below $200 million, the agreements with
DEML will terminate and the functions will revert to ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer
proceeds to DEML by ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric.

Canadian Utilities has provided a guarantee of ATCO Gas’, ATCO Electric’s and ATCO I-Tek Business Services’
payment and indemnity obligations in respect of the ongoing relationships contemplated under the transaction
agreements.

DEML has entered into a 10 year contract effective May 4, 2004, with ATCO [-Tek Business Services to provide
billing and call centre services to ensure continued quality customer service. DEML has the ability to terminate this
contract after the fifth anniversary upon immediate payment of termination fees which decline over the remaining
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term of the contract. Based upon current customer counts and service levels and a 10 year contract, revenues are
estimated to be between $400-$500 million over the term of the contract.

ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric have also agreed not to compete in the regulated and unregulated retail energy
business in Alberta for a period of ten years.

TXU EUROPE SETTLEMENT

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited (“TXU Europe”) for breach of its contract to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the 1,000
megawatt Barking generating plant, in which the Corporation owns a 25.5% equity interest. In 2005, the
Corporation received $83.1 million as its share of the partial settlement of the claim for damages related to TXU
Europe’s breach of this contract. An additional payment of $16.6 million was received on January 19, 2006 and a
final installment of approximately $1.6 million is expected in the second quarter of 2006. The settlement is
expected to generate earnings after income taxes and non-controlling interests of approximately $35 million, based
on foreign currency exchange rates in effect on March 30, 2005, which will be recognized over the remaining term
of the TXU Europe contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $5.5 million per year. These earnings will be
dependent upon the foreign currency exchange rates in effect at the time the earnings are recognized. For a
description of the settlement, refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SELECTED ANNUAL AND QUARTERLY INFORMATION

Year
For the Three Months Ended Ended
($ Millions except per share data) Mar. 31 Jun. 30 Sep. 30 Dec. 31 Dec. 31
(unaudited)
2005
Revenues (1) oo e 814.6 630.5 626.0 788.5 2,859.6
Earnings attributable to Class I and
Class II shares (4) (5)..oovevnerrnimnennine e 426 28.1 26.1 52.2 149.0
Earnings per Class I and
Class IT share (4) (5) «oovovervvrinriecencn e 0.71 0.47 0.44 0.87 249
Diluted eamings per Class I and
Class I share (4) (5) cvovovereieencieieeceie e ' 0.70 0.47 0.43 0.86 2.46
2004 ‘
Revenues (1) ..o ©1,226.4 731.2 597.1 716.3 3,271.0
Earnings attributable to Class [ and _
Class II shares (2) (4) (5) vvoevevenvirvecvecivienens 38.2 54.8 247 41.7 159.4
Earnings per Class [ and
Class II share (2) (4) (5).ccvvererirmernneeccinnaninns ' 0.64 0.92 0.42 0.70 2,68
Diluted earnings per Class I and
Class II share (2) (4) (5).cooverervniemieirneiens 0.63 091 0.41 0.70 2.65
2003
REVENUES ..ottt eens verireesiean eerneaet evenireeretee eeereesenees 3,929.7
Earnings attributable to Class [ and
Class 1T shares (3) (4) (5) ccovvnrimeireneiiine cvtieviininss erennnieeiee evneenene e 130.7
Eamings per Class I and
Class I1share (3) (4) (5) ccoovvvniiiireiciiees ot ervivnier aeeeioreene e 2.20
Diluted earnings per Class I and
Class T1share (3) (4) (5).vvcviiiiiicciiiiiiis vvrsrieiis evvsvriiens ovvesirnre eeaeeres e 2.17
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Notes:

(1) Prior to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and
electricity purchased for ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for their customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.

(2) Includes earnings of 328.5 million, earnings per share of 30.48 and diluted earnings per share of 30.47 on the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses for the three months ended June 30, 2004, and for the year
ended December 31, 2004.

(3) 2003 earnings attributable to Class I and Class Il shares have been restated for retroactive changes in the
methods of accounting for asset retirement obligations and stock based compensation.

(4) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

(5) Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the
timing of rate decisions, earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

(6) The above data has been extracted from the financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003
($ Millions except per share data)

Cash dividends declared per share (1):

5.75% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares, Series 3 .................c.. 1.44 1.44 1.44

Class Tand 1L Shares.........cccocovvveiieiiiciieiies ettt e e 0.76 0.70 0.64
TOtAl ASSELS ....ovoeieieiee e ettt e ae e 7,461.4 7,193.9 6,758.9
Long term debt ...t s 2,273.5 2,2153 1,841.6
Non-recourse long term debt.............ccc.oooviiiiiiii s 8043 899.7 948.2
Preferred SHAres.......cccccoo oot e a e 150.0 150.0 150.0
Class I and Class IT share owners’ equity.................cooecnvviiineinnninn, 1,331.1 1,244.6 1,131.7
Notes:

(1) The above data has been extracted from the financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The principal factors that caused variations in revenues over the eight most recently completed quarters were:

s lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses (refer to the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Businesses section), and lower prices of electricity and natural gas purchased for
customers on a “no-margin” basis prior to May 4, 2004 (refer to the Utilities section);

o fluctuations in electricity and natural gas prices (refer to the Power Generation section);

o fluctuations in temperatures (refer to the Utilities section);

e changes in market conditions in natural gas liquids and storage operations (refer to the Global Enterprises
section);

¢ timing of rate decisions (refer to the Ultilities and Regulatory Matters sections); and

¢ changes in market conditions in workforce housing and space rentals operations (refer to the Industrials
section).

The principal factors that caused variations in earnings over the eight most recently completed quarters were:
e gain on the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses (refer to the Transfer of the Retail Energy
Supply Businesses and the Utilities sections);
o fluctuations in electricity prices and related spark spreads in Alberta and the United Kingdom (“U.K.”)
(refer to the Power Generation section);
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e changes in market conditions in natural gas liquids and storage operations (refer to the Global Enterprises
section);

¢ fluctvations in temperatures (refer to the Utilities section);

¢ changes in market conditions in workforce housing and space rentals operations (refer to the Industrials
section);

e timing of rate decisions (refer to the Ultilities and Regulatory Matters sections);

o the TXU Europe Settlement (refer to TXU Europe Settlement section);

e changes in share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A non-
voting share and ATCO Ltd. Class I share prices (refer to Corporate and Other section); and

e an unfavorable one-time tax adjustment in 2004 related to the ATCOR Resources income tax reassessment
(refer to ATCOR Resources Ltd. Tax Reassessment section).

Consolidated Operations

Revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased by $72.2 million to $788.5 million, primarily
due to: ‘
s increased business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in Canada, the United States and South
America; ‘
e higher revenues in ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Alberta generating plants due to higher Alberta
Power Pool prices; :
e 2004 impact of 2004 General Rate Application adjustments for ATCO Gas related to the refund of
deferred income taxes; and
e higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas on behalf of cities and municipalities.

This increase was partially offset by:
o lower business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in Europe;
o lower availability in the Barking generating plant due to a planned maintenance outage in September
through November 2005;
¢ lower activity in ATCO Frontec projects; and
o lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no margin” basis at ATCO Power’s Barking generating
 plant.

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003, decreased by $411.4 million to $2,859.6 million, primarily due to:

s lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004;

¢ lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream;
and

¢ lower natural gas volumes purchased for ATCO Pipelines’ customers as a result of customers moving from
sales service (commodity and transportation revenues) to transportation service only contracts
(transportation revenue).

This decrease was partially offset by:

¢ increased business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in Canada, Australia and South America;

e higher revenues in ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Alberta generating plants due to higher Alberta
Power Pool prices;

e higher prices for natural gas liquids in ATCO Midstream;

e increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek;

o a full year of operations at ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ 580 megawatt Brighton Beach
generating plant commissioned in July 2004; and

» improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations.

Earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased
by $10.5 mullion ($0.17 per share) to $52.2 million ($0.87 per share), primarily due to:
o increased business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in Canada and the United States;
o unfavorable one-time tax adjustment in 2004 related to the ATCOR Resources income tax reassessment
(refer to ATCOR Resources Ltd. Tax Reassessment section);
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¢ higher earnings in ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Alberta generating plants due to higher spark
spreads realized on'sales in the Alberta market; and ,

e higher storage earnings due to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold
in ATCO Midstream.

This increase was partially offset by:

e losses incurred in ATCO Structures’ operations in Europe;

s lower volumes, and higher shrinkage and power costs for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO
Midstream; and

e higher costs not recovered in ATCO Gas in 2005. In May 2005, ATCO Gas submitted a general rate
application with the AEUB for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test years. In August 2005, the AEUB approved
interim refundable rates which recognized only 28% of the increased operating costs and rate base
additions requested in the original application. On January 27, 2006, ATCO Gas received an AEUB
decision which did not materially change the earnings based on the 2005 interim rates (the “ATCO Gas
Decision”). The final impact of the decision will not be known until two subsequent regulatory processes
are finalized (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).

Earnings attributable to Class I and Class Il shares for the year ended December 31, 2005, were $149.0 million
($2.49 per share). Earnings for 2004 were $130.9 million ($2.20 per share), excluding the $28.5 million after-tax
and non-controlling interests gain on the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004. Earnings
for the year ended December 31, 2004, including the impact of the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses,
were $159.4 million ($2.68 per share).

Earnings attributable to Class I and Class I shares for the year ended December 31, 2005, excluding the impact
of the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, increased by $18.1 million ($0.29 per share), primarily due
to:
¢ increased business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in Canada and Australia;
¢ an unfavorable one-time tax adjustment in 2004 related to the ATCOR Resources income tax reassessment
(refer to ATCOR Resources Ltd. Tax Reassessment section);
s higher storage earnings due to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream, and
¢ the TXU Europe Settlement (refer to TXU Europe Settlement section).

This increase was partially offset by:

¢ losses incurred in ATCO Structures’ operations in Europe;

o increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A non-
voting share and ATCO Ltd. Class I share prices since December 31, 2004,

¢ lower volumes, and higher shrinkage and power costs for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO
Midstream;
impact of the ATCO Gas Decision (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section); and
warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

Return on common equity was 11.6% in 2005.

Operating expenses (consisting of natural gas supply, purchased power, operation and maintenance, selling and
administrative and franchise fee costs) for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased by $46.7 million
to $483.0 million, primarily due to:

¢ increased business activity in ATCO Structures;

¢  higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas on behalf of cities and municipalities; and

e higher natural gas liquids shrinkage costs in ATCO Midstream due to higher natural gas prices.

This increase was partially offset by:
» 2004 one time impact of finalization of natural gas supply costs in ATCO Gas related to the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Businesses,
» lower business activity in ATCO Frontec; and
¢ lower natural gas volumes purchased for ATCO Pipelines’ customers as a result of customers moving
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from sales service (commodity and tfahsportation revenues) to transportation service only contracts
(transportation revenue).

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005, decreased by $484.6 million to $1,830.9 million,
primarily due to:
o lower costs of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004; and
¢ lower volumes of natural gas purchased for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

This decrease was partially offset by:
¢ increased business activity in ATCO Structures;
¢ higher shrinkage and power costs for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream;
o higher fuel costs at ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant due to natural gas fuel purchases recovered on
a “no-margin” basis; and
o higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas on behalf of cities and municipalities.

Depreciation and amortization ekpenses‘ for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased by
$6.7 million to $92.9 million, primarily due to: ’
o capital additions in 2005 and 2004.

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005, increased by $26.8 million to
$337.9 million, primarily due to:
e capital additions in 2005 and 2004.

Interest expense for the three months ended December 31, 2005, decreased by $2.2 million to $54.2 million,
primarily due to:

e lower interest rates on new financings issued to retire long term debt maturing in 2005; and

¢ retirement of non-recourse financings in 2005 and 2004,

This decrease was partially offset by:
e interest on new financings issued in 2005 and 2004 to fund capital expenditures in Utilities operations.

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2005, increased by $7.7 million to $223.2 million, primarily due
to:
e interest on new financings issued in 2005 and 2004 to fund capital expenditures in Utilities operations; and
e interest on non-recourse financings for ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Brighton Beach generating
plant commissioned in July 2004.

This increase was partially offset by:
o lower interest rates on new financings issued to retire long term debt maturing in 2005; and
e retirement of non-recourse financings in 2005 and 2004.

Interest and other income for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased by $1.2 million to $12.1
million, primarily due to:
e interest income on higher cash balances.

Interest and other income for the year ended December 31, 2005, increased by $9.0 million to $41.9 million,
primarily due to:
e technical services income earned on a project in Indonesia by ATCO Structures;
e interest income on higher cash balances; and
e the recovery of ATCO Electric’s carrying costs and interest associated with the AEUB decision adjusting
the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in deferred income taxes (refer to Regulatory Matters
— ATCO Electric section).
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Income taxes for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased by $12.2 million to $64.2 million,
primarily due to:
* higher earnings; and ‘
o favorable tax adjustment in 2004 for ATCO Gas resulting from a change in income tax methodology as
directed by the AEUB in its decision respecting ATCO Gas’ 2003/2004 General Rate Application.

This increase was partially offset by:
e unfavorable one-time tax adjustment in 2004 related to the ATCOR Resources income tax reassessment
(refer to ATCOR Resources Ltd. Tax Reassessment section).

Income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2005, including the $8.2 million of income taxes resulting from the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004, increased by $15.3 million to $187.7 million.

Income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2005, excluding the $8.2 million of income taxes resulting from the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, increased by $23.5 million to $187.7 million, primarily due to:
e  higher earnings; and
e favorable tax adjustment in 2004 for ATCO Gas resulting from a change in income tax methodology as
directed by the AEUB in its decision respecting ATCO Gas’ 2003/2004 General Rate Application.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ unfavorable one-time tax adjustment in 2004 related to the ATCOR Resources income tax reassessment
(refer to ATCOR Resources Ltd. Tax Reassessment section).

The interests of non-coﬁirdlling share owners for the three months ended December 31, 2005, decreased by $0.5
million to $52.0 million, primarily due to:
¢ lower earnings in Canadian Utilities.

The interests of non-controlling share owners for the year ended December 31, 2005, including the $26.6 million
resulting from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, decreased by $20.5 million to $164.2 million.

The interests of non-contrelling share owners for the year ended December 31, 2005, excluding the $26.6 million
resulting from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, increased by $6.1 million to $164.2 million,
primarily due to:

e  higher earnings in Canadian Utilities.

Segmented Information

Segmented revenues for the three months and the year ended December 31, 2005, were as follows:

For the Three For the Year
Months Ended Ended
December 31 December 31
($ Millions) 2005 2004 2005 2004
(unaudited)
UGIEES (1)eieieveeeireoroin ittt et e b e v e e anes s ante e 305.5 297.9 1,195.9 1,789.8
POWET GEMETALION .....eeeivveiiieiciee ettt erae s e anesnes 226.1 194.7 815.8 692.3
Global Eterprises (2)...ccocoviiieiiiceieeee e ernsieae et 202.7 188.2 688.0 920.1
INAUSITIALS Lot 93.3 68.6 295.1 220.1
Corporate and Other ..o s 4.4 5.0 16.9 15.8
Intersegment eliMINAtIONS. ....cooviiieiiriir it (43.5) (38.1) (152.1) (367.1)
TOUAL oot 788.5 716.3 2,859.6 3,271.0

Notes:
(1) Prior to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and
electricity purchased for ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas
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and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas and electricity for their customers, revenues since May 4,
2004, have decreased accordingly.

(2) Subsequent to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, ATCO Midstream
purchased lower volumes of natural gas for ATCO Gas.

Segmented earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares for the three months and the year ended
December 31, 2005, were as follows:

For the Three For the Year
Months Ended Ended
December 31 December 31
($ Millions) 2005 2004 2005 2004
(unaudited)
UIEES (1)rviiireieieerteierere ettt e v et 16.9 20.0 54.9 874
POWEr GENEration .........ocvviiviiveriie ittt ' 21.9 12.2 56.9 39.7
Global EREIPTISES «..vuvvevrivicriiire ettt 14.6 16.7 41.9 38.1
INAUSERIALS .o 35 4.5 15.9 14.1
Corporate and Other ..........ccooviiieiiniiiieieer e 4.3) (11.4) (20.1) (21.0)
Intersegment ElmMiNAtioNS.......oovrviirieriniierieesreiiseseiest s aennes 0.4 (0.3) (0.5) 1.1
TOMAL . oottt be s ' 52.2 41.7 149.0 159.4

Note:
(1) The December 31, 2004, earnings include $28.5 million (earnings per share of 30.48) and (diluted earnings
per share of 80.47) resulting from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses.

Utilities

Revenues from the Utilities Business Group for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased by $7.6
million to $305.5 million, primarily due to:
e 2004 impact of 2004 General Rate Application adjustments for ATCO Gas related to the refund of
deferred income taxes;
¢ higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas on behalf of cities and municipalities; and
¢ impact of the ATCO Gas Decision (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).

This increase was partially offset by: |
¢ reduced recoveries of natural gas costs and lower storage revenues as ATCO Gas is no longer storing or
selling natural gas from its Carbon natural gas storage facility. ATCO Gas has leased the entire storage
capacity of the facility to ATCO Midstream for the period April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006.

Temperatures in ATCO Gas for the three months ended December 31, 2005, were 14.1% warmer than normal,
compared to 9.8% warmer than normal for the corresponding period in 2004.

Revenues from the Utilities Business Group for the year ended December 31, 2005, decreased by $593.9 million to
$1,195.9 million, primarily due to:
o lower sales of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004;
¢ reduced recoveries of natural gas costs and lower storage revenues as ATCO Gas is no longer storing or
selling natural gas from its Carbon natural gas storage facility. ATCO Gas has leased the entire storage
capacity of the facility to ATCO Midstream for the period April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006; and
e lower natural gas volumes purchased for ATCO Pipelines’ customers as a result of customers moving from
sales service (commodity and transportation revenues) to transportation service only contracts
(transportation revenue),

This decrease was partially offset by:
e higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas on behalf of cities and municipalities;
¢ impact of the ATCO Gas Decision (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section);
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s 2004 impact of 2004 General Rate Application adjustments for ATCO Gas related to the refund of deferred
income taxes; and
e higher transmission charges recovered from customers in ATCO Gas.

Temperatures in ATCO Gas in 2005 were 7.8% warmer than normal, compared to 3.0% warmer than normal in
2004.

Earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2005, decreased by $3.1 million to $16.9 million, primarily
due to:

s impact of the ATCO Gas Decision (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section); and

¢  warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2005, were $54.9 million. Eamings for 2004 were $58.9 million,
excluding the $28.5 million after-tax and non-controlling interests gain on the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply
Businesses in May 2004. Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2004, including the impact of the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Businesses, were $87.4 million.

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2005, excluding the impact of the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply
Businesses, decreased by $4.0 million, primarily due to:

¢« impact of the ATCO Gas Decision (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section); and

¢« warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.

This decrease was partially offset by:
« impact of the AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in deferred
income taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section).

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005, decreased by $611.7 million to $716.9 million,
primarily due to:
o lower costs of electricity and natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO
Electric and ATCO Gas due to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in May 2004.

The decrease was partially offset by:
o higher franchise fees collected by ATCO Gas on behalf of cities and municipalities.

Power Generation

Revenues from the Power Generation Business Group for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased
by $31.4 million to $226.1 million, primarily due to: '
o  higher revenues in ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Alberta generating plants due to higher Alberta
Power Pool prices;
o  higher revenues at ATCO Power’s Osborne generating plant due to a planned maintenance outage in the
fourth quarter of 2004; and
o improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations.

This increase was partially offset by:
o lower availability in ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant due to a planned maintenance outage in
September through November 2005; and
o lower natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no margin” basis at ATCO Power’s Barking generating
plant.

Revenues from the Power Generation Business Group for the year ended December 31, 2005, increased by $123.5
million to $815.8 million, primarily due to:
o higher revenues in ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Alberta generating plants due to higher Alberta
Power Pool prices;
o a full year of operations at ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ 580 megawatt Brighton Beach
generating plant commissioned in July 2004; and
o  improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations.
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This increase was partially offset by:

o lower availability in ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant due to a planned maintenance outage in
September through November 2005.

Earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased by $9.7 million to $21.9 million, primarily due

to: :

¢ higher eamings in ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Alberta generating plants due to higher spark
spreads realized on sales in the Alberta market;

e asettlement with a supplier for damages due to equipment defects in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations; and

» improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations.

This increase was partially offset by: :
o lower availability in ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant due to a planned maintenance outage in
September through November 2005.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices for the three months ended December 31, 2005, averaged $117.07 per
megawatt hour, compared to average prices of $55.07 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in 2004.
Natural gas prices for the three months ended December 31, 2005, averaged $10.77 per gigajoule, compared to
average prices of $6.16 per gigajoule for the corresponding period in 2004. The consequence of these changes in
electricity and natural gas prices was an average spark spread of $36.31 per megawatt hour for the three months
ended December 31, 2005, compared to $8.87 per megawatt hour for the corresponding period in 2004.

Spark spread is related to the difference between Alberta Power Pool electricity prices and the marginal cost of
producing electricity from natural gas. These spark spreads are based on an approximate industry heat rate of 7.5
gigajoules per megawatt hour.

Changes in spark spread affect the results of approximately 370 megawatts of plant capacity owned in Alberta by
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources out of a total world wide owned capacity of approximately 1,539 megawatts.

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $17.2 million to $56.9 million, primarily due to:
o the TXU Europe Settlement (refer to TXU Europe Settlement section);
e a full year of operations at ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ 580 megawatt Brighton Beach
generating plant commissioned in July 2004,
e improved merchant performance in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations; and
o higher earnings in ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Alberta generating plants due to higher spark
spreads realized on sales in the Alberta market.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ lower availability in ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant due to a planned maintenance outage in
September through November 2005.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices in 2005, averaged $70.36 per megawatt hour, compared to average prices of
$54.59 per megawatt hour in 2004. Natural gas prices in 2005, averaged $8.27 per gigajoule, compared to average
prices of $6.19 per gigajoule in 2004. The consequence of these changes in electricity and natural gas prices was an
average spark spread of $8.32 per megawatt hour in 2005, compared to $8.16 per megawatt hour in 2004.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 20035, increased by $74.3 million to $446.5 million, primarily
due to:
o higher fuel costs at ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant due to natural gas fuel purchases recovered on
a “no-margin” basis; and
¢ higher fuel costs at ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Alberta gas fired plants due to higher natural gas
prices.

At December 31, 2003, all of ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ non-regulated independent generating plants
were in service.
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During the three months ended December 31, 2005, Alberta Power (2000)’s deferred availability incentive
account increased by $14.4 million to $59.7 million. The increase was due to additional availability incentives
received for improved plant availability. During the three months ended December 31, 2005, the amortization of
deferred availability incentives, recorded in revenues, increased by $0.7 million to $2.7 million as compared to the
same period in 2004.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, Alberta Power (2000)’s deferred availability incentive account
increased by $13.6 million to $59.7 million. The increase was due to additional availability incentives received for
plant availability in excess of planned outages and amortization. During the year ended December 31, 2005, the
amortization of deferred availability incentives, recorded in revenues, increased by $1.3 million to $8.9 million as
compared to 2004, »

Global Enterprises

Revenues from the Global Enterprises Business Group for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased
by $14.5 million to $202.7 million, primarily due to:
e higher storage revenues due to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold
in ATCO Midstream.

This increase was partially offset by:
e lower activity in ATCO Frontec projects; and
e lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

Revenues from the Global Enterprises Business Group for the year ended December 31, 2005, decreased by $232.1
million to $688.0 million, primarily due to:
e lower volumes of natural gas purchased in ATCO Midstream for ATCO Gas as a result of the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Businesses; and
e lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

This decrease was partially offset by:
¢ higher prices for natural gas liquids in ATCO Midstream,
e higher storage revenues due to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold
in ATCO Midstream; and
¢ increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.

Earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2005, decreased by $2.1 million to $14.6 million, primarily
due to: ’
e lower volumes, and higher shrinkage and power costs for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO
Midstream.

This decrease was partially offset by:
¢ higher storage earnings due to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold
in ATCO Midstream.

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2005, increased by $3.8 million to $41.9 million, primarily due to:
e  higher storage earnings due to higher capacity leased and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold in
ATCO Midstream; and
e increased business activity, including work for new customers, in ATCO I-Tek.

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ lower volumes, and higher shrinkage and power costs for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO
Midstream.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005, decreased by $250.3 million to $538.8 million,
primarily due to:
s lower volumes of natural gas purchased in ATCO Midstream for ATCO Gas as a result of the Transfer of
the Retail Energy Supply Businesses; and
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¢ lower volumes of natural gas purchased for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

This decrease was partially offset by:
e higher shrinkage and power costs for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

Industrials

Revémiés_ from the Industrials 's'é'griiehrit for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased by $24.7 million
to $93.3 million, primarily due to:
e increased business act1v1ty in ATCO Structures’ operations in Canada, the United States and South
America.

This increase was partially offset by:
e lower business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in Europe.

Revenues from the Industrials segment for the year ended December 31, 2005, increased by $75.0 million to $295.1
million, primarily due to:
* increased business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in Canada, Australia and South America.

Earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2005, decreased by $1.0 million to $3.5 million, primérily due
to:
» losses incurred in ATCO Structures’ operations in Europe.

This decrease was partially offset by:
* increased business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in Canada and the United States.

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2005, increased by $1.8 million to $15.9 million, primarily due to:
» increased business activity in ATCO Structures’ operations in Canada and Australia.

This increase was partially offset by:
e losses incurred in ATCO Structures’ operations in Europe.

Demand for workforce housing products is directly related to the capital spending cycle and the level of
development activity in natural resource industries. During 2005, the utilization rate for ATCO Structures’
workforce housing fleet averaged 70%, up from 62% in 2004. Programs to modernize and rationalize the size of the
workforce housing lease fleet are continuing.

The space rentals utilization in 2005 averaged 87%, up from 84% in 2004, as a result of hlgh demand for these units
in Canada, Australia, Chile and the United Kingdom.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 20053, increased by $63.6 million to $249.2 million, primarily
due to:

¢ increased business activity in ATCO Structures.

ATCO Structures will continue to focus on its core businesses of workforce housing in North America, Australia,
South America and selective international markets and on the space rentals business in Australia, Canada, South
America and the United Kingdom. A number of major workforce housing projects, which provide opportunities for
ATCO Structures, are planned for development in 2006 and beyond. In addition, ATCO Structures will continue to
significantly increase its space rentals fleet.

ATCO Noise Management will continue to focus on turnkey noise abatement opportunities and the supply of turbine
silencing systems in the energy and petrochemical industries worldwide. ATCO Noise Management is focusing its
efforts on exploring industrial noise abatement opportunities in North America, Latin America and Europe. These
areas represent opportunities in the electrical power generation and fossil fuel markets where demand continues to
grow,
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On October 24, 2005, ATCO Noise Management announced that it had acquired all of the assets of Higgott-Kane
Industrial Noise Controls Ltd., a North American market leader in the supply of custom engineered turbine silencing
systems to power and oil and gas industries.

Corporate and Other

Earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2005 increased by $7.1 million to $(4.3) million, primarily due
to: .
e an unfavorable one-time tax adjustment in 2004 related to the ATCOR Resources income tax
reassessment (refer to ATCOR Resources Ltd. Tax Reassessment section).

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased by $0.9 million to $(20.1) million, primarily due to:
¢ an unfavorable one-time tax adjustment in 2004 related to the ATCOR Resources income tax reassessment
(refer to ATCOR Resources Ltd. Tax Reassessment section).

This increase was partially offset by:
¢ increased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A non-
voting share and ATCO Ltd. Class I share prices since December 31, 2004.

ATCOR Resources Ltd. Income Tax Reassessment

On March 3, 2005, the Supreme Court of Canada dismissed the Corporation’s application for leave to appeal and
decided not to hear the Corporation’s appeal of a $6.7 million income tax reassessment relating to its 1996 disposal
of ATCOR Resources Ltd. Due to the uncertainty as to whether the Supreme Court of Canada would hear the
Corporation’s appeal, the Corporation charged $6.7 million to earnings in its 2004 consolidated financial statements.
As a result, there was no material effect to the Corporation’s 2005 consolidated financial statements as a result of the
Supreme Court of Canada’s decision to not hear the Corporation’s appeal. For a description of this reassessment,
refer to Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulated operations are conducted by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, Northland Utilities (NWT), Northland
Utilities (Yellowknife) and Yukon Electrical, the ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines divisions of ATCO Gas and
Pipelines Ltd. and the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000), all of which are wholly owned subsidiaries of
Canadian Utilities” wholly owned subsidiary, CU Inc.

In July 2004, the AEUB issued its generic cost of capital decision. The decision established a standardized approach
for each utility company regulated by the AEUB for determining the rate of return on common equity based upon a
return of 9.60% on common equity. This rate of return is adjusted annually by 75% of the change in long term
Government of Canada bond yield as forecast in the November Consensus Forecast, adjusted for the average
difference between the 10 year and 30 year Government of Canada bond yields for the month of October as reported
in the National Post. This adjustment mechanism is the same as the National Energy Board uses in determining its
formula based rate of return. The AEUB will undertake a review of this mechanism for the year 2009 or if the rate
of return resulting from the formula is less than 7.6% or greater than 11.6%. The AEUB also noted that any party, at
any time, could petition for a review of the adjustment formula if that party can demonstrate a material change in
facts or circumstances.

The decision also established the appropriate capital structure for each utility regulated by the AEUB. The AEUB
determined that any proposed changes to the approved capital structure which result from a material change in the
investment risk of a utility will be addressed at utility specific rate applications.

In November 2004, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 9.50% for 2005 and in November
2005 announced a generic return on common equity of 8.93% for 2006. In January 2006, the AEUB clarified that
the generic return on equity determined on an annual basis in accordance with the generic cost of capital decision
should apply to each year of the test period in the companies’ applications. If no rate applications are filed for a
particular year, then there will be no adjustment to the common equity rate of return for that year.
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In July 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric filed applications with the AEUB addressing the impact on the 2003
and 2004 revenue requirements of the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses to DEML and the customer
care volume forecast for services provided by ATCO I-Tek Business Services for 2003 and 2004. In April and May
2005, the AEUB issued decisions which resulted in an increase to revenues and earnings of $2.4 million and $1.6
million, respectively.

In June 2005, as part of their rate applications, ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas submitted a filing to the AEUB that
addressed certain common matters. ATCO Pipelines is also a party to this filing as the concerns are common to all
three utilities. This filing included evidence regarding the appropriate ratemaking approach in the determination of
utility revenue requirements as well as treatment of pension costs, executive compensation, head office rent expense
and the continued use of preferred shares as a form of financing for the three utilities. The AEUB is expected to
hear this filing in May 2006 and a decision is expected in the fourth quarter of 2006.

ATCO Electric

In May 2005, ATCO Electric filed a general tariff application with the AEUB for the 2005 and 2006 test years
requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and operating costs
associated with increased rate base in Alberta. A decision from the AEUB on the general tariff application is not
expected until March 2006. In May and June 2005, ATCO Electric filed applications requesting interim refundable
rates for distribution and transmission operations, pending the AEUB’s decision on the general tariff application.
On July 14, 2005, ATCO Electric received a decision from the AEUB approving its requested interim refundable
rates for distribution operations. On September 7, 2005, ATCO Electric received a decision from the AEUB
approving an interim refundable rate increase of $5.0 million for transmission operations. Revenues associated with
these interim refundable rates were recorded in 2005.

In August 2002, the AEUB issued a decision in which it denied ATCO Electric’s application to adjust its 2001 and
2002 transmission and distribution revenue requirements by $4.6 million for changes in the amounts of deferred
income taxes recorded. In November 2002, ATCO Electric filed a review and variance application of the August
2002 decision with the AEUB. In May 2005, the AEUB changed its August 2002 decision and allowed ATCO
Electric to increase its revenues and earnings by $4.6 million.

ATCO Gas

On January 27, 2006, ATCO Gas received a decision on its general rate application which was filed with the AEUB
in May 2005 for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test years. The decision establishes the amount of revenue ATCO Gas can
recover through distribution rates for natural gas distribution service to its customers over the period of 2005 to
2007. In May 2005, ATCO Gas submitted a general rate application with the AEUB for the 2005, 2006 and 2007
test years. In August 2005, the AEUB approved interim refundable rates which recognized only 28% of the
increased operating costs and rate base additions requested in the original application. On January 27, 2006, ATCO
Gas received an AEUB decision which did not materially change the earnings based on the 2005 interim rates. The
final impact of the decision will not be known until two subsequent regulatory processes are finalized. There will be
no immediate impact on the ATCO Gas distribution rates as interim rates will continue until final rates are decided
by the AEUB in late 2006 or early 2007. The general rate application decision approved a return on common equity
as determined by the AEUB’s standardized rate of return methodology. The rate of return on common equity is
9.5% in 2005, 8.93% in 2006, and is yet to be determined for 2007,

In October 2001, the AEUB approved the sale by ATCO Gas of certain properties in the City of Calgary, known as
the Calgary Stores Block, for $6.6 million (excluding costs of disposition) and allocated $4.1 million of the proceeds
to customers and $1.8 million to ATCO Gas. In January 2004, the Alberta Court of Appeal overturned this decision
and directed the AEUB to allocate $5.4 million of the proceeds to ATCO Gas. The City of Calgary has appealed
this decision to the Supreme Court of Canada, which has also granted ATCO Gas leave to cross-appeal the decision.
The Supreme Court of Canada heard the appeal on May 11, 2005 and on February 9, 2006 rendered its decision.
The Supreme Court dismissed the City of Calgary’s appeal and allowed ATCO Gas’ cross-appeal. The decision will
not impact the 2005 earnings of ATCO Gas, as the Supreme Court has directed the AEUB to issue a new decision in
accordance with the Supreme Court’s ruling. Net proceeds totaling $4.1 million from the sale are being held
pending AEUB approval. It is anticipated that the AEUB will issue a new decision before the end of the first quarter
of 2006.
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In March 2004, the AEUB directed ATCO Gas to continue to reserve for the benefit of utility customers 16.7
petajoules of storage capacity at its Carbon natural gas storage facility for the 2004/2005 storage year, which ended
on March 31, 2005, and allowed ATCO Midstream to continue to utilize the remaining uncontracted capacity at a
rate of $0.45 per gigajoule, up from $0.41 per gigajoule. ATCO Gas was granted leave to appeal this AEUB
decision to the Alberta Court of Appeal. On June 17, 2005 the appeal was dismissed. On September 16, 2005,
ATCO Gas filed for leave to appeal the Alberta Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada. The
leave to appeal was denied on January 19, 2006.

In July 2004, the AEUB initiated a written process to consider its role in regulating the operations of the Carbon
natural gas storage facility. On June 15, 2005, the AEUB issued a decision with respect to this process. In addition
to addressing other matters, the decision found that the AEUB has the authority, when necessary in the public
interest, to direct a utility to utilize a particular asset in a specific manner, even over the objection of the utility.
ATCO Gas has filed for leave to appeal the decision with the Alberta Court of Appeal. On October 3, 2005, the
AEUB established processes to review the use of the Carbon natural gas storage facility for utility purposes.

ATCO Gas’ position is that the Carbon natural gas storage facility is no longer required for utility service.
Accordingly, in March 2005, ATCO Gas filed a letter with the AEUB in which it withdrew all evidence previously
filed by it with respect to the 2005/2006 Carbon Storage Plan, thus providing notice that none of the related costs
and revenues will form part of regulated operations on or after April 1, 2005. On March 23, 2005, the AEUB issued
an interim order directing ATCO Gas to maintain the Carbon natural gas storage facility in rate base and confirming
a lease of the entire storage capacity to ATCO Midstream at a placeholder rate of $0.45 per gigajoule until otherwise
determined by the AEUB. ATCO Gas filed for leave to appeal the interim order on April 15, 2005.

ATCO Gas has filed an application with the AEUB to address, among other things, corrections required to historical
transportation imbalances that have impacted ATCO Gas’ deferred gas account. In April 2005, the AEUB issued a
decision resulting in a 15% decrease in the transportation imbalance adjustments sought by ATCO Gas. The
decision resulted in a decrease to revenues and earnings of $1.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively. The City of
Calgary has filed for leave to appeal the AEUB’s decision. ATCO Gas has filed a cross appeal of the AEUB’s
decision. The cross appeal is contingent upon the granting of the City of Calgary’s leave to appeal which is
scheduled to be heard in February 2006.

In October 2005, ATCO Gas filed an application with the AEUB to approve the sale of its Red Deer Operating
Centre. In December 2005, the AEUB approved the sale and deferred its decision on the distribution of net proceeds
of $1.0 million until the Supreme Court of Canada renders a judgment in the appeal regarding the Calgary Stores
Block disposition and allocation of proceeds discussed above. The Supreme Court of Canada rendered its decision
on the Calgary Stores Block matter on February 9, 2006. ATCO Gas is now required to submit a filing to the AEUB
to approve the allocation of the net proceeds. The net proceeds of the sale remain in trust pending AEUB approval.

ATCO Pipelines

The AEUB has announced that it will hold a hearing to address competitive issues between ATCO Pipelines and
NOVA Gas Transmission Ltd. This hearing is expected to take place in 2006.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

A major portion of the Corporation’s operating income and cash flow is generated from its utility operations.
Canadian Ultilities and its wholly owned subsidiary, CU Inc., use commercial paper borrowings and short term bank
loans to provide flexibility in the timing and amounts of long term financing. ATCO Ltd. has received dividends
from Canadian Utilities which have been more than sufficient to service debt requirements and pay dividends.

Cash flow from operations for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased by $26.8 million to
$208.9 million, primarily due to:
* higher earnings.

Cash flow from operations for the year ended December 31, 2005, increased by $131.1 million to $735.4 million,
primarily due to:
¢ the TXU Europe Settlement (refer to TXU Europe Settlement section) ; and
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¢  higher earnings.

Investing for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased by $31.4 million to $175.6 million, primarily
due to: ;

o increased capital expenditures; and

 changes in non-current deferred electricity costs.

This increase was partially offset by: -
¢ changes in non-cash working capital in respect of investing activities.

Capital expenditures for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by $23.5 million to $200.3
million, primarily due to:
¢ increased investment in regulated natural gas transportation and distribution projects.

This increase was partially offset by: -
¢ lower investment in workforce housing and space rentals assets; and
¢ lower investment in non-regulated power generation projects.

Investing for the year ended December 31, 2005, increased by $3.3 million to $531.4 million, primarily due to:
e changes in non-cash working capital in respect of investing activities; and
e changes in non-current deferred electricity costs.

This increase was partially offset by:
e proceeds from the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses; and
¢ lower capital expenditures.

Capital expenditures for the year ended December 31, 20035, decreased by $18.1 million to $592.8 million,
primarily due to:
o lower investment in power generation and regulated electric projects.

This decrease was partially offset by:
* increased investment in regulated natural gas transportation and distribution projects and in workforce
housing and space rentals assets.

During the three months ended December 31, 2005, thé“Cor‘péra‘tion issued:
o $185.0 million of 5.183% Debentures due November 21, 2035; and
e $3.7 million of other long term debt.

During the three months ended December 31, 2005, the Corporation redeemed:
e 336.8 million of long term debt; and
¢  §11.6 million of non-recourse long term debt.

These changes resulted in a net debt increase of $140.3 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Corporation issued:
¢  $185.0 million of 5.183% Debentures due November 21, 2035, and
¢ §$50.5 million of other long term debt.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Corporation redeemed:
¢  §$125.0 million of 8.43% Debentures 1995 Series;
o  $56.2 million of other long term debt; and
¢  $60.7 million of non-recourse long term debt.

These changes resulted in a net debt decrease of $6.4 million.
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Foreign cﬁfrehcy translation for the three months ended December 31, 2005, increased the Corporation’s cash
position by $0.1 million to $0.2 million.

Foreign currency translation for the year ended December 31, 2005, decreased the Corporation’s cash position by
$11.8 million to ($12.1) million, primarily as a resuit of:

¢ strengthening of the Canadian dollar which resulted in a reduction in the value of cash balances

denominated in U.K. pounds when translated into Canadian dollars.

Capital expenditures to maintain capacity, meet planned growth and fund future development activities are expected
to be approximately $650 miilion in 2006, These expenditures are uncommitted and relate primarily to utility
operations.

Contractual obligations for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

Payments Due by Period
Less After
than 1 1-3 4-5 5
Contractual Obligations Total Year Years Years Years
($ Millions)
Long term debt ..o 2,274.1 175.6 181.5 2764 1,640.6
Non-recourse long term debt ... 868.4 64.1 1443 165.8 4942
OPELating IEASES. . .vvviierrerereeririeiorieees et esrecn e sbernrereeceneenees 66.6 17.0 28.7 13.6 73
Purchase obligations:
ATCO Gas natural gas purchase contracts (1)......c.c.ccovvenne. 9.0 1.1 2.2 2.2 35
Alberta Power (2000) coal purchase contracts (2) ................. 656.8 473 98.9 105.0 405.6
Alberta Power (2000) capital expenditures (3) ...ccooevvnineen 8.8 8.8 - - -
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources natural gas fuel supply
CONLIACES (4) 1ivrivieriiiiteie it e e er e ere e eve s 289.6 46.4 102.0 100.1 41.1
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources operating and
maintenance agreements (5}, 197.6 16.9 40.1 39.0 101.6
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources capital expenditures (6) 2.1 2.1 - - -
ATCO Electric capital expenditures (7)......cccoucreeireeiccninacns 19.6 19.1 0.5 - -
ONET 1.ttt 13.7 13.7 - - -
TOMAL oo et 4,406.3 412.1 598.2 702.1 26939
Notes:
(1) ATCO Gas has ongoing obligations to purchase fixed quantities of natural gas from various gas producers at

2
(3)
4

)
(6)

market prices that are in effect at the time the quantities are purchased. These obligations relate primarily to
operational contracts pertaining to the Carbon natural gas storage facility, which was not included in the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses to DEML and continues to be subject to AEUB regulation.
Some of these obligations are for the life of the gas reserves. The estimated value of these purchase
obligations is based on the market price of natural gas in effect on December 31, 2005, and assumes a
remaining life of 10 years for the gas reserves commencing January 1, 2004. DEML has agreed to purchase
the natural gas purchased under these contracts at the prices paid by ATCO Gas.

Alberta Power (2000) has fixed price long term contracts to purchase coal for its coal-fired generating plants.
These costs are recoverable pursuant to the power purchase arrangements.

Alberta Power (2000) has entered into contracis with suppliers to improve operating efficiency at certain of its
generating plants.

ATCO Power and ATCO Resources have various contracts to purchase natural gas for their natural gas-fired
generating plants. ATCO Power and ATCO Resources have long term offtake agreements with the purchasers
of the electricity to recover 78% of these costs. The balance of 22%, related to ATCO Power’s Barking
generating plant, is currently being recovered through merchant sales in the U.K. electricity market.

ATCO Power and ATCO Resources have various contracts with suppliers to provide operating and
maintenance services at certain of their generating plants.

ATCO Power and ATCO Resources have entered into various contracts to purchase goods and services with
respect to their capital expenditure programs.
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(7) ATCO Electric has entered into various contracts to purchase goods and services with respect to its capital
expenditure programs.

At December 31, 2005, the Corporation had the following credit lines that enable it to obtain funding for general
corporate purposes.

Total Used Available
(3 Millions)
Long term committed ..........ooeiiveiiiiiiiiiiie e 585.8 58.6 527.2
Short term COmMMILED ...viviiviiiiiieiier e 600.0 - 600.0
UNCOMITHIED L...ioviieiiiie et sen e aas s r et v eanes 1254 36.7 88.7
TOTAL.. oottt ettt anes 1,311.2 95.3 1,215.9

The amount and timing of future financings will depend on market conditions and the specific needs of the
Corporation.

Current and long term future income tax liabilities of $221.1 million at December 31, 2005, are attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. These
differences result primarily from recognizing revenue and expenses in different years for financial and tax reporting
purposes. Future income taxes will become payable when such differences are reversed through the settlement of
liabilities and realization of assets.

On May 27, 2004, the Corporation commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the
outstanding Class I shares. The bid expired on May 26, 2005. Over the life of the bid, 304,000 shares were
purchased, of which 262,000 were purchased in 2004 and 42,000 were purchased in 2005. On May 27, 2005, the
Corporation commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the outstanding Class I shares.
The bid will expire on May 26, 2006. From May 27, 2005, to February 22, 2006, 184,000 shares have been
purchased, all of which were purchased in 2005.

It is the policy of the Corporation to pay dividends quarterly on its Class I and Class II shares. In 2005, the
Corporation increased the dividends on Class I and Class 1I shares by $0.06 per share, the same increase as in 2004,
The Corporation has increased its annual common share dividend each year since 1993. The matter of an increase in
the quarterly dividend is addressed by the Board of Directors in the first quarter of each year. For the first quarter of
2006, the quarterly dividend payment has been increased by $0.015 to $0.205 per share. The payment of any
dividend is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and depends on the financial condition of the Corporation and
other factors.

On January 16, 2004, CU Inc. filed a base shelf prospectus which permits CU Inc. to issue up to an aggregate of
$750.0 million of debentures over the twenty-five month life of the prospectus.

e On January 23, 2004, CU Inc. issued $180.0 million of 5.432% Debentures due January 23, 2019, at a price
of 100 to yield 5.432%. The proceeds of the issue were advanced to ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas, ATCO
Pipelines and CU Water and used to fund capital expenditures, repay indebtedness and for general
corporate purposes.

« On November 18, 2004, CU Inc. issued $100.0 million of 5.096% Debentures due November 18, 2014, at a
price of 100 to yield 5.096% and $200.0 million of 5.896% Debentures due November 20, 2034, at a price
of 100 to yield 5.896%. The proceeds of the issues were advanced to ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas, ATCO
Pipelines and CU Water and used to fund capital expenditures, repay indebtedness and for general
corporate purposes.

o OnNovember 21, 2005, CU Inc. issued $185.0 million of 5.183% Debentures due November 21, 2035, at a
price of 100 to yield 5.183%. The proceeds of the issue were advanced to ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and
ATCO Pipelines and used to fund capital expenditures, repay indebtedness and for general corporate
purposes.

21 ATCO




OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

At February 21, 2006, the Corporation had outstanding 53,039,346 Class I shares and 6,960,018 Class 1I shares and
6,000,000 5.75% Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Series 3 (“Series 3 Preferred Shares™).

Class I Non-Voting Shares and Class Il Voting Shares

Each Class II share may be converted to one Class I share at the share owner’s option. In the event an offer to
purchase Class II shares is made to all owners of Class II shares, and is accepted and taken up by the owners of a
majority of such shares pursuant to such offer, then provided an offer is not made to the owners of Class I shares on
the same terms and conditions, the Class I shares shall be entitled to the same voting rights as the Class II shares.
The two classes of shares rank equally in all other respects.

Of the 5,100,000 Class I shares reserved for issuance in respect of options under the Corporation’s stock option plan,
1,145,600 Class I shares were available for issuance at December 31, 2005. Options may be granted to directors,
officers and key employees of the Corporation and its subsidiaries at an exercise price equal to the weighted average
of the trading price of the shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant. The vesting provisions and exercise period (which cannot exceed 10 years) are determined at the time
of grant. As of February 21, 2006, options to purchase 1,694,600 Class I shares were outstanding.

Series 3 Preferred Shares

On and after December 1, 2008, the Corporation may convert all or any of the Series 3 Preferred Shares into Class I
shares. The number of Class [ shares into which each Series 3 Preferred Share may be converted will be determined
by dividing the applicable redemption price together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by the greater of $2.00
and 95% of the weighted average trading price of Class I shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange for a period of 20
consecutive trading days ending on the fourth day prior to the date specified for conversion.

On and after December 1, 2011, each Series 3 Preferred Share will be convertible at the option of the owner, on the
first day of March, June, September and December of each year, into that number of Class I shares determined by
dividing $25.00 together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by the greater of $2.00 and 95% of the then current
market price of the Class I shares. If an owner of Series 3 Preferred Shares elects to convert any of the shares into
Class I shares, the Corporation may elect to redeem the Series 3 Preferred Shares for cash or arrange for the sale of
such shares to substitute purchasers. At any time, the Corporation may offer the owners of the Series 3 Preferred
Shares the right to convert into a further series of preferred shares.

The Series 3 Preferred shares are redeemable at the option of the Corporation commencing on December 1, 2008, at
the stated value plus a 4% premium for the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The redemption
premium declines by 2% in each succeeding 12 month period until December 1, 2010.

At this time, ATCO Ltd. expects to redeem the Series 3 Preferred Shares wholly in cash.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Corporation’s transactions with related parties are in the normal course of business and under normal
commercial terms. For a description of these transactions, refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS RISKS

On February 16, 2005, the Kyoto Protocol came into effect. The Corporation is unable to determine what impact the
protocol may have on its operations as the Government of Canada has not yet provided industry specific details for
its 2005 Climate Change Plan. It is anticipated that the Corporation’s power purchase arrangements (“PPA’s™)
relating to its coal-fired generating plants will allow the Corporation to recover any increased costs associated with
the implementation of the protocol.
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Regulated Operations

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines are regulated primarily by the AEUB, which administers acts and
regulations covering such matters as rates, financing, accounting, construction, operation and service area. The
AEUB may approve interim rates, subject to final determination. These subsidiaries are subject to the normal risks
faced by companies that are regulated. These risks include the approval by the AEUB of customer rates that permit
a reasonable opportunity to recover on a timely basis the estimated costs of providing service, including a fair return
on rate base. The Corporation’s ability to recover the actual costs of providing service and to earn the approved
rates of return depends on achieving the forecasts established in the rate-setting process.

Weather

Weather fluctuations have a significant impact on throughput in ATCO Gas. Since approximately 50% of ATCO
Gas’ delivery charge is recovered based on throughput, ATCO Gas’ revenues and earnings are sensitive to weather.
Weather that is 10% warmer or colder than normal temperatures impacts annual earnings by approximately
$5.9 million.

Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses

Although ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric have transferred to DEML certain retail functions, including the supply of
natural gas and electricity to customers and billing and customer care functions, the legal obligations of ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric remain if DEML fails to perform. In certain events (including where DEML fails to supply
natural gas and/or electricity and ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric are ordered by the AEUB to do so), the
functions will revert to ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer proceeds to DEML by
ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric.

Centrica plc, DEML’s parent, has provided a $300 million guarantee, supported by a $235 million letter of credit in
respect of DEML’s obligations to ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric and ATCO I-Tek Business Services in respect of the
ongoing relationships contemplated under the transaction agreements. However, there can be no assurance that the
coverage under these agreements will be adequate to cover all of the costs that could arise in the event of a reversion
of such functions.

Canadian Utilities has provided a guarantee of ATCO Gas’, ATCO Electric’s and ATCO I-Tek Business Services’
payment and indemnity obligations in respect of the ongoing relationships to DEML contemplated under the
transaction agreements.

As a result of the agreements with DEML, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric are no longer involved in arranging for
the supply and sale of natural gas and electricity to customers, but will continue to own the assets and provide the
transportation and distribution services under AEUB approved rates that provide for a recovery of costs of service
and a fair return.

Late Payment Penalties on Utility Bills

As a result of decisions of the Supreme Court of Canada in Garland vs. Consumers’ Gas Co., the imposition of late
payment penalties on utility bills has been called into question. The Corporation is unable to determine at this time
the impact, if any, that these decisions will have on the Corporation.

Alberta Power (2000)

Included in regulated operations are the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000), which were regulated by the
AEUB until December 31, 2000, but are now governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that were approved by the
AEUB. These plants are included in regulated operations primarily because the PPA’s are designed to allow the
owners of generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover their forecast fixed and variable costs and
to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become deregulated upon the expiry of the PPA’s.
Each PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of the estimated life of the related generating plant
and December 31, 2020.
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Substantially all the electricity generated by Alberta Power (2000) is sold pursuant to PPA’s. Under the PPA’s,
Alberta Power (2000) is required to make the generating capacity for each generating unit available to the purchaser
of the PPA for that unit. In return, Alberta Power (2000) is entitled to recover its forecast fixed and variable costs
for that unit from the PPA purchaser, including a return on common equity equal to the long term Government of
Canada bond rate plus 4.5% based on a deemed common equity ratio of 45%. Many of the forecast costs will be
determined by indices, formulae or other means for the entire period of the PPA. Alberta Power (2000)’s actual
results will vary and depend on performance compared to the forecasts on which the PPA’s were based.

Under the terms of the PPA’s, the Corporation is subject to an incentive/penalty regime related to generating unit
availability. Incentives are paid to the Corporation by the PPA counterparties for availability in excess of
predetermined targets, whereas penalties are paid by the Corporation to the PPA counterparties when the availability
targets are not achieved.

Accumulated incentives in excess of accumulated penalties are deferred. For any of the individual PPA’s, should
accumulated incentives plus estimated future incentives exceed accumulated penalties plus estimated future
penalties, the excess will be amortized to revenues on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the PPA’s.
Should accumulated penalties plus estimated future penalties exceed accumulated incentives plus estimated future
incentives, the shortfall will be expensed in the year the shortfall occurs.

At December 31, 20035, the Corporation had recorded $59.7 million of deferred availability incentives.

Fuel costs in Alberta Power (2000) are mostly for coal supply. To protect against volatility in coal prices, Alberta
Power (2000) owns or has sufficient coal supplies under long term contracts for the anticipated lives of its Battle
River and Sheerness coal-fired generating plants. These contracts are at prices that are either fixed or indexed to
inflation.

As a result of unprecedented drought conditions, the water levels in the cooling pond used by the Battle River
generating plant in its production of electricity had fallen to all-time lows in early 2003 and in 2004 and the
Corporation was forced to curtail production of electricity. Water levels in the cooling pond have returned to normal
for this time of year and there has been no curtailment of production in 2005 or to date in 2006.

Alberta Environment plans to implement mercury emission standards for coal-fired generating plants through a new
provincial regulation that is expected to be in place by March 2006. Owners of coal-fired generating plants are
required to submit proposals on capturing at least 70% of the mercury in the coal burned in their plants by March
2007. The proposals for mercury emission reduction must be implemented by 2010. It is anticipated that the
Corporation’s PPA’s relating to its coal-fired generating plants will allow the Corporation to recover most of the
costs associated with complying with the new regulation.

Measurement Inaccuracies in Metering Facilities

Measurement inaccuracies occur from time to time with respect to ATCO Electric’s, ATCO Gas’ and ATCO
Pipelines’ metering facilities. Measurement adjustments are settled between the parties based on the requirements
of the Electricity and Gas Inspections Act (Canada) and applicable regulations issued pursuant thereto. There is a
risk of disallowance of the recovery of a measurement adjustment if controls and timely follow up are found to be
inadequate by the AEUB.

Non-Regulated Operations

The Corporation’s non-regulated operations are complementary to its traditional regulated businesses and are related
to them in terms of skills, knowledge and experience. The Corporation accounts for its non-regulated operations
separately from its regulated operations. The Corporation’s non-regulated operations are subject to the risks faced
by any commercial enterprise in those industries and in those countries in which they operate.

ATCO Power and ATCO Resources

The Corporation’s portfolio of non-regulated electric generating plants is made up of gas-fired cogeneration, gas-
fired combined cycle, gas-fired simple cycle, and small hydro plants. The majority of operating income from power
generation operations is derived through long term power, steam and transmission support agreements. Where long
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term agreements are in place, the purchaser assumes the fuel supply and price risks and the Corporation, under these
agreements, assumes the operating risks.

ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ generating plants include high efficiency gas-fired cogeneration plants, with
associated on-site steam and power tolling arrangements, and gas-fired peaking and hydroelectric plants with
underlying transmission support agreements. In 2005, sales from approximately 71% of ATCO Power’s and ATCO
Resources’ generating capacity were subject to long term agreements, while the remaining 29% consisted primarily
of sales to the Alberta Power Pool and the U.K. merchant power market. In 2006, these percentages are expected to
be approximately the same. These sales are dependent on prices in the Alberta electricity spot market and in the
U.K. merchant power market. The majority of the electricity sales to the Alberta Power Pool are from gas-fired
generating plants, and as a result operating income is affected by natural gas prices. During peak electricity usage
hours in Alberta, a strong correlation exists between electricity spot prices and natural gas spot prices. During off-
peak hours, there is less correlation. The correlation is expected to increase in the future as customer load grows and
older plants are decommissioned.

Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads can be very volatile, as shown in
the following graph, which illustrates a range of prices experienced during the period January 2000 to February
2006.

Alberta Power Pool Prices, Natural Gas Prices and Spark Spreads
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Changes in Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads may have a significant
impact on the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from operations in the future. It is the Corporation’s policy to
continually monitor the status of its non-regulated electrical generating capacity that is not subject to long term
commitments.

Since October 2004, the output from ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant previously sold to TXU Europe (refer
to TXU Europe Settlement section) has been sold into the U.K. power exchange market. In the UK., electricity
generators, on average, sell over 90% of their output to electricity suppliers in bilateral contracts; use power
exchanges for approximately 7% of their output, and sell the remaining 2-3% via the Balancing Mechanism.
Approximately 40% of the electricity generated is supplied from natural gas-fired generating plants, and the market
has experienced an increase in electricity prices due to the increased world prices for natural gas. The Barking
generating plant has a long term, fixed price gas purchase agreement and, as a result, has been able to experience
increased margins due to rising market prices for electricity. Changes in the U.K. market electricity prices may have
an impact on the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from operations in the future.
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ATCO Power and ATCO Resources have financed their non-regulated electrical generating capacity on a non-
recourse basis. In these projects, the lender’s recourse in the event of default is limited to the business and assets of
the project in question, which includes the Corporation’s equity therein. Canadian Utilities has provided a number
of guarantees related to ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ obligations under their respective non-recourse loans
associated with certain of their projects. ATCO Power (80%) and ATCO Resources (20%) have a joint venture in
these projects subject to guarantees, excluding Barking Power. ATCO Ltd. has indemnified and agreed to reimburse
Canadian Ultilities for any amounts it may be required to pay under these guarantees in respect of ATCO Resources’
20% interest. The guarantees outstanding at December 31, 2005, are described in Note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements. To date, Canadian Utilities has not been required to pay any of its guaranteed obligations.

ATCO Midstream

Timing, capacity and demand of ATCO Midstream’s storage business as well as changes in market conditions may
impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from storage operations.

ATCO Midstream extracts ethane and other natural gas liquids from natural gas streams at its extraction plants.
These products are sold under either long term cost of service arrangements or market based arrangements. Changes
in market conditions may impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from natural gas liquids extraction
operations.

ATCO Frontec

ATCO Frontec’s operations include providing support to military agencies in foreign locations which may be
subject to political risk.

ATCO Structures and ATCO Noise Management

International sales may expose ATCO Structures and ATCO Noise Management to greater risk than normally
associated with domestic transactions. This risk is mitigated by contractual arrangements with credit worthy
counterparties and the active management of any foreign exchange risks.

CONTINGENCIES

The Government of Canada has filed a claim in the amount of $70 million which alleges that the Corporation is
liable for the destruction of property owned by the Governments of Canada and the United States. The Corporation
believes that the claim is without merit and, in any event, has sufficient insurance coverage in place to cover any
material amounts that might become payable as a result of the claim. Accordingly, the claim is not expected to have
any material impact on the financial position of the Corporation

The Corporation is party to a number of other disputes and lawsuits in the normal course of business. The
Corporation believes that the ultimate liability arising from these matters will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

HEDGING

In conducting its business, the Corporation uses various instruments, including forward contracts, swaps and
options, to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. All
such instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purposes. For details on the financial instruments
in place at December 31, 2005, refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Unrecorded future income tax liabilities of the regulated operations amounted to $171.3 million at December 31,
2005. This balance includes $28.2 million in respect of Alberta Power (2000)’s generating plants, which will be
recovered through future payments received in respect of the PPA’s. The remainder, amounting to $143.1 million,
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is expected to be recovered from utility customers through inclusion in future rates. There are tax loss carryforwards
of $0.7 million for Canadian subsidiary corporations and tax loss carryforwards of $10.3 million for a foreign
subsidiary for which no tax benefit has been recorded. These losses begin to expire in 2010. For additional
information on the Corporation’s unrecorded future income tax liabilities, refer to Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Other than the financial instruments discussed under “Hedging”, the Corporation does not have any off-balance
sheet arrangements that have, or are likely to have, a current or future effect on the results of operations or financial
condition, including, without limitation, such considerations as liquidity and capital resources.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. On an on-going basis, management reviews its
estimates, particularly those related to depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and impairment of long-
lived assets, amortization of deferred availability incentives, asset retirement obligations and employee future
benefits, using currently available information. Changes in facts and circumstances may result in revised estimates,
and actual resulits could differ from those estimates. The Corporation’s critical accounting estimates are discussed
below.

Deferred Availability Incentives

As noted in the Business Risks section, Alberta Power (2000) is subject to an incentive/penalty regime related to
generating unit availability. As at December 31, 2005, the Corporation had recorded $59.7 million of deferred
availability incentives. The amoriization of deferred availability incentives, which was recorded in revenues,
amounted to $8.9 million in 2005.

The amount to be amortized is dependent upon estimates of future generating unit availability and future electricity
prices over the term of the PPA’s. Each quarter, the Corporation uses these estimates to forecast high case, low case
and most likely scenarios for the incentives to be received from, less penalties to be paid to, the PPA counterparties.
These forecasts are added to the accumulated unamortized deferred availability incentives outstanding at the end of
the quarter; the resulting total is divided by the remaining term of the PPA to arrive at the amortization for the
quarter.

Compared to the most likely scenario recorded in revenues for the year, the high case scenario would have resulted
in higher revenues of approximately $4.3 million, whereas the low case scenario would have resulted in lower
revenues of approximately $2.2 million.

Employee Future Benefits

The expected long term rate of return on pension plan assets is determined at the beginning of the year on the basis
of the long bond yield rate at the beginning of the year plus an equity and management premium that reflects the
plan asset mix. Actual balanced fund performance over a longer period suggests that this premium is about 1%,
which, when added to the long bond yield rate of 5.9% at the beginning of 2005, resulted in an expected long term
rate of return of 6.9% for 2005. This methodology is supported by actuarial guidance on long term asset return
assumptions for the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans, taking into account asset class returns, normal
equity risk premiums, and asset diversification effect on portfolio returns.

Expected return on plan assets for the year is calculated by applying the expected long term rate of return to the
market related value of plan assets, which is the average of the market value of plan assets at the end of the
preceding three years. The expected long term rate of return has declined over the past four years, from 8.1% in
2001 to 6.9% in the year ended December 31, 2005. The result has been a decrease in the expected return on plan
assets and a corresponding increase in the cost of pension benefits. In addition, the actual return on plan assets over
the same period has been lower than expected (i.e., an experience loss), which is also contributing to an increase in
the cost of pension benefits as losses are amortized to earnings.
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The liability discount rate that is used to calculate the cost of benefit obligations reflects market interest rates on
high quality corporate bonds that match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments. The liability discount
rate has also declined over the same four year period, from 6.9% at the end of 2001 to 5.1% at the end of 2005. The
result has been an increase in benefit obligations (i.e., an experience loss), which is contributing to an increase in the
cost of pension benefits as losses are amortized to earnings.

In accordance with the Corporation’s accounting policy to amortize cumulative experience gains and losses in
excess of 10 percent of the greater of the accrued benefit obligations or the market value of plan assets, the
Corporation began amortizing a portion of the net cumulative experience losses on plan assets and accrued benefit
obligations in 2003 for both pension benefit plans and other post employment benefit plans and continued this
amortization during the three months and the year ended December 31, 2005,

The assumed annual health care cost trend rate increases used in measuring the accumulated post employment
benefit obligations in the three months and the year ended December 31, 2005, are as follows: for drug costs, 9.3%
starting in 2005 grading down over 8 years to 4.5%, and for other medical and dental costs, 4.0% for 2005 and
thereafter. Combined with higher claims experience, the effect of these changes has been to increase the costs of
other post employment benefits.

The effect of changes in these estimates and assumptions is mitigated by an AEUB decision to record the costs of
employee future benefits when paid rather than accrued. Therefore, a significant portion of the benefit plans
expense or income is unrecognized by the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000).

The sensitivities of key assumptions used in measuring accrued benefit obligations and benefit plan cost (income)
for 2005 are outlined in the following table. The sensitivities of each key assumption have been calculated
independently of changes in other key assumptions. Actual experience may result in changes in a number of
assumptions simultaneously.

2005 Pension 2005 Other Post
Benefit Plans Employment Benefit Plans
Accrued Benefit Accrued Benefit
Benefit Plan Cost Benefit Plan Cost
Obligation (Income) Obligation (Income)
($ Millions)
Expected long term rate of return on plan assets
1% 1ncrease (1) v - 3.7 - -
1% decrease (1) e - 3.7 - -
Liability discount rate
1% 1ncrease (1) i (66.0) 5.7 3.7 0.4)
1% decrease (1) e 83.5 73 4.6 0.5
Future compensation rate
1% increase (1) oo 203 3.0 - -
1% decrease (1) eecnirnineenerise e (17.5) (2.6) - -
Long term inflation rate
1% inerease (1)(2)(3) v 27.8 3.6 4.1 0.7
1% decrease (1) (3) oo (45.3) (5.6) 3.3 (0.6)

Notes:

(1) Sensitivities are net of the associated regulatory asset (liability) and unrecognized defined benefit plans cost
(income), which reflect an AEUB decision to record costs of employee future benefits in the regulated
operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000), when paid rather than accrued.

(2) The long term inflation rate for pension plans reflects the fact that pension plan benefit payments are indexed fo
increases in the Canadian Consumer Price Index to a maximum increase of 3.0% per annum.
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(3) The long term inflation rate for other post employment benefit plans is the assumed annual health care cost
trend rate described in the weighted average assumptions.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

During 2005, the Corporation adopted the recommendations of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
(“CICA™) pertaining to the consolidation of variable interest entities, lease arrangements and retractable or
mandatorily redeemable shares. None of these policies had any material effect on the Corporation’s financial
staternents. These changes in accounting policy are discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Effective December 31, 2005, the Corporation retroactively adopted the CICA guideline pertaining to the disclosure
and presentation of information by entities subject to rate regulation. This guideline no longer permits the netting of
accrued and regulatory pension and other post employment benefits assets and liabilities, with the result that the
Corporation’s total assets and liabilities reported in 2004 increased by $154.4 million. This change in presentation
had no effect on the Corporation’s earings and earnings per share or cash flows. Accounting for rate regulated
operations is described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

February 22, 2006
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION
This Annual Information Form (“AIF) contains forward-looking statements pertaining to purchase obligations,
planned capital expenditures, anticipated completion dates of projects, the impact of changes in government
regulation, non-regulated generating capacity subject to long term contracts and Industrials segment market
developments. The Corporation’s actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-
looking statements as a result of regulatory decisions, competitive factors in the industries in which the Corporation
operates, prevailing economic conditions, and other factors, many of which are beyond the control of the
Corporation.

DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS

Certain terms used in this Annual Information Form are defined below:
“AEUB” means the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board;
“AGP” means ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd.;
“Alberta Power (2000)” means Alberta Power (2000) Ltd,,
“Alberta Power Pool” means the market for electricity in Alberta operated by the Alberta Electric System Operator;
“ASHCOR Technologies” means ASHCOR Technologies Ltd.;
“ATCO” means ATCO Ltd.;
“ATCO Electric” means ATCO Electric Ltd.;

“ATCO Frontec” means ATCO Frontec Corp. together with its subsidiaries;
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“ATCO Gas” means the natural gas distribution division of AGP;

“ATCO I-Tek” means ATCO I-Tek Inc.

“ATCO I-Tek Business Services” means ATCO I-Tek Business Services Ltd.;

“ATCO Investments” means ATCO Investments Ltd.;

“ATCO Midstream” means ATCO Midstream Ltd.;

“ATCO Noise Management” means ATCO Noise Management Ltd. together with its subsidiaries;

“ATCO Pipelines” means the natural gas transportation division of AGP;

“ATCO Power” means ATCO Power Ltd. together with its subsidiaries;

“ATCO Resources” means ATCO Resources Ltd.;

“ATCO Structures™” means ATCO Structures Inc. together with its subsidiaries;

“ATCO Travel” means ATCO Travel Ltd.,

“ATCO Utility Services” means ATCO Utility Services Ltd.;

“BPL” means Barking Power Limited,;

“Canadian Utilities” means Canadian Utilities Limited together with its subsidiaries;

“Class I Shares” means the Class I Non-Voting Shares of the Corporation;

“Class II Shares” means the Class II Voting Shares of the Corporation;

“Corporation” means ATCO Ltd. and, unless the context otherwise requires, includes its subsidiaries;

“CU” means Canadian Utilities Limited;

“CU Water” means CU Water Limited,

“EEEP” means the Edmonton Ethane Extraction Plant;

“EUA” means the Electric Utilities Act (Alberta);

“Genics” means Genics Inc.;

“GUA” means the Gas Utilities Act (Alberta);

“km” means kilometre;

“Mmecf” means one million cubic feet and “Bcef’ means one billion cubic feet;

“negotiated settlement” means an agreement related to a revenue requirement and/or customer rates for a specific
period of time resulting from direct negotiations between a utility and its customers. A negotiated settlement avoids
the need for a general rate application for the duration of the agreement. All negotiated settlements must be
approved by the AEUB;

“NLD” means Northland Utilities (NWT) Limited;
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“NUY” means Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) Limited,

“petajoule” means a unit of energy equal to approximately 948.2 billion British thermal units, “terajoule” means a
unit of energy equal to approximately 948.2 million British thermal units and “gigajoule” means a unit of energy
equal to approximately 948.2 thousand British thermal units;

“PPA” means power purchase arrangements that became effective on January 1, 2001, as part of the process of
restructuring the electric utility business in Alberta. The PPA’s are legislatively mandated and approved by the
AEUB;

“REA” means Rural Electrification Association. REA’s are constituted under the Rural Utilities Act (Alberta) by
groups of persons carrying on farming operations. Each REA purchases electric power for distribution to its
members through a distribution system owned by that REA;

“Thames Power” means Thames Power Limited,

“YECL” means The Yukon Electrical Company Limited.

ATCO LTD.

The Corporation is the successor to the business commenced in 1947 by the late S.D. Southern and R.D. Southern
and was incorporated under The Companies Act (Alberta) by Certificate of Incorporation dated August 31, 1962,
The Corporation was continued under the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) on March 13, 1984, The address of
the principal and registered office of the Corporation is 1600 ATCO Centre, 909 — 11" Avenue S.W., Calgary,
Alberta TZR IN6.
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The following chart includes the names of the principal operating subsidiaries of the Corporation, the jurisdictions
under the laws of which they are organized and the percentages of their shares beneficially owned or over which
control or direction is exercised by the Corporation.

ATCO Ltd.
Alberta
1
Canadian Utilities
Limited
(Canada)
!
[ 100% | 100% | 100% 1 100% 100%
CU Inc. ATCO ATCO ATCO I-Tek ATCO
Power Ltd. Midstream Ltd. Inc. Structures Inc.
(Canada) _(Canada) (Canada) (Canada) (Alberta)
100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
ATCO Gas and ATCO Power ATCO ATCO I-Tek ATCO Structures
Pipelines Ltd. Canada Ltd. Frontec Corp. Business Services Ltd, Pty Ltd.
(Alberta) (Canada) (Alberta) (Canada) (Australia)
100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
CU Water ATCO Power ATCO ASHCOR ATCO Structures
Limited Generation Ltd. Travel Ltd. Technologies Ltd. (U.S.A)) Inc.
(Canada) (England) (Canada) (Canada) (Alaska)
100% 50% 50% 100%
Alberta Power Thames Genics ATCO
(2000) Ltd. Power Limited Inc. Europe Kft.,
(Canada) (England) (Alberta) (Hungary)
100% 51% 100%
ATCO Barking ATCO Structures
Electric Ltd. Power Limited UK. Ltd.
(Canada) (England) (United Kingdom)
100% 100% 50%
The Yukon Electrical ATCO Power Tecno Fast
Company Limited Australia Pty Ltd. ATCO S.A.
(Yukon Territory) {(Australia) (Chile)
100% 100%
Norven ATCO Noise
Holdings Inc. Management Ltd.
(Canada) (Alberta)
76% 100%
Northland Utilities ATCO
Enterprises Ltd. Investments Ltd.
(Canada) (Alberta)
100% 100%
Northland Utilities ATCO
(Yellowknife} Limited Rescurces Ltd.
(Canada) (Alberta)
100%
Northland Utilities
(NWT) Limited
{Northwest Territories
100%
ATCO Utility
Services Ltd.
(Canada)

Note:
(1) At December 31, 2005, ATCO Ltd. owned 74.2% of the Class B common shares, being the only voting securities
outstanding, and 39.9% of the Class A non-voting shares of Canadian Ulilities Limited.
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BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation is a holding company. Its principal operating subsidiaries are engaged in regulated natural gas and
electric energy operations, primarily in Alberta, and in related non-regulated operations. Regulated operations are
conducted by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, NLD, NUY and YECL, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines.
Included in regulated operations are the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000), which were regulated by the
AEUB until December 31, 2000, but are now governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that were approved by the
AEUB. These plants are included in regulated operations primarily because the PPA’s are designed to allow the
owners of generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover their forecast fixed and variable costs and
to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become deregulated upon the expiry of the PPA’s.
Each PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of the estimated life of the related generating plant
and December 31, 2020.

The Corporation operates in the following business segments:

The Utilities Business Group includes the regulated distribution of natural gas by ATCO Gas, the regulated
distribution and transmission of electric energy by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, NLD, NUY and YECL, the
regulated transportation of natural gas by ATCO Pipelines, the regulated transmission and distribution of water by
CU Water, and the provision of non-regulated complementary projects by ATCO Utility Services.

The Power Generation Business Group includes the non-regulated supply of electricity and cogeneration steam by
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources and the regulated supply of electricity by Alberta Power (2000).

The Global Enterprises Business Group includes the non-regulated gathering, processing, storage, purchase and
sale of natural gas by ATCO Midstream, the provision of project management and technical services for customers
in the industrial, defence and transportation sectors by ATCO Frontec, the development, operation and support of
information systems and technologies by ATCO 1-Tek, the provision of billing services, payment processing, credit,
collection and call centre services by ATCO I-Tek’s subsidiary, ATCO I-Tek Business Services, the sale of fly ash
and other combustion byproducts produced in coal fired electrical generating plants by ASHCOR Technologies, the
manufacture of wood preservation products by Genics, the sale of travel services to both business and consumer
sectors by ATCO Travel, the manufacture, sale and lease of transportable workforce shelter and space rentals
products by ATCO Structures (Industrials) and the design, supply and construction of industrial noise abatement by
ATCO Noise Management (Industrials).

The Corporate and Other segment includes commercial real estate owned by ATCO and ATCO Investments in
Calgary, Alberta and by CU in Fort McMurray, Alberta,

Three Year History

The significant events and conditions that have influenced the general development of the Corporation’s business
over the past three years are summarized below. A number of these events and conditions are discussed in greater
detail elsewhere in this Annual Information Form.

200s:

e Volatility in prices received for electricity sold to the Alberta Power Pool by ATCO Power and ATCO
Resources and for electricity sold into the United Kingdom Power Exchange Market by ATCO Power.

o Increased business activity in ATCO Structures operations in Canada, Australia and South America.
o  Fluctuations in temperatures affecting ATCO Gas’ operations.

o In 2005, the Corporation received $83.1 million as its share of the partial settlement of the claim for
damages related to TXU Europe’s breach of its contract with BPL. An additional payment of $16.6 million
was received on January 19, 2006 and a final installment of approximately $1.6 million is expected in the
second quarter of 2006. The settlement is expected to generate earnings after income taxes and non-
controlling interests of approximately $35 million, based on foreign currency exchange rates in effect on
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March 30, 2005, which will be recognized over the remaining term of the TXU Europe contract to
September 30, 2010, at approximately $5.5 million per year. These earnings will be dependent upon the
foreign currency exchange rates in effect at the time the earnings are recognized.

In November 2005, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 8.93% for 2006. In
January 2006, the AEUB clarified that the generic return on equity determined in accordance with the
generic cost of capital decision should apply to each year of the test period in the companies applications.
If no rate applications are filed for a particular year, then there will be no adjustment to the common equity
rate of return for that year.

In November 2005, the AEUB approved ATCO Pipelines as the party to manage the acquisition and sale of
working gas at its salt cavern storage. Salt cavern working gas had historically been acquired by ATCO
Gas and its predecessors.

In May 2005, ATCO Gas filed a general rate application with the AEUB for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test
years requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and
operating costs associated with increased rate base in Alberta. In June 2005, ATCO Gas filed an
application requesting interim refundable rates pending the AEUB’s decision on the general rate
application. On August 28, 2005, ATCO Gas received a decision from the AEUB approving an interim
refundable rate increase, to be collected from northern customers, of $7.0 million. A decision from the
AEUB was received on January 27, 2006, which resulted in an earnings impact that is not materially
different from the earnings based on the interim rates approved by the AEUB in August 2005.

In April 2005, ATCO Midstream leased the full storage capacity at ATCO Gas’ Carbon natural gas storage
facility for the 2005/2006 year resulting in higher storage revenues due to higher capacity leased and the
timing and demand of storage capacity sold.

On March 3, 2005, the Supreme Court of Canada dismissed the Corporation’s application for leave to
appeal and decided not to hear the Corporation’s appeal of a $6.7 million income tax reassessment relating
to its 1996 disposal of ATCOR Resources Ltd. Due to the uncertainty as to whether the Supreme Court of
Canada would hear the Corporation’s appeal, the Corporation charged $6.7 million to earnings in its 2004
consolidated financial statements. There was no material effect on the Corporation’s 2005 consolidated
financial statements as a result of the Supreme Court of Canada’s decision to not hear the Corporation’s
appeal.

2004:

Volatility in prices received for electricity sold to the Alberta Power Pool by ATCO Power and ATCO
Resources.

In September 2004, ATCO Structures announced it had been awarded a contract to supply a 2,100 person
camp to Nexen Inc. for the Long Lake project in the Athabasca oil sands region of northern Alberta. The
camp was completed in December 2005.

In August 2004, the Corporation reorganized its structure into three business groups: Utilities (ATCO Gas,
ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, NLD, NUY and YECL, ATCO Pipelines, CU Water, ATCO Utility
Services); Power Generation (ATCO Power, ATCO Resources, Alberta Power (2000)); and Global
Enterprises (ATCO Midstream, ATCO Frontec, ATCO I-Tek and its subsidiary ATCO I-Tek Business
Services, ASHCOR Technologies, Genics, ATCO Travel, ATCO Structures, ATCO Noise Management).

In August 2004, ATCO Electric completed construction of a $99.0 million, 350 kilometre 240 kilovolt
transmission line between Fort McMurray and Whitefish Lake.

In a decision dated July 13, 2004, the AEUB awarded ATCO Pipelines additional revenue with respect to
the revenue forecasts of certain industrial customers.
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In July 2004, ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Brighton Beach generating plant in Windsor, Ontario
was completed and commenced commercial operations.

In July 2004, the AEUB issued its generic cost of capital decision, establishing a standardized approach for

determining the rate of return on common equity for each utility company (ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and

ATCO Pipelines) regulated by the AEUB. The decision also established capital structures for each utility

company regulated by the AEUB. This resulted in:

o ATCO Electric obtaining an approved 2004 return on common equity of 9.60% and a common equity
ratio of 33% for its transmission operations and 37% for its distribution operations. The impact of this
decision was an increase in the common equity that ATCO Electric was allowed to eamn a return on by
$23.0 million in 2004.

o ATCO Pipelines obtaining an approved 2004 rate of return on common equity of 9.60% and a common
equity ratio of 43%.

o ATCO Gas was not impacted by this decision for 2004 as its return on common equity of 9.50% and
its common equity ratio of 37% had already been approved by the AEUB in a decision dated October
1, 2003. The Generic Cost of Capital decision approved, among other things, ATCO Gas’ common
equity ratio of 38% beginning in 2005.

In 2001, the Corporation received and paid income tax reassessments of $21.3 million relating to the 1996
disposal of ATCOR Resources Ltd. Of this amount, $12.9 million was assessed to CU and $8.4 million to
ATCO. The Corporation did not agree with the reassessment and contested the matter with tax authorities.
Accordingly, the payments were recorded as a reduction of future income tax liabilities.

During 2003, the Corporation was successful in appealing the reassessments to the Tax Court of Canada.
The Federal Government appealed the Tax Court’s decision to the Federal Court of Appeal, which issued a
decision on June 18, 2004 in favor of CU with respect to the entire amount of its $12.9 million
reassessment, and in favor of ATCO for $1.7 million of its $8.4 million reassessment. The Federal
Government did not appeal the Federal Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada. With
respect to CU, the Corporation received a refund of $15.1 million, including interest, and reversed the
future income tax reduction of $12.9 million. With respect to ATCQO, the Corporation filed for leave to
appeal the Federal Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada. Due to the uncertainty as
to whether the Supreme Court of Canada would hear the Corporation’s appeal, the Corporation reversed the
future income tax reduction of $8.4 million, reduced income taxes payable by $1.7 million for the expected
refund and charged $6.7 million to earnings.

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric closed the transfer of their retail energy supply businesses
to Direct Energy Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML”), a subsidiary of
Centrica plc (“Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses”) for $90 million. The transfer increased
2004 earnings by $28.5 million. As a result of the transfer, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric are no longer
involved in arranging for the supply and sale of natural gas and electricity to customers, but continue to
own the assets and provide transportation and distribution services under AEUB approved rates that
provide for a recovery of costs of service and fair return. ATCO I-Tek Business Services entered into a 10
year contract to provide billing and call centre services to DEML.

2003:

Volatility in prices received for electricity sold to the Alberta Power Pool by ATCO Power and ATCO
Resources.

In a decision dated December 2, 2003, the AEUB approved for ATCO Pipelines, among other things, a rate
of return on common equity of 9.50% and a common equity ratio of 43.5% for 2003. The decision also set
aside certain transactions with affiliates that are to be finalized through a collaborative benchmarking
process with customers and the AEUB. This process is still ongoing.

In December 2003, ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Scotford generating plant at Scotford, Alberta
was completed and commenced commercial operations.
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¢ In a decision dated October 2, 2003, the AEUB approved, among other things, a rate of return on common
equity of 9.40% and a common equity ratio of 32% for ATCO Electric’s transmission operations and 35%
for its distribution operations for 2003. These reductions in the common equity ratios reduced the common
equity that ATCO Electric was allowed to earn a return on by $83.0 million for 2003. The decision also set
aside certain transactions with affiliates that are to be finalized through a collaborative benchmarking
process with customers and the AEUB. This process is still ongoing.

e In a decision dated October 1, 2003, the AEUB approved for ATCO Gas, among other things, a rate of
return on common equity of 9.50% for 2003 and 2004 and a common equity ratio of 37% for 2003 and
2004. The decision also set aside certain transactions with affiliates that are to be finalized through a
collaborative benchmarking process with customers and the AEUB. This process is still ongoing.

e In September 2003, ATCO Frontec’s contract with the Department of National Defense to provide support
services for six peace-keeping installations in Bosnia-Herzagovina expired.

o In April 2003, the AEUB determined that it would proceed with a generic cost of capital hearing to focus
on the possibility of establishing a standardized approach to determine the rate of return on equity and
capital structure for all utilities under the jurisdiction of the AEUB.

o In the first quarter of 2003, ATCO Gas commenced the first phase of a $278 million project to relocate
natural gas meters currently inside homes to the outside. The project will make the distribution system
safer by relocating and replacing aging infrastructure, improve metering accuracy and accessibility, and
facilitate more efficient meter reading. The AEUB approved a program which will result in meters with
underground entries being relocated over 10 years and all other inside meters moved as part of the existing
meter recall program The decision also allows ATCO Gas to move meters at any time if they are deemed
unsafe.

e In January 2003, ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Cory generating plant near Saskatoon,
Saskatchewan was completed and commenced commercial operations. o

¢ In January 2003, ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ Muskeg River generating plant near Fort
McMurray, Alberta was completed and commenced commercial operations.

Utilities
Natural Gas Distribution

ATCO Gas is primarily engaged in the business of distributing natural gas throughout Alberta and in the
Lloydminster area of Saskatchewan. Although ATCO Gas is the major natural gas distributor in Alberta, certain
areas are served by other natural gas utilities.

ATCO Gas’ principal markets for the distribution of natural gas are in the communities of Edmonton, Calgary,
Airdrie, Camrose, Fort McMurray, Grande Prairie, Lethbridge, Lloydminster, Red Deer, St. Albert and Sherwood
Park, which have a combined population of approximately 2,108,000. Also served are 279 smaller communities as
well as rural areas having a combined population of approximately 558,000, located on or in the vicinity of ATCO
Pipelines’ transportation systems or the natural gas transportation pipelines of other companies. ATCO Gas
provides approximately 940,000 customers with natural gas service, of whom approximately 75% are located in the
11 communities named above.
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The number of customers served by ATCO Gas as at the end of each of the last two years was as follows:

2005 2004
RESIACNUIAL.....cvveiiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt et et be et e ebe s sav e e e rtesesb e s saabesetbeesar s 858,618 834,883
COMIMEITIAL 1 ..oiiiiii ettt et et eeere s te s sab e b e b e e s s st e ate s aae s eeeeneeeransennesreans 80,630 79,084
TRAUSTEIBL. .ot ettt ettt r et r ettt as e 350 359
(6] 4 T=) OO OO OSSOSO OO USROS TUPRORUION - 21
1011 FOR S OO U OO OO OO OO U RU U URURPPORTOTOOINE 939,598 914,347

ATCO Gas owns and operates approximately 35,400 km of distribution mains. In addition, ATCO Gas owns
modern service and maintenance facilities in major centres.

Revenues and earnings of ATCO Gas are affected by temperature and consequently winter weather can have a
significant impact. During a typical year, more than 90% of the eamings of ATCO Gas are generated during the
months of January, February, November and December.

The amounts of natural gas distributed by ATCO Gas for each of the last two years were as follows:

2005 2004
(petajoules)
RESIAENIIAL......ooviieiis ettt e e v e ea et te s s sbe e enas 103.8 107.3
COMIMEITIAL c.vviii e ettt e st s et ee st et e s at s s ns e e eateneeesseireasesrinns 96.9 98.1
INAUSETIAL. ..ot et eetb e ettt e et eene s ers s e e s sbaenie s 14.4 14.5
(] ¢ 1=, U PEORT OO R TP RSO S EOTUU NSRRI PRTOIORt 0.4 2.8
O] vttt ettt ee ettt e ettt e eb oot b e et e e bt e bt tae e ate s sentrresreesans 2155 222.7

Natural Gas Supply

As a result of the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses to DEML in May 2004, ATCO Gas is no longer
involved in arranging for the supply and sale of natural gas to customers, but will continue to own the assets and
provide transportation and distribution services under AEUB approved rates that provide for a recovery of costs of
service and fair return.

Prior to April 1, 2005, as directed by the AEUB, ATCO Gas purchased fixed quantities of natural gas from various
gas producers at market prices that are in effect at the time the quantities are purchased. Effective April 1, 2005, as
directed by the AEUB, ATCO Gas no longer purchases fixed quantities of natural gas related to storage purchases
and operational contracts pertaining to its natural gas field storage facility at Carbon, Alberta. ATCO Gas has leased
the entire storage capacity of the Carbon facility to ATCO Midstream for the period April 1, 2005 to March 31,
2006. For additional information related to the leasing of the Carbon natural gas storage facility to ATCO
Midstream, refer to the Regulatory Matters, ATCO Gas section of the Corporation’s Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (“MD&A™), page 18, which is available at www.sedar.com.

In 2003, ATCO Gas commenced the first phase of a $278 million project to relocate natural gas meters currently
inside homes to the outside. The project will make the distribution system safer by relocating and replacing aging
infrastructure, improve metering accuracy and accessibility, and facilitate more efficient meter reading. The AEUB
approved a program which will result in meters with underground entries being relocated over 10 years and all other
inside meters moved as part of the existing meter recall program. The decision also allows ATCO Gas to move
meters at any time if they are deemed unsafe.

CU Water

CU Water is engaged in the transmission and distribution of water. CU Water owns and operates a distribution
system to supply water to rural customers and small towns east of Edmonton. At the end of 2005, 976 customers
were being served directly by CU Water and, in addition, bulk water sales were being made to the towns of Tofield
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and Viking and to 13 commercial water haulers. The operations of CU Water are subject to regulation by the
AEUB.

Natural Gas Transportation

ATCO Pipelines is engaged in the business of transporting natural gas throughout Alberta and the operation of a salt
cavern storage peaking facility.

ATCO Pipelines owns and operates extensive natural gas transportation systems. The systems consist of
approximately 8,343 km of pipelines, 23 compressor sites and a salt cavern storage peaking facility. The systems
have 217 producer receipt points, 78 interconnections with TransCanada Pipelines Limited, five interconnections
with Alliance Pipeline and one interconnection with Many Islands Pipelines.

ATCO Pipelines’ revenues are based primarily on contractual arrangements for access to its transportation systems.
Contract demand for access, and interruptible (IT), overrun (OR) and variable volumes for each of the last two years
was as follows:

2005 2004
(terajoules/day)
Contract Demand:
PrOQUCET oottt sttt e s e rb o bt e bt sttt e enenn s e e e rantsaannes 1,291 1,253
INAUSHIIAL ..o vttt ettt ettt ettt e 1,015 1,054
DISEITBULION ...ttt ettt et 93 89
ATTIHALES (.oviiie ittt e e et e s b e e et e et e ert s e reren, 2,431 2,210
TOtAL ..ot b e ettt 4,830 4,606
1T/OR/Variable Volumes:
PrOAUCET .ttt ettt ettt r s tr e r e e s 243 257
INAUSHIIAL ..ot ettt ettt et 241 258
DASEIIDULION ..ttt ettt e s s e st e e e st te e s e bes s ee st ts e bbb e b e e s ntseeaanns 2 7
TOMAL oo e ettt et 486 522
Total Contract Demand and IT/OR/Variable VOIUMES ......cooooviviieniiiiieiei e, 5,316 5,128

The AEUB approved the conversion of sales service to transportation service for certain customers of ATCO
Pipelines. This conversion was completed during 2005.

Electric Distribution and Transmission

ATCO Electric is engaged in the business of transmitting and distributing electric energy to 238 comumunities as
well as rural areas in east-central and northern Alberta. Included are the communities of Drumheller, Lloydminster,
Grande Prairie and Fort McMurray as well as the oil sands areas near Fort McMurray and the heavy oil areas near
Cold Lake and Peace River. Electric utility service is also provided to one community in British Columbia and to
two communities in Saskatchewan. YECL serves 19 communities in the Yukon Territory, including the capital city
of Whitehorse, and NUY and NLD serve 9 communities in the Northwest Territories, including the capital city of
Yellowknife.
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Electricity distributed to the various classes of customers for each of the last two years was as follows:

2005 2004
Millions Millions
of of

Kilowatt Kilowatt
Hours % Hours %
InAUSEEIAl. oo 6,583 66 6,597 67
COMIMEITIAL ..ivcviiiiriiii it 1,826 19 1,796 18
Residential ..........cooiviriiiiiiiice e 1,023 10 1,032 10
Rural, REAs and other............ccoocovii i 494 5 485 5
TOtAL. oot 9,926 100 9,910 100

The aggregate population of the areas provided with electric utility service by ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and
YECL is approximately 456,000 and service is provided to approximately 211,000 customers. ATCO Electric has
been assigned approximately 65% of the designated service area within Alberta which contains approximately 15%
of the existing provincial electrical load and 13% of the existing population.

The number of customers served by ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and YECL as at the end of each of the last two
years was as follows:

2005 2004
Number %o Number %
INAUSEEIAL ..ot 10,847 5 10,691 5
CommMETCIAL ....voiviviirecrini et 28,673 14 28,068 14
Residential.......coocviiviiiiiiicei et 141,806 67 138,066 67
Rural, REAs and other............occcovviimvii s 29,536 14 29,421 14
TOtal i s 210,862 100 206,246 100

ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and YECL own and operate extensive electric transmission and distribution systems.
The systems consist of approximately 9,400 km of main transmission lines and 59,800 km of distribution lines. In
addition, ATCO Electric delivers power to and operates approximately 12,100 km of REA-owned distribution lines.

ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and YECL own and operate 33 diesel, natural gas turbine and hydro generating plants
having an aggregate nameplate capacity of 62 megawatts in Alberta and in the Yukon and Northwest Territories.
The maximum peak load demand for these plants during the year ended December 31, 2005, was 32 megawatts.

Franchises

AGP, ATCO Electric, YECL, NUY and NLD distribute natural gas and electricity in incorporated communities
under the authority of franchises or by-laws and in rural areas under approvals, permits or orders issued pursuant to
applicable statutes.

In Edmonton, distribution of natural gas is carried on under the authority of an exclusive franchise. In 2004, AGP
entered into an agreement with the City of Edmonton for a 10 year renewal of the franchise to November 15, 2015,
The franchise renewal is subject to the right of the City of Edmonton, at the end of the renewal period, to purchase
all of AGP’s assets within the city and its assets outside the city used in supplying natural gas to the city. The
purchase price would be the amount of the actual value thereof as a going concern plus 10% of such value.
Although the franchise agreement gives the City certain rights of purchase, since 1935 the City has granted renewals
for 10 year periods.

In Calgary, distribution of natural gas is carried on under the authority of a municipal by-law. The rights of AGP
under this by-law, while not exclusive, are unrestricted as to time. The by-law does not confer any right on the City
of Calgary to acquire the facilities used in providing the service.
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The franchises under which service is provided in other incorporated communities in Alberta and in the Northwest
Territories have been granted for periods of up to 20 years. These franchises are exclusive to AGP, ATCO Electric,
NUY or NLD and are renewable by agreement for further periods not exceeding 20 years each in the case of AGP
and 10 years in the case of ATCO Electric, NUY and NLD. If any franchise is not renewed, it remains in effect
until such time as either party, with the approval of the prevailing regulatory authority, terminates it on six months
written notice. Upon termination of a franchise the municipality may purchase the facilities used in connection with
that franchise at a price to be agreed upon or, failing agreement, to be fixed by the prevailing regulatory authority.
The franchise under which service is provided in the Yukon Territory was granted under the Public Utilities Act
(Yukon Territory) and has no set expiry date.

Power Generation
Power generation operations are conducted by Alberta Power (2000), ATCO Power and ATCO Resources.
Regulated (Alberta Power (2000))

Alberta Power (2000) is engaged in the regulated supply of electricity in Alberta. Alberta Power (2000)’s assets are
operated by ATCO Power pursuant to management agreements. The generating plants of Alberta Power (2000)
were regulated by the AEUB until December 31, 2000, but are now governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that
were approved by the AEUB. These plants are included in regulated operations primarily because the PPA’s are
designed to allow the owners of generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover their forecast fixed
and variable costs and to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become deregulated upon
the expiry of the PPA’s. Each PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of the life of the related
generating plant and December 31, 2020.

Substantially all of the electricity generated by Alberta Power (2000) is sold pursuant to PPA’s with EPCOR
Utilities Inc. (Battle River generating plant) and TransCanada Energy Ltd. (Sheerness generating plant). The
Sheerness PPA was sold to TransCanada Energy Ltd. by the Alberta Balancing Pool effective January 1, 2006 and
the Rainbow PPA expired on December 31, 2005. Under the PPA’s, Alberta Power (2000) is required to make the
generating capacity for each generating unit available to the purchaser of the PPA for that unit. In return, Alberta
Power (2000) is entitled to recover its forecast fixed and variable costs for that unit from the PPA purchaser,
including a return on common equity equal to the long term Government of Canada bond rate plus 4.5% based on a
deemed common equity ratio of 45%. Many of the forecast costs will be determined by indices, formulae or other
means for the entire period of the PPA. Alberta Power (2000)’s actual results will vary and depend on performance
compared to the forecasts on which the PPA’s are based.

Alberta Power (2000) continues to operate the Rainbow and Sturgeon generating plants and the electricity generated
is sold to the Alberta Power Pool. Alberta Power (2000) has one year from the expiry of the PPA’s to determine
whether to decommission the plants or continue operating them. To date, no decision has been made with respect to
the ongoing status of these plants.
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The name plate capacity ratings of Alberta Power (2000)’s generating plants as at December 31, 2005 are listed
below.

Name Plate PPA
Commissioning  Type of Generating Capacity Expiry
Plant Date Plant Rating PPA Purchaser Date
(megawatts)
Battle River
Unit3...... 1969 coal-fired steam turbine 150 EPCOR Utilities Inc. 2013
Unit4........... 1973 coal-fired steam turbine 150 EPCOR Utilities Inc. 2013
Unit5........... 1981 coal-fired steam turbine 370 EPCOR Utilities Inc. 2020
670
Sheerness (1)(2)
Unit1......... 1986 coal-fired steam turbine 190 TransCanada Energy Ltd. 2020
Unit2........ 1991 coal-fired steam turbine 190 TransCanada Energy Ltd. 2020
380
Rainbow (3).... 1968 natural gas turbine 88 2005
Sturgeon.......... 1957 natural gas turbine 18 Merchant
Total 1,156
Note:

(1) Alberta Power (2000)’s ownership of the 760 megawatt name plate capacity.

(2) TransCanada Energy Ltd. became the PPA purchaser on January 1, 2006, previously the PPA purchaser was
the Alberta Balancing Pool.

(3) PPA expired December 31, 2003.

Alberta Power (2000) manages the Sheerness generating plant under long term agreements with TransAlta
Cogeneration L.P. for the equal sharing of ownership and cost of electric capacity.

Alberta Power (2000) owns or has committed under long term contracts sufficient coal supplies for the anticipated
lives of its Battle River and Sheerness generating plants.

Non-Regulated (ATCO Power and ATCO Resources)
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources are engaged in the non-regulated supply of electricity and cogeneration steam
in Canada, the United Kingdom and Australia. ATCO Power also manages Alberta Power (2000)’s assets. ATCO

Power continues to focus its development efforts on independent power production projects in Canada, Australia
and the United Kingdom.
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ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ non-regulated independent cogeneration plants and generating plants, with
their respective commissioning dates and name plate capacity ratings, are shown below.

Commissioning Name Plate Net
Location Date Capacity Rating Ownership Ownership
(megawatts) (megawatts)
Canada:
McMahon, B.C. 1993 120 50.0% 60
Primrose, Alberta 1998 85 50.0% 42
Poplar Hill, Alberta 1998 45 100.0% 45
Rainbow Lake, Alberta 1999 90 50.0% 45
Joffre, Alberta 2000 480 40.0% 192
Valleyview, Alberta 2001 45 100.0% 45
Muskeg River, Alberta 2003 170 70.0% 119
Cory, Saskatchewan 2003 260 50.0% 130
Oldman River, Alberta 2003 32 100.0% 32
Scotford, Alberta 2003 170 100.0% 170
Brighton Beach, Ontario 2004 580 50.0% 290
United Kingdom:
Barking, London 1995 1,000 25.5% 255
Heathrow Airport 1990 14 50.0% 7
Australia:
Osborne, South Australia 1998 180 50.0% 90
Bulwer Island, Queensland 2001 33 50.0% 17
Total 3,304 1,539
Canada

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a joint venture with McMahon Power Holdings L.P. The joint venture owns and
operates the 120 megawatt McMahon cogeneration plant at Taylor, British Columbia. All of the electricity
generated is sold to British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority pursuant to an electricity purchase agreement
expiring in 2014. In addition to generating electricity, the plant sells steam to Westcoast Energy Inc.’s adjacent
natural gas processing plant.

A joint venture, owned by ATCO Power, Canadian Natural Resources Limited (“CNRL”) and ATCO Resources,
operates an 85 megawatt cogeneration power plant (the “Primrose Steam Enhancement Plant™) near Bonnyville,
Alberta. The joint venture sells electricity and steam to CNRL for use in its heavy oil recovery process. Any excess
electricity generated is sold to the Alberta Power Pool or to specific customers. ATCO Power owns a 40% interest
in the project, ATCO Resources owns 10% and CNRL owns 50%.

ATCO Power operates a 45 megawatt natural gas-fired generating plant at Poplar Hill near Grande Prairie, Alberta.
Revenues are derived from power sold to the Alberta Power Pool and from transmission deferral credits contracted
with the Alberta Power Pool. ATCO Power owns an 80% interest in the project and ATCO Resources owns 20%.

ATCO Power operates a 90 megawatt natural gas-fired generating plant at Rainbow Lake, Alberta which sells steam
and electricity to Husky Energy Inc. (“Husky”). Surplus electricity is sold to the Alberta Power Pool. ATCO Power
owns a 40% interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 10% and Husky owns 50%.

ATCO Power, EPCOR Power Development Corporation and NOVA Chemicals Corporation (“NOVA”) are
participants in a joint venture which operates a 480 megawatt natural gas-fired cogeneration plant near Joffre,
Alberta. ATCO Power is the operator of the facility. NOVA purchases all of the steam and approximately 25% of
the electricity produced for use in NOVA’s Joffre petrochemical site under an energy purchase agreement expiring
in 2020. The balance of the output is sold to the Alberta Power Pool or to specific customers. ATCO Power owns a
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32% interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 8%, EPCOR Power Development Corporation owns 40% and
NOVA owns 20%.

ATCO Power operates a 45 megawatt natural gas-fired generating plant near Valleyview, Alberta. All of the
electricity produced by the plant is sold to the Alberta Power Pool. ATCO Power owns an 80% interest in the
project and ATCO Resources owns 20%.

ATCO Power and SaskPower International Inc. (“SPI”) are participants in a joint venture which operates a 170
megawatt natural gas-fired cogeneration plant and related facilities at the Athabasca Qil Sands Project (“AOSP”)
Muskeg River mine near Fort McMurray, Alberta. Approximately one-half of the electricity and all of the steam
produced by the plant are supplied to AOSP for use in its Muskeg River mine. The balance of the electricity
generated is sold to the Alberta Power Pool. ATCO Power owns a 56% interest in the project, ATCO Resources
owns 14% and SPI owns 30%.

ATCO Power and SPI are participants in a joint venture which operates a 260 megawatt natural gas-fired
cogeneration plant at Potash Corporation of Saskatchewan Inc.’s Cory Mine, located near Saskatoon, Saskatchewan.
ATCO Power is the operator of the facility. Saskatchewan Power Corporation has agreed to purchase all of the
electricity generated by the plant for 25 years. ATCO Power owns a 40% interest in the project, ATCO Resources
owns 10% and SPI owns 50%.

ATCO Power operates a 32 megawatt hydroelectric generating plant at the Oldman River dam near Pincher Creek,
Alberta. All of the electricity produced by the plant is sold to the Alberta Power Pool. ATCO Power owns an 80%
interest in the project and ATCO Resources owns 20%. The Piikani Nation of Brockett, Alberta has an option
which expires March 31, 2006, to purchase a 25% interest in the project.

ATCO Power operates a 170 megawatt natural gas-fired cogeneration plant at the AOSP upgrader at Scotford,
Alberta. Approximately 80% of the electricity and all the thermal energy produced by the plant is supplied to AOSP
for use in the upgrader and the balance of the electricity is sold to the Alberta Power Pool. ATCO Power owns an
80% interest in the project and ATCO Resources owns 20%.

A partnership formed by ATCO Power and Ontario Power Generation (“OPG”) owns and operates the Brighton
Beach power plant, a 580 megawatt natural gas-fired combined cycle generating plant in Windsor, Ontario. Coral
Energy Canada Inc. supplies and pays for the natural gas used at the plant and owns, markets and trades all the
electricity produced under contracts expiring in 2024, ATCO Power owns a 40% interest in the project, ATCO
Resources owns 10% and OPG owns 50%.

At December 31, 2005, all of ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ non-regulated independent generating plants
were in service.

United Kingdom

ATCO Power and Balfour Beatty plc, a United Kingdom construction group, each own a 50% equity interest in
Thames Power, a London, England based company. Thames Power has a 51% interest in BPL which owns a 1,000
megawatt natural gas-fired combined cycle generating plant at Dagenham in London, England (the “Barking power
plant”). EDF Energy plc (“EDF”) and SSE Energy Supply Limited (“SSE”) own the remaining 49% interest in
BPL. EDF and SSE have entered into long term agreements expiring in 2010 to purchase 72.5% of the electricity
produced at the plant. The remaining 275 megawatts of power is being sold into the United Kingdom electricity
market on a merchant basis under a one year marketing agreement expiring September 30, 2006. The majority of
the 275 megawatts has been sold forward under this agreement through the end of March 2006 with smaller volumes
sold forward through September 2006. The Barking power plant is operated by ATCO Power.

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a joint venture with a subsidiary of EDF. The joint venture owns and operates a
facility consisting of a 14 megawatt natural gas turbine, 40 megawatts of boiler capacity and an associated heat
distribution system at London’s Heathrow Airport. The joint venture has a 15 year energy services contract,
expiring in 2010, with BAA plc, owner of the Heathrow Airport, for all of the electric energy and hot water
produced by the facility.
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Australia

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a joint venture with Origin Energy Limited (“Origin”). The joint venture owns
and operates a 180 megawatt cogeneration plant in Osborne, South Australia. This joint venture supplies electricity
to Flinders Osbome Trading Pty Ltd (“FOT”) under a 20 year electricity purchase agreement expiring in 2018, In
addition to generating electricity, the plant provides steam under a 20 year agreement, expiring in 2018, to Penrice
Soda Products Pty Ltd. The Government of South Australia has guaranteed the obligations of FOT under these
agreements.

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a consortium with Origin. The consortium owns and operates a 33 megawatt
natural gas-fired cogeneration plant and other utility infrastructure at BP Amoco plc’s (“BP”) Bulwer Island
refinery, near Brisbane, Queensland. All of the power and steam produced by the plant is sold to BP under a 20 year
agreement expiring in 2021.

Global Enterprises
Non-Regulated Natural Gas Gathering, Processing and Storage

ATCO Midstream owns and operates non-regulated gathering and processing facilities in Alberta. ATCO
Midstream provides natural gas procurement/load balancing services for other ATCO subsidiaries, management
services for ATCO Gas’ storage field at Carbon and markets non-regulated storage products. Effective April 1,
2005, ATCO Midstream leased the full storage capacity at ATCO Gas’ Carbon storage facility for the period April
1, 2005 to March 31, 2006. Upon the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in 2004, ATCO Midstream
ceased providing natural gas procurement services to ATCO Gas.

ATCO Midstream owns a 51.3% interest in EEEP. Located in south Edmonton, EEEP is a natural gas processing
plant which extracts ethane and other natural gas liquids from natural gas flowing into the Edmonton market area.
Ethane is sold to an Alberta ethylene producer under a long term contract that expires in December 2012 and other
natural gas liquids are sold under another long term contract that expires in May 2014,

ATCO Midstream’s natural gas liquids extraction plants with plant capacity ratings are shown below:

Plant Net
Facility Extraction Capacity Ownership Ownership
(Mmcf/day) (Mmcf/day)
Edmonton Ethane Extraction Plant C2 & C3+ NGL mix 360 51.3% 185
Empress Gas Liquids Straddle Plant (3) C2 & C3+ NGL mix 1,100 12.2% 134
Golden Spike Gas Plant C2+NGL mix 40 100.0% 40
Villeneuve Ethane Extraction Plant C2+NGL mix 40 100.0% 40
Fort Saskatchewan Ethane Extraction Plant C2+NGL mix 35 100.0% 35

1,575 434

Note:

(1) Propane, butane and pentanes-plus (“C3”) and a mixture of ethane and other natural gas liquids (“"NGL").
(2) Ethane (“C2”) and a mixture of other NGL's.

(3) Operated by ATCO Midstream.

ATCO Midstream owns or has a joint venture interest in eight natural gas processing plants, five of which it
operates, three compression facilities, all of which it operates, and approximately 1,000 km of field gathering lines.
Natural gas production from the producing properties connected to ATCO Midstream’s natural gas gathering
systems is processed by ATCO Midstream and either transported for a fee or purchased and sold under contracts
with third parties.
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ATCO Midstream’s natural gas processing plants with plant capacity ratings are shown below:

Facility Plant Capacity Operator
(Mmcf/day)
CarbOndale........ooriei e et 55 Yes
Cranberry / Chinchaga CompleX ..o 124 No
GOIAEN SPIKE ..oviiiiriiiiectec ettt et rs s sr e sttt st r bt es e s 65 Yes
Nottingham Gas PIant.........c.ccoeiiiinieiririnir et eser st aes e 13 No
Puskwaskau Gas PIant.........ccooiv ettt e 21 No
WaAtelet Gas PLANL .v..ccoiiiiniriiiee et s ere e et cba e b e e sare s 21 Yes
West Pembina Gas Plant........cccccoveieiveiiiiiiiceicecre et et 145 Yes
Widewater Gas PLANE .......cc..oioeiiiiiiciee e et cne et vt et 7 Yes
451

ATCO Midstream has an agreement for natural gas storage capacity at ATCO Gas’ Carbon natural gas storage
facility in Alberta. ATCO Midstream utilizes this capacity to provide storage services to third parties.

Technical Facilities Management

ATCO Frontec, through its own operations and through a number of joint ventures, provides project management
and technical services for customers in the industrial, defence, telecommunications and transportation sectors.
Activities include the operation and maintenance of the Alaska Radar System, the Solid State Phased Array Radar
System and various remote sites for Northwestel Inc. in northern Canada. ATCO Frontec provides construction,
site support and technical support for NATO in Afghanistan, Pakistan and eastern Europe. ATCO Frontec also
provides airport operation and maintenance, security, facilities management, bulk fuel storage and distribution and a
wide variety of services and business activities in various locations throughout Canada and the world.

ATCO Frontec and Pan Arctic Inuit Logistics Corporation (“Pan Arctic”) have a contract with the Government of
Canada, until September 2006, to operate and maintain the North Warning System. The Government of Canada has
an option to extend the contract until 2011. Nasittuq Corporation, a corporation jointly owned by ATCO Frontec
and Pan Arctic, operates as agent for the purposes of the contract.

Technologies

ATCO 1-Tek is engaged in the development, operation and support of information systems and technologies.

ATCO I-Tek Business Services provides billing services, payment processing, credit, collection and call centre
services to its clients. ATCO I-Tek Business Services currently provides such services to DEML for its regulated
retail and competitive energy supply businesses in Alberta. In addition, ATCO I-Tek Business Services also
supplies distribution-related billing and customer care services to ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric.

DEML has entered into a 10 year contract effective May 4, 2004, with ATCO I-Tek Business Services to provide
billing and call centre services to ensure continued quality customer service. DEML has the ability to terminate this
contract after the fifth anniversary upon immediate payment of termination fees which decline over the remaining
term of the contract. Based upon current customer counts and service levels and a 10 year contract, revenues are

estimated to be between $400-$500 million over the term of the contract.

ASHCOR Technologies is engaged in the sale of fly ash and other combustion byproducts produced in coal-fired
electrical generating plants.

ATCO Travel is engaged in the sale of travel services to both business and consumer sectors. ATCO Travel is one
of the largest independent travel agencies in western Canada.

The Corporation owns a 50% interest in the shares of Genics, a manufacturer of wood preservation products.
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Industrials

ATCO Structures is engaged in the manufacture, sale and lease of transportable shelters and related products.
ATCO Structures has marketed and installed its manufactured products in over 105 countries around the world since
1947 and has established a reputation as a leader in the international supply of relocatable shelter products. Products
sold are manufactured in Canada, the United States, Australia and Chile and under subcontract in other jurisdictions.

ATCO Structures employs engineers and designers whose expertise in designing modular buildings, complemented
by technicians experienced in selection of materials and modular construction methods, results in the manufacturing
of products for use anywhere in the world ranging from sophisticated custom-designed projects to basic construction
camp facilities and modular housing.

Workforce Housing

ATCO Structures’ sells and leases workforce housing products including prefabricated standardized or custom units
that are designed to be assembled into self contained camps complete with sleeping accommodation, kitchen, dining
and recreation facilities. The units are designed to be used in all weather conditions and are fully transportable.
Workforce housing products are used primarily by companies in the oil and gas, forestry products and mining
industries and by governments.

The workforce housing lease fleet of 2,718 units (1,409 units in Canada) includes sleeping accommodation,
kitchens, diners, recreation facilities and washcars. The fleet is maintained to meet the latest standards set by the
building industry and trade unions and is refurbished and upgraded as required. ATCQO Structures also purchases
used workforce housing units from customers which are then retrofitted as required and made available for resale or
lease in the workforce housing market.

ATCO Structures also sells and leases Fold-A-Way metal buildings domestically and internationally. These
prefabricated steel buildings have a modular design which enables them to be erected in hours and easily dismantled
and relocated. Fold-A-Way metal buildings have been used by a broad range of industries and government agencies
with many varied applications such as equipment storage, maintenance facilities, factories, gymnasiums, sewage
treatment plants, aircraft hangars and emergency shelters. The buildings are manufactured by subcontractors to
designs and specifications developed by ATCO Structures.

Demand for workforce housing products is directly related to the capital spending cycle and the level of
development activity in natural resource industries. During 2005, the utilization rate for ATCO Structures’ work
force housing fleet averaged 70%, up from 62% in 2004 and 47% in 2003.

Space Rentals

In Canada, Australia, the United Kingdom and Chile, ATCO Structures’ space rentals business involves the lease
and sale of relocatable modular offices, classrooms and other community structures. In the United States, ATCO
Structures sells its space rentals products to leasing companies. ATCO Structures’ space rentals fleet of 7,750 units
consists of on-site structures such as site offices, lunchrooms, storage facilities, lavatories, first-aid units and locker
rooms, and modular commercial and community structures such as office complexes and classrooms. On-site
structures are used primarily by construction companies on urban and rural construction sites. Commercial and
community structures, although relocatable, are generally used as more permanent facilities by a wide range of
private and public sector customers.

Space rentals products are generally offered to customers under lease packages which may include options to
purchase. The terms of leases generally vary from one month to five years. Customers with longer term
requirements typically purchase rather than lease. Sales from the fleet assist ATCO Structures in maintaining a
modern inventory of space rentals units.
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Lease Fleet

The number of units in ATCO Structures’ lease fleets as at the end of each of the last two years was as follows:

2005 2004
Work Work
Force Space Force Space
Housing Rentals Housing Rentals
Canada....c.ccooiiiiii e 1,409 1,517 1,197 1,240
AUSITALIA ..o 754 5,050 750 4,319
United Kingdom ......c.ocoerieiiiniii e - 617 - 273
CRILE oo 537 566 296 320
Other .o 18 - 18 -
Total...oooii i 2,718 7,750 2,261 6,152
Manufacturing
Canada

ATCO Structures’ principal manufacturing facilities are located on a 22 acre site in Calgary known as the ATCO
Industrial Park, with approximately 275,000 square feet of production and office space.

ATCO Structures’ Spruce Grove manufacturing facility is located 15 km west of Edmonton, Alberta. This 90,000
square foot facility was originaily used for service and maintenance work, but has been used as an overflow
manufacturing facility and for service and maintenance since 1995 to meet incremental demand for modular
products that cannot be met from facilities in Calgary.

International

ATCO Structures operates a leased 90,000 square foot manufacturing facility in Diboll, Texas and a leased 140,000
square foot manufacturing facility in Wichita Falls, Texas. These plants manufacture relocatable modular products
and service the local domestic and international markets.

On February 6, 2006, ATCO Structures Europe Inc. announced it will continue to maintain a sales office but will
end manufacturing in Budapest, Hungary. ATCO Structures Europe Inc. will concentrate on developing sales and
providing customer service.

ATCO Structures has a 50% interest in a joint venture with Tecno Fast S.A., a modular manufacturing company
based in Santiago, Chile. Tecno Fast owns and operates a 70,000 square foot manufacturing facility.

ATCO Structures owns and operates a 15,000 square foot manufacturing facility on a three acre site and operates a
leased 16,000 square foot manufacturing facility on a two and a half acre site in Brisbane, Queensland, Australia.
ATCO Structures also owns and operates a 15,000 square foot manufacturing facility on a two acre site in
Townsville, Queensland.

Although ATCO Structures’ international competitors generally serve regional markets and often are not able to
offer the same capabilities and experience as ATCO Structures, the international market is nevertheless very
competitive and price is often the determining factor in securing contracts.

Noise Management

ATCO Noise Management provides “one-stop” turnkey solutions for industrial noise that may include acoustic
enclosures, buildings, barriers, ventilation systems, combustion air intake and exhaust silencers and other noise
abatement components. Registered to the ISO 9001-2000 quality assurance standard, it offers its clients a full range
of services, including noise surveys, regulatory review, engineering design, procurement, construction and post-
construction testing.
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The growing awareness of noise as a pollutant has resulted in a more rigorous enforcement of noise abatement by
the National Energy Board in Canada, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission in the United States, the
European Union Commission and local government bodies.

ATCO Noise Management’s clients are predominantly from the energy and manufacturing sectors. Typical projects
are acoustic buildings for new compressor stations, retrofitting of existing industrial plants, acoustic buildings,
barriers, and enclosures for power generation facilities, acoustic buildings for gas separation plants, turbine acoustic
inlet and exhaust systems and turbine anti-icing systems.

In October 2005, ATCO Noise Management announced that it had acquired all of the assets of Higgott-Kane
Industrial Noise Controls Ltd., a North American market leader in the supply of custom engineered turbine silencing
systems to power and oil and gas industries.

ATCO Noise Management will continue to concentrate on its worldwide business through an emphasis on the
energy and petrochemical industries.

Real Estate Operations

ATCO Investments owns ATCO Centre Phase II at 919 — 11 Avenue S.W., Calgary, containing approximately
132,000 square feet of net rentable area, of which 100% was occupied as at February 22, 2006.

ATCO Investments has a 67% interest in a 56,000 square foot prime land assembly in downtown Calgary.
ATCO owns 22 acres of land at the ATCO Industrial Park in Calgary.

Canadian Utilities owns commercial real estate in Fort McMurray, Alberta.

BUSINESS RISKS

The business risks section on pages 22 to 26 of the Corporation’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(“MD&A”) is hereby incorporated by reference and is available at www.sedar.com.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Under Alberta legislation, owners of public, electric or gas utilities are required to obtain AEUB approval prior to
issuing securities. The Corporation is not subject to, and CU and CU Inc. have obtained from the AEUB orders
which exempt them from, this requirement.

The utility operations of the Corporation in Alberta (ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric, ATCO Pipelines and CU Water)
are subject to the jurisdiction of the AEUB which, among other things, is vested with broad general powers of
supervision with respect to the construction and operation of electric energy and natural gas facilities within the
Province and broad powers of regulation in respect of rates charged for the delivery of electric energy, natural gas
and water.

The AEUB approves customer rates based on anticipated energy deliveries as well as the revenue required to
recover estimated costs of service, including a fair return on rate base, estimated operating expenses, depreciation
and taxes, all in respect of a future test period. Energy deliveries are based on a forecast of economic and business
conditions and, in the case of natural gas utility operations, normal temperature which is defined as the average
temperature for the previous 20 years.

Rate base consists of the depreciated cost of utility assets and an allowance for working capital. Return on rate base
is designed to meet the cost of interest on long term debt and dividends on preferred shares and to provide the
common shareholders with a reasonable opportunity to earn a fair return on their investment. The determination of a
fair return to the common shareholders involves an assessment by the AEUB of many factors, including returns on
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alternative investment opportunities of comparable risk and the level of return which will enable a utility to attract
the necessary capital to fund its operations.

The EUA and the GUA grant the AEUB specific authority to approve customer rates that provide incentives for
efficiencies that result in cost savings or other benefits that can be shared in an equitable manner between a utility
and its customers. Final determination of such customer rates requires the approval of the AEUB.

The regulated operations of the Corporation in the Yukon Territory (YECL) and the Northwest Territories (NUY
and NLDD) are subject to regulation similar to that in effect in Alberta by regulatory authorities in those jurisdictions.

Particulars of the most recent final decisions made by the AEUB respecting general rate applications or negotiated
settlements filed by the principal regulated subsidiaries of the Corporation are as follows:

Rate of
Return on Common
Date of Mid-Year Common Equity Ratio
Year Decision (1) Rate Base Equity (2) 3)
(8 Millionsy (%) (%)
ATCO Electric
Transmission................ 2003 Oct. 02/03 672.0 9.40 320
2004 Oct. 02/03 748.0 9.60 (C)] 33.0 O]
Distribution .................. 2003 Oct. 02/03 558.5 9.40 35.0
2004 Oct. 02/03 584.8 9.60 ©)] 37.0 G
ATCO Pipelines
North ..o 2003 Dec. 02/03 351.8 9.50 43.5
2004 Dec. 02/03 355.2 9.60 (G))] 43.0 4
South e 2003 Dec. 02/03 1448 9.50 43.5
2004 Dec. 02/03 147.6 9.60 @ 43.0 @
ATCO Gas
North .o 2005 Jan. 27/06 513.1 (5) 9.50 (6) 38.0 (6)
2006 Jan. 27/06 536.2 5 8.93 (6) 38.0 (6)
2007 Jan. 27/06 562.8 &) 8.93 6) 38.0 (6)
South ... 2005 Jan. 27/06 555.1 %) 9.50 6) 38.0 (6)
2006 Jan. 27/06 5332 (5) 8.93 (6) 38.0 (6)
2007 Jan. 27/06 549.9 €))] 8.93 6) 38.0 (6)
Notes:
(1) The information shown reflects the most recent amending or varying orders issued subsequent to the original

)

)
4

(5)

(©)

date of decision.

Common equity rate of return is the rate of return on the portion of rate base considered 10 be financed by
common equity.

The common equity ratio is the percentage of rate base considered to be financed by common equity.

The rate of return on common equity and common equity ratio for 2004 for ATCO Electric and ATCO Pipelines
was determined by the AEUB's generic cost of capital decision dated July 2, 2004.

Amounts shown for mid-year rate base are based on the AEUB 2005, 2006, and 2007 general rate application
decision issued in January 2006. These amounts will be updated based on the compliance filing due 1o the
AEUB on March 17, 2006.

The common equity ratios for 2005 — 2007 for ATCO Gas were determined by the AEUB’s generic cost of
capital decision dated July 2, 2004. The 2005, 2006, 2007 general rate application decision issued by the
AEUB in January 2006 approved a return on common equity as determined by the AEUB’s standardized rate of
return methodology. The return on common equity is 9.5% in 2005, 8.93% in 2006, and is yet to be determined
Jor 2007 and as such the 2007 rate of reiurn on common equity is a placeholder.

22 ATCO



Generic Cost of Capital

In July 2004, the AEUB issued its generic cost of capital decision. The decision established a standardized approach
for each utility company regulated by the AEUB for determining the rate of return on common equity based upon a
return of 9.60% on common equity. This rate of return will be adjusted annually by 75% of the change in long term
Government of Canada bond yield as forecast in the November Consensus Forecast, adjusted for the average
difference between the 10 year and 30 year Government of Canada bond yields for the month of October as reported
in the National Post. This adjustment mechanism is the same as the National Energy Board uses in determining its
formula based rate of return. The AEUB will undertake a review of this mechanism for the year 2009 or if the rate
of return resulting from the formula is less than 7.6% or greater than 11.6%. The AEUB also noted that any party, at
any time, could petition for a review of the adjustment formula if that party can demonstrate a material change in
facts or circumstances.

The decision also established the appropriate capital structure for each utility regulated by the AEUB. The AEUB
determined that any proposed changes to the approved capital structure which result from a material change in the
investment risk of a utility will be addressed at utility specific rate applications.

In November 2004, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 9.50% for 2005 and in November
2005 announced a generic return on common equity of 8.93% for 2006. In January 2006, the AEUB clarified that
the generic return on equity determined in accordance with the generic cost of capital decision should apply to each
year of the test period in the companies’ applications. If no rate applications are filed for a particular year, then
there will be no adjustment to the common equity rate of return for that year.

Gas Utilities Act

Under the GUA, the customers served by ATCO Gas have the choice of purchasing their natural gas supplies at a
regulated rate provided by DEML or directly from retailers, subject to certain conditions.

As a result of the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses to DEML in May 2004, ATCO Gas is no longer
involved in arranging for the supply and sale of natural gas to customers, but continues to own the assets and
provide transportation and distribution services under AEUB approved rates that provide for a recovery of costs of
service and fair return.

Electric Utilities Act

The EUA provides the framework for a new structure in Alberta’s electric utility industry and introduces
competition into the electric utility business. As of January 1, 2001, new generation was completely deregulated
and retail competition was introduced. In August 2002, the Government of Alberta announced further changes to
utility legislation in order to improve the environment for retail competition in the Province. Amendments to the
EUA and GUA received Royal Assent in March 2003 and were proclaimed in force in June 2003. These changes
were designed to bring customer choice for both gas and electricity into closer alignment, as well as to move
towards consistent regulatory treatment of investor-owned and municipally-owned utilities.

ATCO Electric continues to have the responsibility to provide the regulated rate tariff to the residential, farm and
small commercial customers in its designated service area who do not choose an energy retailer. As a result of the
Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses to DEML in May 2004, ATCO Electric is no longer involved in
arranging for the supply and sale of electricity to customers and is therefore no longer at risk for electric energy
supply. ATCO Electric continues to own the assets and provide transmission and distribution services under AEUB
approved rates that provide for a recovery of the cost of service, including a fair return on rate base.

It is anticipated that ATCO Electric’s transmission and distribution activities will continue to be regulated by the
AEUB.
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New Generation (ATCO Power and ATCO Resources)

Under the EUA, generation assets constructed after December 31, 1995, are not considered part of utility operations
and rates are not regulated by the AEUB. All owners of new and existing generating units must sell their surplus
electric energy through the Alberta Power Pool.

Existing Generation (Alberta Power (2000))

The EUA provided for the equalization of costs of “existing generation” that was in service at December 31, 1995.
On January 1, 2001, existing generation became subject to legislatively mandated PPA’s approved by the AEUB. -
The PPA’s are designed to allow the owners of generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover
their forecast fixed and variable costs and to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become
deregulated upon the expiry of the PPA’s. Each PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of the life
of the related generating plant and December 31, 2020.

Transmission

Under the EUA, separate wholesale tariffs for transmission must be approved by the AEUB. The transmission
tariffs allow any owner of a generating unit to have access to the transmission system in Alberta and thus facilitate
the sale of its power, The same transmission tariff is charged to each distribution utility or customer directly
connected to the transmission system regardless of location.

The equalization of transmission costs is achieved by having each owner of transmission facilities charge its costs to
the Alberta Power Pool. The Alberta Power Pool then aggregates these costs and charges a common transmission
rate to all who use the transmission system.

The Alberta Power Pool has developed and approved rules as mandated in the Transmission Regulation enacted by
the Government of Alberta in 2004. These rules direct that new transmission projects will be assigned to the
Transmission Facility Owners based on the service areas of the distribution companies they have been historically
affiliated with. Ownership of facilities will change at service area boundaries except where, in the opinion of the
Alberta Power Pool, only a small portion of the project is in another service area. All expansions of existing
facilities will be assigned to the existing owner.

Distribution

Under the EUA, separate retail rates for distribution must be approved by the AEUB. Costs of distribution are not
equalized. The distribution utility provides the distribution services for all customers under AEUB approved tariffs
which provide for the recovery of the cost of service, including a fair return on rate base.

Environmental Protection

The Corporation’s operating subsidiaries and the industries in which they operate are subject to extensive federal,
provincial and local environmental protection laws concerning emissions to the air, discharges to surface and
subsurface waters, land use activities and the handling, manufacturing, processing, use, emission and disposal of
materials and waste products. In Alberta, protection of the environment is generally governed by the Alberta
Environmental Protection and Enhancement Act. The operating subsidiaries have obtained or are obtaining all
permits and licenses required by law to carry on their operations.

The Corporation’s operating subsidiaries are committed to preserving and protecting the environment and
minimizing the discharge of harmful materials into the environment in accordance with environmental protection
laws and regulations. Nevertheless, some risk of unintentional violation of environmental protection laws and the
resulting liability to the Corporation’s operating subsidiaries is inherent in particular operations of these subsidiaries,
as it is with other companies engaged in similar businesses. There can be no assurance that material costs and
liabilities will not be incurred. To mitigate these costs, the Corporation carries insurance for the operating
subsidiaries against third party claims for bodily injury and property damage arising from a sudden and accidental
event or occurrence resulting from an unexpected release of pollutants or contaminants.
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The Corporation’s operating subsidiaries do not expect that environmental protection laws and regulations will
affect them differently from other companies in the industries in which they operate. Specifically identifiable
expenditures for pollution abatement and control were approximately $24.4 million in 2005 and are estimated to be
$29.7 million in 2006. Costs of compliance with existing laws and regulations are not expected to have a material
impact on the earings of the Corporation or the competitive position of the operating subsidiaries.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Two for One Share Split

In July 20035, the Corporation’s Board of Directors approved a two-for-one share split of the outstanding Class I
Shares and Class II Shares. The share split took the form of a stock dividend whereby share owners received one
additional Class I Share for each Class I Share held as of the record date and one additional Class II Share for each
Class II Share held as of the record date. The stock dividend was paid on September 15, 2005 to share owners of
record at the close of business on August 29, 2005, All share, stock option and per share amounts have been
retroactively restated to reflect this share split.

Share Capital

The authorized share capital of the Corporation consists of 8,000,000 Preferred Shares issuable in series, 8,000,000
Junior Preferred Shares issuable in series, 100,000,000 Class I Shares and 50,000,000 Class II Shares. At February
21, 2006, the Corporation had outstanding:

» one series of Preferred Shares totaling 6,000,000 shares ($150.0 million);

¢ o Junior Preferred Shares;

e 53,039,346 Class I Shares; and

o 6,960,018 Class II Shares.

Preferred Shares

The Preferred Shares have preferential rights as to dividends as determined by the Board of Directors and are
issuable from time to time in one or more series with such rights, restrictions, conditions and limitations as may be
determined by the Board of Directors.

One series of Preferred Shares, the 5.75% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Series 3 (“Series 3 Preferred Shares”),
is currently outstanding. The Series 3 Preferred Shares have, among others, provisions to the following effect:

(i) On and after December 1, 2008, the Corporation may convert all or any of the Series 3 Preferred Shares
into Class I Shares. The number of Class I Shares into which each Series 3 Preferred Share may be
converted will be determined by dividing the applicable redemption price together with all accrued and
unpaid dividends by the greater of $2.00 and 95% of the weighted average trading price of Class I Shares
on the Toronto Stock Exchange for a period of 20 consecutive trading days ending on the fourth day
prior to the date specified for conversion.

(ii) On and after December 1, 2011, each Series 3 Preferred Share will be convertible at the option of the
owner, on the first day of March, June, September and December of each year, into that number of Class
I Shares determined by dividing $25.00 together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by the greater of
$2.00 and 95% of the then current market price of the Class I Shares. If an owner of Series 3 Preferred
Shares elects to convert any of the shares into Class I Shares, the Corporation may elect to redeem the
Series 3 Preferred Shares for cash or arrange for the sale of such shares to substitute purchasers. At any
time, the Corporation may offer the owners of the Series 3 Preferred Shares the right to convert into a
further series of Preferred Shares.

(iii) The Series 3 Preferred shares are redeemable at the option of the Corporation commencing on December
1, 2008, at the stated value plus a 4% premium for the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid
dividends. The redemption premium declines by 2% in each succeeding 12 month period until
December 1, 2010.
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Junior Preferred Shares

The Junior Preferred Shares are issuable from time to time in one or more series with such rights, restrictions,
conditions and limitations as may be determined by the Board of Directors. The Junior Preferred Shares rank in
priority to the Class I Shares and Class II Shares with respect to the payment of dividends and the distribution of
assets upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation.

Three series of Junior Preferred Shares have been issued to date, all of which have been redeemed and cancelled.
Class I Shares and Class II Shares

Each Class II Share may be converted to one Class I Share at the share owner’s option. In the event an offer to

purchase Class II Shares is made to all owners of Class II Shares, and is accepted and taken up by the owners of a

majority of such shares pursuant to such offer, then provided an offer is not made to the owners of Class I Shares on

the same terms and conditions, the Class I Shares shall be entitled to the same voting rights as the Class II Shares.
The two classes of shares rank equally in all other respects.

DIVIDENDS

Cash dividends declared during the past three years for all series and classes of preferred and common shares are as
follows:

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003
($ per share)

Cash dividends declared per share (1):
5.75% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares, Series 3 ......oovveieine, 1.44 1.44 1.44
Class I and Class II Shares ......oovviveeviveiniiiien e e eenees e sereeens 0.76 0.70 0.64

It is the policy of the Corporation to pay dividends quarterly on its Class I and Class 1l Shares. In 2005, the
Corporation increased the dividends on Class I and Class IT Shares by 8$0.06 per share, the same increase as in 2004.
The Corporation has increased its annual common share dividend each year since 1993. The matter of an increase in
the quarterly dividend is addressed by the Board of Directors in the first quarter of each year. For the first quarter of
2006, the quarterly dividend payment has been increased by $0.015 to $0.205 per share. The payment of any
dividend is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and depends on the financial condition of the Corporation and
other factors.
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CREDIT RATINGS

The current credit ratings on the Corporation’s, CU’s and CU Inc.’s securities are as follows:

DBRS (1) S&P (2)
ATCO LLtd.:
Preferred Shares........cocoovioeieoiiciee e Pfd-2 (low) P-2 (high)
Canadian Utilities Limited:
DEDENTULES ..o et A A-
CommMErCial PAPET.......coviiiiiiriiercce e R-1 (low) A-1 (mid)
Preferred Shares:
Obligations of CUINC. (3).r.ivieiieiiinieiiei it cr e Pfd-2 (high) P-2 (high)
Obligations 0T CU .....vceivieeniiiiiier ittt Pfd-2 P-2 (high)
CU Inc.:
DEBENTUIES .. vvveeiiirie e A (high) A
COMMEICIBl PAPET .....oviviieriiiiiiti ettt et R-1 (low) A-1 (mid)
Preferred Shares ........ocoeccrrrcniienii e Pfd-2 (high) Not rated
Notes:

(1) Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited (“"DBRS") maintains a stable trend on the above securities.

(2) Standard and Poor’s ("S&P ") maintains a stable trend on the above securities.

(3) Refers to the Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares Series Q, R and S and the Perpetual Cumulative
Second Preferred Shares Series U and V which were issued by Canadian Utilities Limited prior o the creation
of CU Inc. on March 12, 1999.

Long Term Debt Credit Ratings

An A rating by DBRS is the third highest of ten categories. Long term debt rated A is of satisfactory credit quality.
Protection of interest and principal is still substantial but the degree of strength is less than that of AA rated entities.
While A is a respectable rating, entities in this category are considered to be more susceptible to adverse economic
conditions and have greater cyclical tendencies than higher-rated securities. “High” and “low” grades may be used
to indicate the relative standing of a credit within a particular rating category.

An A rating by S&P is the third highest of eleven categories. Obligations rated A by S&P are somewhat more
susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than obligations in higher-
rated categories, however, the obligor’s capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligations is still strong.
The addition of a plus or minus sign shows relative standing within the rating categories.

Commercial Paper Credit Ratings

An R-1 (low) rating by DBRS is the third highest of ten categories and is granted to short-term debt of satisfactory
credit quality. The overall strength and outlook for key liquidity, debt, and profitability ratios is not normally as
favourable as with higher rating categories, but these considerations are still respectable. Any qualifying negative
factors that exist are considered manageable, and the entity is normally of sufficient size to have some influence in
its industry.

An A-1 (mid) rating by S&P is the second highest of eight categories in its Canadian commercial paper ratings scale
and is granted where the obligor’s capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is strong.

Preferred Share Credit Ratings

A Pfd-2 rating by DBRS is the second highest of six categories granted by DBRS for preferred shares and is granted
to companies presenting satisfactory credit quality where protection of dividends and principal is still substantial,
but earnings, the balance sheet and coverage ratios are not as strong as Pfd-1 rated companies. “High”, and “low”
grades may be used to indicate the relative standing of a credit within a particular rating category.
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A P-2 rating by S&P is the second highest of eight categories S&P uses in its Canadian preferred share rating scale
and is granted where the obligor’s capacity to meet its financial commitments is considered adequate, but is more
subject to adverse economic conditions than higher rating categories. “High”, “mid” and “low” grades may be used
to indicate the relative standing of a credit within a particular rating category.

Credit Ratings Generally

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision or
withdrawal at any time by the rating organization,
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DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Set out below is information with respect to the directors and officers of the Corporation.

Name,
Province or State and
Country of Residence

Position

Periods Served
as a Director of
the

Principal Occupation Corporation

C.R. Armour
South Australia,
Australia

W.L. Britton, Q.C.

2 5)
Alberta, Canada

B.P. Collomb
France

D.T. Davis
Alberta, Canada

B.P. Drummond
@3«

Quebec, Canada

B.K. French

HIOIONS)
Alberta, Canada

1.D. Hargrave
Alberta, Canada

E.M. Kiefer (5)
Alberta, Canada

S.W. Kiefer
Alberta, Canada

Rt. Hon. D.F.
Mazankowski,
P.C.,0.C,A.QE,
D.Eng,LL.D.
Alberta, Canada

C.S. McConnell
Alberta, Canada

H.M. Neldner (3) (4)
Alberta, Canada

Managing Director,
ATCO Group,
Australia/Asia/Pacific
Director & Vice
Chairman of the Board

Director

Vice President, Internal
Audit & Risk
Management

Director

Director

Vice President, Project
Development

Vice President, Human
Resources

Managing Director,
Utilities & Chief
Information Officer

Director

Treasurer

Director

Managing Director, ATCO
Group, Australia/Asia/Pacific,
ATCO Ltd.

Vice Chairman of the Board, 1975 to date
ATCO Ltd. and Canadian
Utilities Limited
Chairman, Lafarge S.A. 1999 to date
(building materials company)

Vice President, Internal Audit &
Risk Management, ATCO Ltd.
and Canadian Utilities Limited

Corporate Director 1968 to date

President, Karusel Management 1982 to date
Ltd. (property management and

management consultants)

Vice President, Project
Development, ATCO Ltd. and
Canadian Utilities Limited

Vice President, Human
Resources, ATCO Ltd. and
Canadian Utilities Limited

Managing Director, Utilities &
Chief Information Officer,
ATCO Ltd. and Canadian
Utilities Limited

Business Consultant and 1999 to date
Corporate Director

Treasurer, ATCO Ltd. and

Canadian Utilities Limited

Corporate Director 1997 to date
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Periods Served

Name, as a Director of
Province or State and the
Country of Residence Position Principal Occupation Corporation

M.M. Shaw Managing Director, Managing Director, Global
Alberta, Canada Global Enterprises Enterprises, ATCO Ltd. and
Canadian Utilities Limited
N.C. Southern Director, President & President & Chief Executive 1989 to date

Alberta, Canada

R. D. Southern,
CB.E,O.C.,LLD.(6)
Alberta, Canada

P. Spruin
Alberta, Canada

L.C. van Wachem,
K.BE,
The Netherlands

K.M. Watson (5)
Alberta, Canada

S.R. Werth (5)
Alberta, Canada

C.W. Wilson (2) (3) (4)
Colorado, U.S.A.

P.G. Wright
Alberta, Canada

Notes:

Chief Executive Officer

Director & Chairman of
the Board

Corporate Secretary

Director

Senior Vice President &
Chief Financial Officer

Senior Vice President &
Chief Administration
Officer

Lead Director

Vice President, Finance
& Controller

Officer, ATCO Ltd. and
Canadian Utilities Limited

Chairman of the Board, ATCO
Ltd. and Canadian Utilities
Limited

Corporate Secretary, ATCO
Ltd. and Canadian Utilities
Limited

Chairman, Global Crossing
Limited (telecom network)

Senior Vice President & Chief
Financial Officer, ATCO Ltd.
and Canadian Utilities Limited

Senior Vice President & Chief
Administration Officer, ATCO
Ltd. and Canadian Utilities
Limited

Corporate Director
Vice President, Finance &

Controller, ATCO Ltd. and
Canadian Ultilities Limited

1963 to date

1993 to date

2002 to date

(1) Each director holds office until the close of the annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation.

(2) Member of the Corporate Governance — Nomination, Compensation and Succession Committee.

(3) Member of the Audit Committee.

(4) Member of the Risk Review Committee.

(3) Member of the Crisis Management Committee.

(6) R.D. Southern was a director of Canadian Airlines Corporation when it filed for protection under the
Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act on March 24, 2000.

All of the directors and officers have been engaged for the last five years in the indicated principal occupations, or in
other capacities with the companies or firms referred to, or with affiliates or predecessors thereof, with the exception
of Mr. L..C. van Wachem who was Chairman of the Board, Zurich Financial Services.
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SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

At December 31, 2005, the directors and officers of the Corporation, as a group, beneficially owned, directly or
indirectly (via corporate holdings or otherwise), or exercised control or direction over approximately 83.0% of the
issued and outstanding Class II Shares of the Corporation. In addition, the directors and officers of the Corporation,
as a group, beneficially owned, directly or indirectly (via corporate holdings or otherwise), or exercised control or
direction over approximately 74.6% of the issued and outstanding Class B common shares of Canadian Utilities
Limited.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Audit Committee Charter
ATCO Ltd. Audit Committee Mandate
Purpose

The purpose of this Mandate is to establish the terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the Corporation. The
Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is responsible for
contributing to the effective stewardship of the Corporation by assisting the Board of Directors in fulfilling its
oversight of:

e the integrity of the Corporation’s financial statements;

e the Corporation’s compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;

o the independence, qualifications and appointment of the Corporation’s external auditor; and

s the performance of the Corporation’s internal audit function and external auditors.

Composition

The Board of Directors shall elect annually from among its members an Audit Committee comprised of not less than
3 directors. Each member of the Audit Committee must be:
¢ adirector of the Corporation;
e independent (within the meaning of sections 1.4 and 1.5 of Multilateral Instrument 52-110 Audit
Commitrees); and
¢ financially literate.

In order to be considered to be an independent director for the purposes of membership on the Audit Committee, a
director must have been determined by the Board of Directors to be independent in accordance with all applicable
regulatory requirements.

The Board of Directors will appoint one member of the Audit Committee as Chairman. Any member of the Audit
Committee may be removed or replaced at any time by the Board of Directors, and a member shall cease to be a
member of the Audit Committee upon ceasing to be independent.

Meetings

The Audit Committee shall meet at least four times per year and whenever deemed necessary by the Chairman of the
Audit Committee or at the request of an Audit Committee member or the Corporation’s external or internal auditors.
The Audit Committee Chairman shall prepare and/or approve an agenda in advance of each meeting. Reasonable
notification of meetings, which may be held in person, by telephone or other communication device, shall be sent to
the members of the Audit Committee, the external auditors and any additional attendees as determined by the
Chairman. The external auditor has the right to appear before and be heard at any meeting of the Audit Committee.
Upon the request of the external auditor, the Chairman of the Audit Committee shall convene a meeting of the Audit
Committee to consider any matters which the auditor believes should be brought to the attention of the directors or
shareholders of the Corporation. Meetings will be scheduled to permit timely review of Audit Committee materials.
A majority of the Audit Committee will constitute a quorum. Minutes of each meeting will be prepared by the
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person designated by the Audit Committee to act as secretary and will be kept by the Corporate Secretarial
Department.

Reporting

The Audit Committee shall report to the Board of Directors of the Corporation on such matters and questions
relating to the financial position of the Corporation as the Board of Directors may from time to time refer to the
Audit Committee. A summary of all meetings will be provided to the Board of Directors by the Audit Committee
Chairman. Supporting schedules and information reviewed by the Audit Committee will be available for
examination by any director upon request. The external auditors and the Vice President, Internal Audit and Risk
Management shall report directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is expected to maintain free and
open communication with the Corporation’s external auditors, internal auditors and management. This
communication shall include private sessions, at least annually, with each of these parties.

Responsibilities

The Audit Committee relies on the expertise and knowledge of management, and the internal and external auditors
in carrying out its oversight responsibilities. Management of the Corporation is responsible for determining that the
Corporation’s financial statements are complete, accurate and in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The external auditors are responsible for auditing the Corporation’s financial statements.

The Audit Committee shall have the power to conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within the Audit
Committee’s scope of responsibilities. The Audit Committee shall be empowered to retain independent counsel,
accountants or other outside advisors as it determines necessary to permit it to carry out its duties.

The Audit Committee shall:
¢ Recommend to the Board of Directors:

(a) The external auditors to be nominated for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or
performing other audit, review or attestation services for the Corporation;

(b) . The compensation of the external auditors; and

(¢) The approval of the Corporation’s annual financial statements, AIF and MD&A.

e Be directly responsible for overseeing the work of the external auditors engaged for the purpose of
preparing or issuing an audit report or performing other audit, review or attestation services for the
Corporation, including the resolution of disagreements between management and the external auditors
regarding financial reporting.

e  Pre-approve all non-audit services to be provided to the Corporation or its subsidiaries by the external
auditors of the Corporation or its subsidiaries. The Audit Committee may delegate to one or more of its
members the authority to grant pre-approvals provided that any pre-approvals so granted are presented in
writing to the Audit Committee at the next regularly scheduled meeting. The Audit Committee will ensure
that relevant policies and procedures are in place to manage this process and comply with all applicable
regulatory requirements.

o Review the Corporation’s annual and interim financial statements, AIF, MD&A and annual and interim
earnings press releases before this information is publicly disclosed.

e As delegated by the Board of Directors, approve the interim financial statements, MD&A and eamnings
press releases before this information is publicly disclosed.

¢ Be satisfied that adequate procedures are in place for the review of the Corporation’s disclosure of financial

information extracted or derived from the Corporation’s financial statements, and periodically assess the
adequacy of such procedures. This would include an annual review of the Corporation Disclosure Policy.
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¢  Establish procedures for:

(a) the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Corporation regarding accounting,
internal accounting controls, auditing matters, fraud or theft; and

(b) the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Corporation of concerns regarding
questionable accounting or auditing matters, fraud or theft.

¢ Ensure the Corporation has implemented appropriate systems of internal control over financial reporting
and that these systems are operating effectively;

o Ensure the internal audit function has been effectively carried out and the internal auditors have adequate
resources;

¢ Review and approve the Corporation’s hiring policies regarding partners, employees and former partners
and employees of the present and former external auditors of the Corporation;

¢ Review and reassess annually the adequacy of the Audit Committee’s responsibilities and recommend any
proposed changes to the Board of Directors for approval.

The members of the Audit Committee, for the purpose of performing their duties, have the right to inspect all the
books and records of the Corporation and its subsidiary entities and to discuss such books and records in any manner
relating to the financial position of the Corporation and its subsidiary entities with the officers, employees and
external auditors of the Corporation and its subsidiary entities.

The Audit Committee will inquire into any other matters referred to it by the Board of Directors.
Composition of the Audit Committee

The following are members of the Corporation’s Audit Committee. All members are independent and financially
literate:

B.P. Drummond
B.K. French
H.M. Neldner
C.W. Wilson

Relevant Education and Experience

B.P. Drummond Mr. Drummond, a former investment banker, has an MBA and was president of a major
investment dealer. Mr. Drummond has been a director of several public companies and has
served as Chairman of the IDA and the Montreal Stock Exchange.

B K. French Mr. French has a Bachelor of Commerce with an Accounting and Finance Major and is a
Chartered Accountant. Mr. French was engaged in public practice for 25 years.

HM. Neldner ~ Mr. Neldner has a Bachelor of Commerce (Finance). Mr. Neldner held various senior
management positions in accounting and finance including General Accountant, Comptroller,
Vice President Finance and President & CEO with Alberta Government Telephones and Telus
Corporation.

C.W. Wilson Mr. Wilson has an understanding of the accounting principles of the Corporation. In addition,

Mr. Wilson previously supervised a CFO directly for a seven year period as President & CEQ of
Shell Canada Ltd.
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Reliance on Certain Exemptions

The Corporation did not rely on any exemptions from the Audit Committee requirements of Canadian Securities
Legislation.

Audit Committee Oversight

Since January 1, 2005, all recommendations of the Audit Committee to nominate or compensate an external auditor
were adopted by the Board of Directors.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Corporation have adopted a policy for approval of external
auditor services. The policy prohibits the external auditor from providing specified services to the Corporation and
its subsidiaries.

The engagement of the external auditor for a range of services defined in the policy has been pre-approved by the
Audit Committee. If an engagement of the external auditor is contemplated for a particular service that is neither
prohibited nor covered under the range of pre-approved services, such engagement must be pre-approved. The
Audit Committee has delegated the authority to grant such pre-approval to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Services provided by the external auditor are subject to an engagement letter. The policy mandates that the Audit
Committee receive regular reports of all new pre-approved engagements of the external auditor.

External Auditor Service Fees

The aggregate fees incurred by the Corporation and its subsidiaries for professional services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for each of the past two years were as follows:

2005 2004

($Millions )
AUGIE (1) 1ot bbb e bbbttt be 1.7 1.6
Audit Related (2) oottt et a b et 02 0.1
TR (3 oottt e bbbt et E ettt sttt r e st n e e e e e 0.4 0.5
TOtAL ottt e e ek e e et en e e 2.3 2.2

Notes:

(1) Audit fees include the aggregate professional fees paid 1o the external auditor for the audit of the annual
consolidated financial statements and other regulatory audits and filings.

(2) Audit-related fees include the aggregate fees paid to the external auditor for services related to special
purpose audits and the audit services including consultations regarding financial reporting and accounting
standards.

(3) Tax fees include the aggregate fees paid to the external auditor for tax compliance, tax advice, tax planning
and advisory services relating to the preparation of corporate tax, capital tax and sales tax returns.
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MARKETS FOR THE SECURITIES OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation’s Class I Shares, Class II Shares and Series 3 Preferred Shares are listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange.

The following table sets forth the high and low prices and the volume of shares traded on the Toronto Stock
Exchange during 2005 for the Corporation’s listed shares.

Class I Shares Class II Shares Series 3 Preferred Shares

High Low Volume High Low Volume High Low Volume

$ $ (000) $ 3 (000) 3 $ (000)
January......... 29.88 28.16 862,372 29.83 28.38 11,678 29.23 28.76 22,976
February...... 31.50  29.03 1,202,566 30.68 29.00 10,602 29.23  28.00 37,725
March........... 3235  30.20 1,785,094 31.90 3043 8,798 28.80 27.65 19,591
April............. 32,75  30.91 1,133,368 32.58 31.25 6,480 28.80 27.65 75,218
May......c...... 3470 31.00 950,014 33.99 31.08 12,508 28.85 27.25 15,202
June...c.ooi. 3557 33.03 1,708,258 35.13  33.09 15,040 28.00 27.90 164,519
July..coveinnn. 3920 35.06 865,196 3854 35.83 9,500 29.95 28.30 106,461
August.......... 42.00 37.02 1,001,631 43.00 37.60 13,301 29.00 28.10 104,776
September.... 44.08 37.50 1,403,041 43.05 39.00 5,985 28.95 2841 145,244
October ........ 4225 3400 1,322,017 42,60 35.00 13,935 29.25 2841 175,124
November ... 4294 36770 1,270,695 42.00 38.00 3,975 28.99 2847 114,030
December..... 41.90 3932 816,919 4170 39.50 6,376 2899 28.50 50,972

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

The transfer agent and registrar for the Class I Shares, Class 1I Shares and Series 3 Preferred Shares is CIBC Mellon
Trust Company at its principal offices in Calgary, Vancouver, Toronto and Montreal.

EXPERTS
PricewaterhouseCooper’s LLP has prepared the auditor’s report with respect to the Corporation’s annual financial

statements. PricewaterhouseCooper’s LLP is independent in accordance with the auditor’s rules of professional
conduct in Canada.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

At December 31, 2005, the Corporation and its joint ventures had the following number of employees:

Number

TTHIIEIES . ocvvei ettt eee e et ettt e e sa et eeesteesa e ee bt eas e s e ae e st er s et s ee s e eae s ae et et esat e e b e entsenra e e e ene e eteseteenraens 3,340
GLODAL ENEIPIISES ..vvivvieiie sttt cre sttt bttt a 1ot abe ettt et s e b e e esae e e ns s neeee b ain e bbb et e 1,526
POWET GEIETATION ....vvveivii it setie e stie et bttt e et eeebes s ete s e s e et ae e b e et e eaeerete e eas s rabataat b aeeebessate e ratbesebts e s taearnteetresaes 381
TNAUSEIIALS .. veve ettt e et ettt st e e et ea e et a et er et b et rete e e e e ettt e e ran s 1,176
(01911 SETT OO TSUEPTOTUOT TR TR RP RO TUPRPTUON 81

SUD TOtAL .. ittt siea e e as s e e saassasssa st es e sas e esseassasereesas s e tme sy e st sasanes sraasrssaesasas chsmesenssasteaas 6,504
Joint Ventures — Global ENLEIPIISES ...ocvieiiiiciiiieici ettt ev e s e 895
JOINt Ventures — INAUSITIALS c.viiiiii it et e e et et e et b e e b s s st s e e b eeabtaeereae s 234
JOInt Ventures — POWer GENEIAION ....vviiiiiiis ettt ettt e r e et cb et ab e e e e s eee s ereons 253
B KoL 7Y F OO SO OO RURPOT SO 7,886
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Approximately 4,100 employees are members of seven employee associations and 17 unions and are covered by 34
collective agreements. Three of these agreements have expired and are under re-negotiation and the remaining 31
agreements expire over the period September 30, 2006 to September 30, 2010.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information, including directors’ and officers’ remuneration, principal holders of the Corporation’s
securities and securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans, is contained in the Corporation’s
Management Proxy Circular dated March 9, 2005. Additional financial information is provided in the Corporation’s
comparative financial statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the financial year ended December
31,2005,

Information relating to Canadian Utilities Limited or CU Inc. may be obtained upon request from the Corporate
Secretary of the respective corporation at 1400 ATCO Centre, 909 — 11* Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R IN6
(telephone (403) 292-7500 or fax (403) 292-7623). Corporate information is also available on the Corporation’s
website: www.atco.com. Additional information relating to the Corporation may be found on SEDAR at
www.sedar.com.
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FILE NO. 82-34745

EOTIve
Form 52-109F1 - Certification of Annual Filings Q AN g v e D

0% ER 1S Do
I, Nancy C. Southern, President & Chief Executive Officer of ATCO Ltd., certify tha,;t';:_,;; 0F ¢

i £

CORPORATE
1. I have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of ATCO Ltd. (the issuer)

for the period ending December 31, 2005;

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement
not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the annual filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the annual filings fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the annual filings;

4. The issuer’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures for the issuer, and we have:
(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which the annual filings
are being prepared; and
(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures as of
the end of the period covered by the annual filings and have caused the issuer to
disclose in the annual MD&A our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by the annual filings based
on such evaluation.

Date: February 22, 2006

[original signed by N.C. Southern]

President & Chief Executive Officer




